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Financial Highlights
R E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT —F+ - A=+—HIFE
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Financial Highlights
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T--—F+-A=+—HIFE

Note 2021 2020 % Change
LiEsd —EB-—fF —EIEF 2HASL
(restated)
(E%)
Results E
HK$'000 FET
Revenue Wz 77,700 58,803 32.14%
Loss before income tax M ETS R RIS 18 (28,208) (79,969) (64.73%)
Loss for the year attributable AN EARA A
to equity shareholders REZS AR R
of the Company il =] (20,940) (78,780) (73.42%)
Assets and Liabilities EEHEE
HK$'000 FET
Total assets BEE 181,709 190,920 (4.82%)
Total liabilities FE=E 165,435 155,194 (6.60%)
Shareholders’ equity IR M 16,274 35,726 (54.44%)
Per share data BREE
HK cents il
Basic and diluted BERNEE
(loss)/earnings (E518) /&BF (1.92) (8.52) (77.46%)
HK$ BT
Net asset value BEFE 0.01 0.03 (66.67%)
Financial Ratio B tE =
Current ratio BN & 1 0.43 0.69 (37.68%)
Quick ratio REpLE =K 0.42 0.68 (38.24%)
Notes: BRE -
1) Current ratio represents current assets divided by current liabilities. 1) RBLEERDEERNUTBERE -
2)  Quick ratio represents current assets excluding inventories divided by 2) RELEEBETNEFTENRBDEERUIRDAE -

current liabilities.
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The Group has been exploring
investment opportunities in hotel
operation, property investment in
Hong Kong, the PRC and other
overseas countries, with an aim to
deliver satisfactory returns to the
shareholders.

AEEIERBRERENES « TE
REABINER 2 BIERLE - )
ERENNERE  FER/KRR
T R A A B3R




\

06

Chairman’s Statement
FTERES

YEAR UNDER REVIEW

The year 2021 was another challenging but fruitful year for
Times Universal Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”). After a prolonged
period of close-down, our Brentwood Bay Resort located in
Victoria, British Columbia, Canada has become the dominant
force in this year’s revenue generation, overtaking the Nuofute
Property Management Co., Ltd.* EE#EEMESEARER
A] (“Nuofute Property Management”) to be the key source of
income for the Group. The resurgence of the hotel operating
segment and the steady growth from the properties management
segment has strengthened the confidence of the Group to
become an integrated property related service provider and
investor. Management will continue to explore new projects and
expand this segment through acquisitions. Upon the full recovery
of the hospitality industry, the Group will continue to further
explore investment opportunities in hotel operation, property
investment and development in Hong Kong, the PRC and other
overseas countries. The board of directors (the “Board”) and
the management will continue to adjust the Group’s business
strategies with an aim to deliver satisfactory returns to every
shareholder of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Revenue represents hotel operation income and properties
management income, which accounted for approximately 54.5%
(2020: 40.1%) and 45.5% (2020: 59.9%) respectively, of the
total revenue. Revenue increased by 32.1% to approximately
HK$77,700,000 from approximately HK$58,803,000 in 2020,
which was mainly attributable to the impact from the hotel
operation segment providing a year on year 79.3% hike in
revenue. The Group’s net loss decreased from approximately
HK$78,780,000 in 2020 to approximately HK$20,940,000 in
2021 due to the income from the hotel operation segment has
surged during the year and no further losses incurred in the
Group’s interests in joint ventures in 2021.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2 —FHHERRERERZERERAR ([ K
AR ZEREMNBARGE I AELEE]) mE
R BB MK REEN —F o LREMEH
% BALRNMERRES ML EEZ D
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455% (B -_FF :509%) - WHFEH-Z
— T F #958,803,0007% JT & MN32.1% = £
77,700,000 70 - EERAMNBEELLEETHN
FESWARLEIENTII% - ANEB K EIEF
R T -TF478,780,0008 LRI E-Z
—— & #20,940000 8T TERHARFR
HIEEEERBRAKRNBER  MAEER T
T FRAEEIETTEE —SELEEIS -
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PROSPECTS

The hotel operation business in Victoria, British Columbia,
Canada has turned the corner and became profitable by
achieving a significant growth of over 70% in revenue during the
year, which had also become the driving source of income for
the group. Meanwhile, the property management segment also
achieved steady growth in revenue. Management believes the
property management industry in China will continue to grow
steadily and bring stable income to the Group. In exploring new
opportunities in property management projects, the Group will
actively consider expanding this segment through acquisitions in
hotel operation and property investment in Hong Kong, the PRC
and other overseas countries, with an aim to deliver substantial
returns for the Shareholders through a series of acquisitions and
proposed cooperation.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express sincere thanks
and appreciation to our Shareholders, business partners and
dedicated management as well as staff for their continued
support and valuable contributions to the Group.

CHOI Yun Chor
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 6 May 2022
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The success of property
management segment
strengthens the confidence of the
Group to explore new property
management projects and expand
this segment through acquisitions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

IR R M AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW BA %5 O] 8

Revenue and Segment Information WEREDEER

Revenue represents hotel operation income and property WEREBEEEWAREETERA - WA
management income. Revenue increased by 32.1% —E T F 458,803,000 T MN32.1% L

to approximately HK$77,700,000 from approximately 77,700,000 7L - TERHARAFELEILH
HK$58,803,000 in 2020 was mainly due to the partial G RN EE R SETGIE AT ©

operation of the hotel during this year and increase in property

management business.

Direct Costs HIENAX

Direct costs increased by approximately HK$17,159,000 or BHEKARIE L 17,159,000 T8 41.3% B4
41.3% to approximately HK$58,692,000. The increase was 58,692,000 7T c ZIWMEBRHNRAFEE
mainly due to partial operations of the hotel and increase in EE D IBIE R EE R E I o

property management business.

Gross Profit E7
Gross profit increased approximately HK$1,738,000 or 10.0% FEF EF#)1,738,0008 708k 10.0% » Bz &
which was in line with the increase in revenue and direct costs. BB I —5 -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R AT

The Group has been exploring investment opportunities in hotel
operation and property investment in Hong Kong, the PRC and

other overseas countries.

AEBLEBEENEL - PENREME

RENREH#E -

Other Income, Gain and Losses, net

Other income, gain and losses, net decreased by approximately
HK$4,815,000 from approximately HK$8,304,000 in 2020 to
approximately HK$3,489,000 in 2021. The decrease was mainly
due to revaluation loss on cryptocurrencies of approximately
HK$2,253,000 offset by the government grants of approximately
HK$4,142,000 received as a result of COVID-19 pandemic.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately
HK$6,786,000 from approximately HK$28,359,000 in 2020
to approximately HK$35,145,000 in 2021 was mainly due to
the increase in rental cost for cryptocurrency investment and
increase in staff costs in hotel operation in response to the partial
operations of the hotel.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B A am M AT

Revenue of Hotel
Operation Business

Revenue of Property
Management Business
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Finance Costs

Finance costs increased by approximately HK$184,000
from approximately HK$4,979,000 in 2020 to approximately
HK$5,163,000 in 2021 was mainly due to increase in imputed
interest on loan from controlling shareholders offset by the
decrease in interest cost after the repayment of bond in July
2020 and repayment of one of the secure bank loans from ICBC
of Canada in September 2021.

Loss for the Year

As a result of the foregoing combined effects of the above, the
Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$20,940,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net current liabilities
and current ratio were approximately HK$75,492,000 and 0.43
respectively (net current liabilities and current ratio in 2020:
HK$27,316,000 and 0.69 respectively).

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

AL R A

BVERANH — T = FF 494,979,000 T ANL
184,000/ 2 =& =~ — % 495,163,000/ 7T
FERRZERBEBEE R HEEF S B FTE A
EZE_TF L AEEEHFEOF BB
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FEEEE

HREABZENGREFE BE-_T-_—F
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s land and buildings
held for own use of approximately HK$83,851,000 (2020:
approximately HK$84,733,000) were pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group.

Capital Structure

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group financed its
liquidity requirements through a combination of cash flow as
generated from operations, secured loans, bonds and loans from
controlling shareholder.

Capital Commitment and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the total capital commitments of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$312,000 (2020: HK$Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hotel Operation Business

Revenue from hotel operation accounted for approximately
54.5% of the total revenue. Hotel occupancy rate increased to
71.1% in 2021 from 39.1% in 2020 owing to the COVID-19
pandemic which caused the hotel to close for prolonged
periods. The revenue was therefore increased by approximately
HK$18,727,000 from approximately HK$23,609,000 in 2020 to
approximately HK$42,336,000 in 2021. The increase was mainly
due to the hotel partially operated in 2021.

Property Management Business

Revenue from property management business amounted
to approximately HK$35,364,000, representing an increase
of 0.48% comparing to approximately HK$35,194,000 in
2020. The increase was mainly due to increase in property
management fee.

Net Gearing Ratio

The net gearing ratio was 3.83 as at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: 1.58). The net gearing ratio was measured
by net debt (including secured loans, loans from controlling
shareholder, and bonds, and deducting bank balances and
cash) over total equity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE TR R AT

Staff and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 325
employees, including 199 based in the PRC, 11 based in Hong
Kong and 115 based in Canada. Staff costs for the year ended
31 December 2021 were approximately HK$40,701,000,
representing an increase of approximately HK$10,442,000 as
compared to approximately HK$30,259,000 of last year due to
the staff costs increased in hotel operation and increase in the
property management business.

Employee remuneration is determined in accordance with
prevailing industry practice and employees’ performance and
experience. Discretionary bonuses are awarded to employees
with outstanding performance with reference to the performance
of the Group. Employees are also entitled to other staff benefits
including medical insurance and mandatory provident fund.

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation and Hedge

The Group is not subject to material foreign currency exposure
since its operations in the PRC and Canada are mainly
denominated in RMB and CAD respectively and the Group’s
revenue and operating costs in the PRC and Canada are
denominated in the functional currency of the Group’s entity
generating the sales or incurring the costs. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company consider that the currency risk is
not significant. As such, no hedging instrument is considered
necessary by the Board during the year. The directors of the
Company will monitor the Group’s exposure on an ongoing basis
and will consider hedging the currency risk should the need
arise.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group did not enter into any forward foreign currency contracts.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Use of net proceeds from Rights Issue

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 29
May 2020, 6 July 2020 and 13 July 2020 respectively and the
prospectus of the Company dated 17 June 2020, 364,292,398
ordinary shares of the Company were allotted and issued
pursuant to the rights issue (the “Rights Issue”) on the basis of
one rights share (the “Rights Share(s)”) for every two ordinary
shares (the “Share(s)”) of the Company held on the record date
at the issue price of HK$0.145 per Rights Share. Among the
364,292,398 Rights Shares allotted and issued by the Company
pursuant to the Rights Issue, (i) 126,561,279 Rights Shares were
allotted and issued to Great Match International Limited (“Great
Match”); (ii) 126,561,279 Rights Shares were allotted and
issued to Rich Vision Development Limited (“Rich Vision”); (iii)
19,880,000 Rights Shares were allotted and issued to the then
existing shareholders (other than Great Match and Rich Vision);
and (iv) 91,289,840 Rights Shares were allotted and issued to
not less than six independent placees procured by the placing
agent, Sun International Securities Limited.

The closing price of the Shares as at the date on which terms of
the Rights Issue were fixed, i.e. 29 May 2020, was HK$0.145
per Share. The gross proceeds from the Rights Issue were
approximately HK$52.8 million, and the net proceeds (after
deducting the relevant expenses incurred in the Rights Issue)
were approximately HK$52.0 million. The net subscription price,
after deducting relevant expenses, is approximately HK$0.143
per Rights Share.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE R M AT

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 14 July BOAARAPA_TE-_—FEtA+TEAZA
2021, the Board resolved to change the use of the unutilised net EMEE  EFEREEUCRBAMERIESF
proceeds. As at 31 December 2021, the Group has utilised the R RZE_—F+-_A=+—H &%

net proceeds as follows: EEEA S RIRFRENT ¢
Revised Revised Amount - Unuilised
Amount of  Unutiised net alocation intended of net net
Infended use of  net proceeds proceeds of net se of proceeds proceeds Expected
net procgeds  utfised up fo upto proceeds  unutifsed net  utiised up o upto fimeling
asstatedin 31 December 31 December during  procegdsafter 31 December 31 December for the

the prospectus 200 2020 theyear  re-allocation 021 2021 infended use
BECZCTE HEREE REE  EBARK HEE--F EEIICE
PRemiz - A=t-AL t2A=+-A B RBRAERET Az t-ALTZAZT-AL
MEFE  CERRE  LABR MESE R CORME  ARRRG MRz
FEEERE  ERE REUBRE SEOOR MRBE O MERE BRE EERER
Hk§milion — HKSmillon  HKSmillon  HKSmilion  HKSmilion  HKSmilion  HKSmilion  HKS$milion
BEAT  BEEr  BEET  R&ET  REAT  BEEn  BEET  REET

Repayment of the Bonds &S 100 (100) - - - - - NATEE
Purchase of Filecon BEHH - - - 110 110 76) 34 Endof202
CEIIEER
General working capia —fegLd
- Staff costs -EIRA 310 (54) 56 (110) 146 (146) - NAAER
- Costofinventories for the hote! -WEMERRE 2 RN
aperation in Canada 40 28) 12 - 12 (12 - NATER
- Finance ot -BERK 56 20) 36 - 36 (36) - NATEE
- Legel and professiona ees - EEREZER 14 (14 - - - - - NATER
50 (216) 304 00 304 (270) 34
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES, AND
JOINT VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS
FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS.

Acquisition of Three Companies

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 9
September 2021 entered into among Yang Jin Chu and Yang
Jing as vendors and Chongging Ailuojia Technology Service
Limited* (EEE S K EBHERB AR A F]) (“Ailugjia”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser, Ailuojia
agreed to acquire the entire equity interest in Chongging Haotai
Property Management Limited* (EETMEEMEEEERE
A R]) (“Haotai”), Chongging Jia Duan Technology Company
Limited* (EEMzmAHEEREEAR]) (“Jiaduan”) and
Chongging Qi Chang Technology Company Limited* (EE{>#
BB AR]) (“Qichang”) and two copyright registrations in the
PRC in relation to smart home software at a total consideration
of RMB2,950,000.00. Haotai is a company engaged in the
provision of property management services. Jiaduan is a
company engaged in investment holding. Qichang is a company
engaged in provision of internet property management services.
Upon completion of such acquisition, Haotai, Jiaduan and
Qichang has became subsidiaries of the Group. For more details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 9
September 2021.

Acquisition of Cryptocurrencies

Best Master Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company purchased 12,000 units of Filecoin through a series
of on-market transactions on the trading platform at a aggregate
consideration (excluding handling charges) of US$634,942.
The Group intends to utilize the cryptocurrency as collateral for
Filecoin mining purpose, which in turn, would allow the Group to
tap into the cryptocurrency business and diversify the business
operation of the Group. For more details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 14 July 2021.

* For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE S LT

Prospects

The property management segment continues to be the key
sources of income for the Group. Management believes that
property management industry in China will continue to grow
steadily and bring stable income to the Group. While exploring
new property management projects, the Group will actively
consider expanding this segment through acquisitions.

Despite the hotel operation business was partially opened in
2021, it was still a difficult year for the hotel operation business
and the global tourism industry has been devastated. Although
management believes that demand for hotel will return once the
economy recovers, management expects that travel restrictions,
quarantine and safety concerns will continue to deter people
from travelling for the foreseeable future and that a full recovery
will take several years. After all, management is confident in
hotel operation and will continue to explore suitable business
opportunities, with an aim to deliver substantial returns for
shareholders of the Company through a series of acquisitions
and proposed cooperation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving a high standard of
practices of corporate governance so as to ensure the protection
of shareholders’ interests with better transparency. Save as
disclosed below, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the then effective Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Model code for securities transactions by
directors

The Company has adopted Appendix 10, Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of practice for
carrying out securities transactions by the directors of the
Company. The Company, having made specific enquiries to
all directors of the Company, confirmed that all directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company’s as at the date of this report overall management
is vested in its Board, which comprises six members, coming
from diverse businesses and professional backgrounds. The
biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
under the section “Directors” on pages 88 to 91 of this annual
report. The Board currently comprises executive directors Mr.
Choi Yun Chor (Chairman), Mr. Chen Jian, Mr. Tai Kwok Keung
Kenny and Mr. Lin Junwei, and independent non-executive
directors Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie and Dr. Loke Yu (alias LOKE
Hoi Lam).

The Board meets at least four times annually to review business
development and overall strategic policies.
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To facilitate the operation of the Board, the Board has
established a schedule of matters reserved for its approval.
The specific responsibilities reserved for the Board include (a)
setting the Group’s strategy and dividend policy; (b) approving
budgets, reviewing operational and financial performance; (c)
approving major investments and divestments; (d) reviewing the
internal control system of the Group; (e) ensuring appropriate
management development and succession plans in place; (f)
approving appointments of and remuneration policy for directors
and other senior executives; (g) approving corporate social
responsibility policies; and (h) ensuring effective communication
with shareholders.

For the financial reporting accountability, the Board has an
ultimate responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial
statements. In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the Board has ensured that (a) the generally accepted
accounting standards in Hong Kong have been adopted; (b)
appropriate accounting policies have been used and applied
consistently; and (c) reasonable and prudent judgments and
estimates have been made. Moreover, the Board is not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

Being part of good corporate governance practices, a number
of board committees have been established. These committees
include four corporate governance related committees namely
the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee as well as one ad hoc committee namely
the Independent Board Committee which is responsible for
advising the matters in relation to the continuing connected
transactions. These committees operate within specific terms of
reference as prepared by the Company and report their work and
findings to the Board regularly.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee as a whole is responsible for
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
directors of the Company, monitoring the appointment and
succession planning of directors of the Company and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive directors of the
Company. Each of the executive directors is appointed with no
fixed term of service. The appointment may be terminated by not
less than one months’ written notice or payment in lieu of such
notice. Each of the independent non-executive directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a specific
term of three years and is subject to retirement by rotation
once every three years. And they should be re-appointed at any
annual general meeting of the Company during their term of
office. The appointment may be terminated by not less than one
month’s written notice or payment in lieu of such notice.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, one
third of the directors of the Company are subject to retirement
by rotation every year and any new director appointed to fill
a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general
meeting or the first annual general meeting respectively after
appointment. The Nomination Committee reviews the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board regularly to ensure that the Board has
a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. Where vacancies
on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee will carry out the
selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and other
relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An external
recruitment agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment
and selection process where necessary. The recommendations
of the Nomination Committee are then put to the full Board for
decision.

The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of
the director Mr. Tai Kwok Keung Kenny standing for re-election
at the next forthcoming AGM. The Company’s circular contains
detailed information of the director standing for re-election will be
despatched to shareholders for consideration.
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N A s S A
PEEIaMWS %
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS EFHETER
The attendance records of the directors of the Company at Board (B —F+ZA=+—HLEFER &
Meetings, Audit Committee Meetings, Remuneration Committee NARFESNESTSLH FXEEQY
Meetings, Nomination Committee Meetings and General E FMWEEgeR REZESHRERRE
Meetings during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out R FREumT
below:
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee meeting
EEg ERZEE $MEEE REZEE BRAE
Executive directors BITES
Ms. Yeung So Mui BEgELO 4/4 n/a n/a n/a 11
TER TER TNER
Mr. Choi Yun Chor EBNRE 4/4 n/a n/a n/a 171
TEA TEA TNEA
Mr. Ng Kwai Wah Sunny ® REFLEW 4/4 n/a n/a n/a 1
TER TER TNER
Mr. Chen Jian BREECE 4/4 n/a n/a n/a 171
TNEA TEA TNEA
Mr. Tai Kwok Keung Kenny e 4/4 n/a n/a n/a 1
TER TER TNER
Mr. Lin Junwei MEIERE 4/4 n/a n/a n/a 171
TEA TEA TNEA
Independent non-executive BUkHTES
directors
Dr Loke Yu BEEMEL
(alias Loke Hoi Lam) 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1
Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie Baing+ 4/4 212 11 11 1/1
Mr. Ting Wong Kacee @ TierED 4/4 212 ! il 171
w resigned on 31 March 2022 m RZZEZ=F=-A=+—HFHT
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four board committees, namely,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Independent Board Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
board committees should report to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations made.

A. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises two independent
non-executive directors Dr. Loke Yu (Committee Chairman)
and Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

1. to monitor the integrity of financial reporting of the
Company;

2. 1o review the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group; and

3. to review the corporate governance practices of the
Company.

There were two Audit Committee meetings held for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to discuss and review the
following matters:

1. the 2020 annual report and accounts;
2. the 2021 interim report and accounts;

3. the Group’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

4.  the financial reporting and relevant compliance with
external auditor; and

5. the resignation of Grant Thornton with effect from 22
December 2021.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit
Committee can be viewed on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two
independent non-executive directors Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu
Cherrie and Dr. Loke Yu.

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are:

1. to review the remuneration packages of and
assess the performance of the directors and senior
management;

2. to approve the terms of the executive directors’
service contracts

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration structure; and

4. to review and guide the formulation of the Group’s
remuneration policy for directors and senior
management attributable to performance-driven
compensation commitment as well as market trend
and industry norms.

There was a Remuneration Committee meeting held for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to review the remuneration
packages of directors and senior management according
to the Group’s employment policy, nomination policy,
remuneration policy, and training and development policy.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee can be viewed on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Details of the remuneration to the directors on named
basis and members of senior management by band are
disclosed in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.
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C. Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises two
independent non-executive directors Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu
Cherrie (Committee Chairman) and Dr. Loke Yu.

The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors;

2. 1o review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and to ensure fair and transparent procedures
for the appointment or re-appointment of directors;

3.  to propose the appointment of such candidates to the
Board for consideration; and

4. to review the qualifications of the relevant candidates
for determining the suitability to the Group on the
basis of his/her qualifications, experience and
background.

There was a Nomination Committee meeting held for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to discuss and consider
the following matters:

1.  the composition of the Board with reference to certain
criteria. These criteria included qualifications required
under the Listing Rules or any other relevant laws
regarding characteristics and skills of the directors,
professional ethics and integrity, appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience, as
well as ability to devote sufficient time to the work of
the Board and its committees and to participate in all
Board meetings and shareholders’ meetings;

2. the re-appointment of the retiring directors for
re-election at the previous general meeting;

3. procedures for election of directors and by
shareholders; and

4. independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee can be viewed on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties as required under the CG Code:

1.  todevelop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors and senior
officers of the Group;

3.  toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the codes of conduct
applicable to employees and the directors; and

b. 1o review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board considered
the following corporate governance matters:

1. review of the compliance with the Code Provisions of the
CG Code; and

2. review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and
risk management systems of the Group through the Audit
Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the company
secretary has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the company
secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.
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TRAINING, INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director receives a comprehensive and
formal induction to ensure that he/she has an appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group, his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements, the CG Code of the Company
and the Model Code.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefing and professional development for directors will be
arranged at the expenses of the Company whenever necessary.
The directors are committed to complying with Code Provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code on directors’ training effective from 1 April
2012. All directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
and provided their training records to the Company.

The Separate Roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. YEUNG So Mui and
Mr. CHOI Yun Chor were co-chairmen of the Company. The
Company does not maintain the office of CEO and the duties of
CEO have been taken up by other executive director and senior
management of the Company. As such, the Board considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are comparable to
those in the CG Code.
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Directors’ Independence

There are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s) among members of the Board.

The directors are given access to independent professional
advice at the Group’s expense, when the directors deem it
necessary in order to carry out their responsibilities.

The Board also advocates the participation of independent
non-executive directors and non-executive directors in various
board committees to safeguard objectivity and independence.

The Company has received the confirmation letters from each
of the independent non-executive directors, confirming their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive directors are
independent.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external
advisor of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control system to ensure adequate
control in place to safeguard the Group’s assets and
stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to
address and handle the all significant risks associate with the
business of the Group. The Board would perform annual review
on any significant change of the business environment and
establish procedures to response the risks result from significant
change of business environment. The risk management and
internal control systems are designed to mitigate the potential
losses of the business.
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Management would identify the risks associate with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors
and events which include political, economic, technology,
environmental, social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed
and prioritised based on their relevant impact and occurrence
opportunity. The relevant risk management strategy would be
applied to each type of risks according to the assessment results,
type of risk management strategy has been listed as follow:

— Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

— Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so
as to avoid the risk;

— Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the
risk or allocate to different location or product or market;

— Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third

party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks.
The risk management and internal control system are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has engaged
an external advisory firm to undertake the internal audit
function to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group. There is
no significant deficiency and weakness on the internal control
system which has been identified by the external advisory firm
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 December
2021, the risk management and internal control system
and procedures of the Group, covering all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions were reasonably effective and adequate.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group has put in place the procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information. The
Group complies with requirements of the SFO and the Listing
Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public
as soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls
within any of the safe harbours as stated in the SFO. Before
the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group
ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group
believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the
Group would immediately disclose the information to the public.
The Group is committed to ensure that information contained
in announcements or circulars are not false or misleading as to
a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of
a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and
balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive
and negative facts.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 which reflect true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company and the Group and in compliance with relevant
law and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. The Board is
responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other inside
information announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules.

Following the resignation of Grant Thornton effective on 22
December 2021, the Group appointed Asian Alliance (HK) CPA
Limited as the Group’s external auditor on 12 January 2022. The
statement by Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited regarding their
reporting responsibilities to the shareholders on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 107 to 123 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the fees paid/
payable to the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the auditors to the Group were as follows:

TEERHRES

1% B0 B 7 B

E_E_—F+_A=+-BLFE s
HFEPALEBREZEEIEZERB2E X
N/ ERFZESE 2 BROT

HK$’000

Nature of services REME FHETT

Audit services Z 8RS 1,337
Non-audit services IERZERTS

Other services H b AR FS 287

Total 4B%8 1,624

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company. Any declaration of final
dividends for the year will be subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders. In proposing any dividend pay-out, the
Board shall take into account the following factors:

— the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

— the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

— retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

— the Group’s liquidity position;
— general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have impact on the business or financial

performance and position of the Group; and

— any other factors that the Board deems relevant
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining effective
communications with shareholders. Annual reports and interim
reports provide shareholders with comprehensive information
of the Group’s operational and financial performances; while
general meetings offer a platform for shareholders to state and
exchange views with the Board directly.

The management continually communicates with analysts and
institutional investors and provides them with up-to-date and
comprehensive information regarding the Group’s development.
The Company practices timely dissemination of information
and makes sure its website www.timesuniversal.com contains
the most latest information, including but not limited to annual
reports, interim reports, announcements, monthly returns and
press releases, and is updated in a timely manner to ensure
transparency.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there had been no
significant changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

A.

Convening an Extraordinary General
Meeting by Shareholders

In accordance with section 566 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Companies Ordinance”), shareholder(s) holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition at least 5% of the
voting rights at general meetings of the Company, may
request the directors of the Company to convene an
EGM. The written requisition must state the objects of
the meeting and must be signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned and deposited at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of chairman of the Board or the
Company Secretary. The requisition may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
shareholders concerned.

If the directors of the Company do not within 21 days from
the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene an EGM for a date not more than 28 days after
the date on which the notice convening the EGM is given,
the shareholder(s) concerned, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene an EGM, provided that the EGM
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
general meetings are to be convened by the directors of the
Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in
writing to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong.

The Company Secretary will forward the shareholders’
enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board
committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer
the shareholders’ questions in writing.
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C.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals
at General Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow sections 551 to 554
(written resolutions), section 579 (notice of resolutions),
sections 580 to 583 (statements), section 615, section
616 (resolutions for AGMs) of the Companies Ordinance
for including a resolution at AGM of the Company. The
requirements and procedures are set out as follows:

1. A member of a Company may request the Company
to circulate a resolution that —

(a) may properly be moved; and
(b) is proposed as a written resolution under
section 549(b) of the Companies Ordinance.

If a member requests a Company to circulate a resolution,
the member may request the Company to circulate with the
resolution a statement of not more than 1,000 words on the
subject matter of the resolution.

However, each member may only request the Company to
circulate one such statement with respect to the resolution.

2. A company must circulate a resolution proposed
as a written resolution under section 549(b) of the
Companies Ordinance and any statement mentioned
in section 551(2) of the Companies Ordinance if it
has received requests that it do so from the members
of the Company representing not less than 5% of the
total voting rights of all the members entitled to vote
on the resolution (or a lower percentage specified for
this purpose in the Company’s articles).
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A request —

(a) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form
or in electronic form;

(b) must identify the resolution and any statement
mentioned in section 551(2) of the Companies
Ordinance; and

(c) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it.

If by any provision of the Companies Ordinance
special notice is required to be given of a resolution,
the resolution is not effective unless notice of the
intention to move it has been given to the Company at
least 28 days before the meeting at which it is moved.

The Company must, if practicable, give its members
notice of the resolution at the same time and in the
same manner as it gives notice of the meeting.

If that is not practicable, the Company must give its
members notice of the resolution at least 14 days
before the meeting —

(@) by advertisement in a newspaper circulating
generally in Hong Kong; or

(b) in any other manner allowed by the Company’s
articles.

If, after notice of the intention to move the resolution
has been given to the Company, a meeting is called
for a date 28 days or less after the notice has been
given, the notice is to be regarded as having been
properly given, though not given within the time
required.
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Pursuant to Article 105 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, no person other than a director retiring
at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
directors for election, be eligible for election as
director at any general meeting unless a notice signed
by a member (other than the person to be processed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged at the registered
office of the Company provided that the minimum
length of the period, during which such notice(s) are
given, shall be at least seven days and that the period
for lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT

Reporting Scope

Times Universal Group Holdings Limited (“Times Universal”
or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
the “Group”, “We”, “our” and “us”) are pleased to present the
annual environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) report
(the “Report”). The Report provides an annual update of the
Group’s ESG management approaches, environmental and
social performance and efforts during the period from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period” or “2021"),
unless otherwise stated. For the details of corporate governance,
please refer to the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on page 19 to page 36 of our 2021 annual report.

The Report covers the hotel operation in Victoria, British
Columbia, Canada (i.e. Brentwood Bay Resort (“BBR")
where offers hotel resort and spa services) and the property
management in Chongging (i.e. Nuofute Property Management
Co., Ltd. (“Nuofute Property Management”)), the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), as well as Hong Kong office
where provides administrative support to the Group companies!.
The above scope is defined by whether the Group has direct
ownership over the entities, and there is no significant change in
the reporting scope compared to 2020 ESG Report.

Reporting Standard

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX") as well as adhering to the
“comply or explain” provisions thereof. With the exception of
the provisions that the Group considers are inapplicable to our
business operations or provide partial disclosure, explanations
are illustrated in the corresponding sections.

! During the Reporting Period, a new project, Chongging Haotai
Property Management Limited, has been put into operation from
September 2021, and the environmental and social performance will
be disclosed in the following year.
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Reporting Principles

The Group has complied the Report with the four reporting
principles set out in the ESG Reporting Guide, which are
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency as the basis of
preparation of the Report.

Materiality

° The Group identified the materiality of ESG issues through
stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment.
The details are explained in the section of “Materiality
Assessment”.

Quantitative

° The Group disclosed the information of the standards,
methodologies and source of conversion factors used for
the reporting of emissions and energy consumption. Please
refer to the relevant section in the Report for details.

Balance

° The Report presented the Group’s environmental and social
performance in an impartial basis to provide an objective
reporting disclosure for readers.

Consistency

° The methodology adopted for disclosing key environmental
and social performance indicators is consistent with
that of the previous reporting period. For any changes
in methodologies, the Group has also presented and
explained in detail in corresponding sections.
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ESG GOVERNANCE

ESG Governance Structure

The Group believes that a sound ESG governance structure
will increase its investment value and bring long-term returns
to its stakeholders. To effectively implement the concept of
sustainable development, the Group has established a three-
tier ESG governance framework, composed of the Board of
Directors (the “Board”), the ESG taskforce group and each
subsidiary and department, so as to systematically carry out ESG
management from the governance level of the Board to the ESG
implementation level.

The Board is responsible for the oversight of the Group’s
ESG-related affairs, and has assigned specific duties and
responsibilities to the ESG taskforce group to assist their work
and perform specific tasks. The ESG taskforce group comprises
executive directors as well as the heads and managers from each
subsidiary and department.
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The duties of the ESG taskforce group are to assist the Board in:

° formulating and reviewing the Group’s ESG management
policies, strategies and approaches;

° identifying, reviewing and assessing ESG risks and
opportunities with associated impacts on the Group’s main
businesses, and developing corresponding action plans;

° setting the Group’s ESG goals and objectives in line with
the determined ESG strategies, and reviewing the progress
on achieving the targets on a regular basis;

° monitoring the ESG-related trends, development,
regulations and industry practices, and providing advice on
the ESG strategies;

° coordinating the business and department units to assist
in the preparation of the annual ESG report, including
carrying out stakeholder engagement activities, conducting
materiality assessment, collecting, consolidating and
analysing the ESG performance data; and

° reviewing and approving the annual ESG report.

Risk Management

A proper and effective risk management and internal control
system is of paramount importance for business sustainable
development. The Group has established sound internal control
mechanism and engage external consultants to identify, assess,
analysing and monitor a wide range of risks (including the ESG
and climate-related risks) associate with the Group’s businesses.

Management shoulder the responsibilities for identifying risks
and opportunities (including ESG-related risks) and evaluating
the impacts of each risk on the business operations of the Group.
Specific measures are taken to detect and prevent misconduct,
such as:

(i)  establish and maintain financial service provider records
and customer identification requirements;

(ii)  request for reporting suspicious financial transactions and
currency cross-border movements; and

(iii) establish an agency dedicated to ensuring compliance with
all the acts.
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Moreover, any changes of risks will be reported to the Board
promptly so as to determine practical and effective actions for
risk control and mitigation.

To ensure the effectiveness of the risk control systems and the
risk management practices, the Board performs annual review
and revise accordingly in a timely manner in order to deal with
the changes in business environment and corporate strategies.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group is fully aware of the close relationship between
stakeholders and the development of its business. The
preparation of the Report, with the participation of different
stakeholders, prompts the Group to better comprehend its
current level of ESG management. To understand our key
stakeholders’ needs and expectations, we have set up various
communication channels to maintain constant communication
with them and improve our initiatives and strategies accordingly.
The communication channels we adopted to stakeholder
engagement are illustrated as follows.
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Public tendering
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Supplier performance evaluation
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Employee meeting

EEE:

Annual performance review
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Employee training
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Team building activities
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Materiality assessment helps us to prioritise and highlight the
material ESG issues to both the Group and our stakeholders. The
results of the materiality assessment guide us in formulating a
clear direction and roadmap for ESG management and provide
insights into our strategic decision-making.

We adopt a two-year cycle in conducting materiality assessment,
with a quantitative assessment involving both internal
stakeholders in the first year, and an internal review in the
next year. For the last year materiality assessment, we invited
our internal stakeholders (e.g. the senior management and
employees) to share their perspectives in ESG and rate the
materiality of ESG topics towards the stakeholders themselves
as well as the Group’s business operation through online
questionnaire surveys.

During the Reporting Period, we conducted an internal review
on the 26 identified ESG topics and the results of the materiality
assessment undertook last year, with reference to the latest
HKEX ESG Reporting Guide and global reporting standards (e.g.
GRI). Meanwhile, we took into account the current business
operations and development, market trends and local policies
and regulations. As a result, the 10 highly important ESG topics
are determined same as last year, illustrating in the table below:

Material ESG Topics

BRI g MERTRE

EEMEFE

EEUETERMEEELEER AR
SEMBPINFHEFREBLEEANERE - #
ghERME -  ERMFANERAEE I
B EAMAIRE - (e REIRE IR MM AR
» WARRPIRBEOR R LR -

AEESMELET - REEENG  F—F4E
TTARRR D EN BTG XESE _FETA
MEE - L FNEEUNGET  AEEH
AR E (PINERERERES) nER
FHRE HEREENEL WEBHLMA
sHE - HERE  HENERFHEAENE
BE REAREEEKEENERNE -

RBEERN > RPLXBSRINE BB AR
B e kERAREESI RERMEED (1
GRI) » HIE#AIMN26ERE - e hERTE
MEFHETHES T HERETAPESE -
AR ZEMEETENMERZEMER - M
BBEMEMABERER - Bt - BEH10
EEEFHRMEFTEBRE LERERE
B MTIRATR

EENRR  HERERSBHE

Employment rights and benefits
RN KA
Employee recruitment and retention
EEHENEE
Employee engagement
EELHEE

Occupational health and safety
BERRRZE
Elimination of child and forced labour
HRRE T ReaH|s4 T
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OUR PEOPLE

Employment Practices

As a property management service and hospitality service
provider, employees play a crucial role in delivering exceptional
services to our customers and sustaining our strategic business
development. Hence, the Group endeavours to create a
collaborative, motivating and inclusive working environment
to our employees, with learning opportunities for career and
personal growth. The Group has formulated and implemented
a set of human resources management policies, to recognise
employees with proper compensation and benefits and in
order to comply with all relevant labour laws and regulations in
the regions where it operates, including but not limited to, the
Labour Law of the PRC ({FRZE AR EFE&E)E)), the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC ({1 AR LMBILENEFE)), the
Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors ({ R F AREE)),
the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour (¢(Z£ |k
FAZETIRE)), the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57) of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) {{B{E &),
the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608){ &K T & &) of
HKSAR and the Employment Standards Acts of British Columbia,
Canada. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any breaches of related local labour laws and regulations.

Equal opportunity, diversity and anti-
discrimination

The Group aims to build a talent team featured with diversity,
equity and inclusion. Therefore, the Group has formulated
standardised management procedures for employee recruitment
and staff performance review in each business segment
to ensure the fair governance of recruitment, transfer and
promotion, performance appraisal, wage practices and dismissal.
We select talents based on their educational background, work
experience, qualifications, ethics, personality and competencies
during the interviews, and we never discriminate on the ground
of gender, age, race, religion, nationality, disability and any other
classification protected under the relevant laws. Moreover, any
form of bullying and/or harassment is not acceptable or tolerated
across our business operations. All employees are obliged to
obey the Group’s policies in equal employment opportunity,
diversity and anti-discrimination.
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Labour Standards

The Group attaches great importance to human rights and
interests, and strictly prohibits child labour, bonded labour
and forced labour in our business operations. To be specific,
we do not allow employment of any person under the age of
15 in Canada or any person under 16 across our property
management business in China. To ensure our candidates meet
the legal working age and are eligible to work locally, the human
resources department of each business segment conducts
comprehensive background checks for successful candidates
during the recruitment process. Candidates are required to
submit official documents, such as their identities, and work visa
or permit, so as to verify their information provided. In addition,
our employees sign the labour contract, where their legitimate
labour rights and interests are clarified, with the Group only on a
voluntary basis to prevent forced labour. Once any child or forced
labour is found, the Group will investigate the case thoroughly
to prevent reoccurrence. The Group also requires its suppliers
to follow the labour standards in business dealings to guarantee
no employment of child and forced labour, thereby decreasing
the legal risks of the Group. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not identify any violation of the use of child and forced
labours.

Remuneration and Welfare

The Group offers competitive remuneration and welfare
packages to attract and retain talents. The package composition
is clearly defined in the internal human resource management
procedures, employee handbook and employee contract. Apart
from basic salary and post salary, we provide our employees
with a wide range of benefits, such as medical insurance, life
insurance plan, mandatory provident fund, “five insurance and
one fund”, as well as allowances and subsidies for transportation
and accommodation, depending on the position categorises. In
addition to statutory leaves, our employees are entitled to paid
annual leave, sick leave, marriage leave, maternity/paternity
leave, bereavement leave, breastfeeding leave and jury duty
leave. Moreover, we prepare cash gifts for birthday, marriage and
condolence as a gesture of care and goodwill.
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To ensure sufficient rest for employees, we adopt an eight-hour
standard work system at the headquarter of Nuofute Property
Management and Hong Kong office. Each property management
centre is arranged irregular working shifts and/or integrated
working hours varied in different posts, with a maximum of 40
hours per week to fit into the purpose of actual business needs.
When necessary to arrange employees to work overtime due
to the occurrence of emergency and business needs, overtime
compensation will be granted to eligible staff under the labour
laws.

For employees in our hotel operation, standard remuneration and
welfare packages, including paid leaves, insurance premiums,
retirement plan and overtime pay pursuant to the Employment
Standards Acts, are outlined in the employee culture handbook
and employee contract. Staff perks, such as discounted hotel
stays, spa services, free paddle sport rentals, meal allowances
and industry discounts, are granted to eligible staff as rewards for
their contribution. The employees’ working hours vary depending
on seasonal factors and business levels. Scheduled work shifts
and rest days are offered to help our employees maintain work-
life balance.

To maintain core competitiveness, the Group reviews the
employee remuneration and welfare packages on a regular basis
with reference to its peers in the industry, employee performance
evaluation result and the prevailing regional market level. We
also conduct the performance appraisal for employees in a just
manner, and the results are linked to remuneration rewards
and promotion, so as to promote employees’ work initiatives.
Employees with excellent performance may award salary
increment, promotion and/or discretionary bonus to recognise
their achievement.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

RERBEIRIRIKE  AEERHERFY
FERRANEBRAZTEIT/VNRRELE
B o BEMEEET OLZHAE RN TIEIDR
R/ SR ECZE GRS TERRE - 885%% 40
PR AREEREBRE - HAZZBRL
EBHEMALHHEESERE TIE - AREKR
BETERASERBE TR TMMLE

RBEELLENREEMS - REH RN
B BRERE(RERER) OEHES - R
& ORIREEIRNILE - #YIRE B SUEF
LEBEHF - AEETERAERE TIRMH
ETRAM  fInBEEEES  KERE %
EHEMBRUME  BREMMITENN - ZEK
FWER - BENTIERHIUARFEERZ
REBKFE - AEEREERETE N HILL
KRB R - RS TERE RN TE -

RRFZOEFES  AEE2ERX - EEE
MG SR LRITHETHKE - E R E
BHMEENFE - ZAMAEMH 8 THETT
BMEGL MEZEREHINRENE T8
9 FEAREB T TIEERIE - RIREED
EEREREING - B R HBIBIEL - A
REBERREL ©

BARRERZRERAH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Employee Communication

The Group highly values the voices of employees, and puts
great efforts in maintaining open and constant communication
with our employees in each business segment. Hence, we have
developed various communication channels, including meeting,
performance review interview, email, e-newsletter and employee
engagement survey, to better understand their concerns and
expectations at work. Based on the employee feedback and
survey result, we may optimise the current employment practices
working conditions accordingly and address their needs
promptly, so as to enhance employee satisfaction.

In addition, staff complaint and grievance mechanism is in place
and allows our employees to report any complaints in workplace,
grievance and conflicts at work verbally or textually. The relevant
departments will take proper action and deal with the reported
issues in a timely manner.
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Employee Profile

As of 31 December 2021, the Group has 254 full-time
employees and 71 part-time employees. The breakdown of
the total workforce divided by gender, age group, employment
category and geographical region is indicated as below.

1 St

BE-T-—4+-A=1—0 FEEHE254
ZRBEER7IERBES - BT FRE
Bl BIER RHE S EHEE TRBSH
o

Total workforce by gender

RIERIBID IS THRR

42%
58%

= Male =Female

B i

Total workforce by age group

BEFRAREID VB TR

Zsr \27%

45%

= < age 30 = Age 30 to 50 = > age 50
30m T 30-505% 508 A £

Total workforce by employee category

RSB DNE THR

7%

.‘%

85%

= Senior Management SREEE
= Midde Management FREEE
= General Staff —RET

Total workforce by geographical region

wiES MBI NE TR

3%

36% '

61%

= Hong Kong = Mainland China = Canada
BE HE R it mEXx
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Health and Safety

The health and safety of employees are of utmost importance
to the operation of the Group. As a result, the Group has set up
a clear safety and health policy and management procedures
in each business segment in achieving “zero accident” in the
workplace as our ultimate goal.

Regarding the property management services, the Group has
implemented an I1SO 45001:2018 certified occupational health
and safety management system to systematically identify and
manage the safety risks and hazards in the workplace. We
determine the potential risks that may occur in the working
environment and the possible consequences resulted from the
risks, and then the safety risk assessment is carried out with
corresponding mitigation measures so as to minimise workplace
injuries. Furthermore, we have established an emergency
response working team led by management, and have outlined
emergency preparedness and response procedures for our
employees to follow and tackle different emergencies, such as
fire, flooding, violent affray, theft, and equipment failure.

In case of any incident and accident happened, we will launch a
comprehensive investigation according to the incident, accident
handling and investigation procedures, to find out the root
causes of incident/accident and proactively take rectification
based on the findings. When appropriate, the Group will improve
the existing safety management approaches and practices in
order to prevent the recurrence of similar cases.

Concerning the hotel operation business, we have established
an Environmental Occupational Health and Safety (“EOHS”)
programme with a series of policies, procedures and safety
guidelines for our employees to observe so as to reduce the
safety risks and hazards in performing our daily operation, such
as kitchen, front desk, spa and so on. To ensure the effective
implementation of the programme, we have constructed a
health and safety committee in BBR, and they are responsible
for arranging regular meetings to review the adequacy and
effectiveness of EOHS programme, the root causes of incidents
or accidents that have recently occurred and/or dealt with any
concerns affecting the wellness of the staff and guests.
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Regular safety inspections by each department are arranged
to ensure the abovementioned safety control measures are
effectively implemented and maintained, as well as fostering
a safe working environment. We also organise safety training
sessions and emergency drills in terms of workplace hazards,
chemical and hazardous substance handling, and fire safety to
raise employees’ safety awareness. Additionally, external training
programmes are offered to our employees to increase their
knowledge and skills in emergency response and evacuation.
Employees who perform high-risk activities, such as electrical
work and elevator maintenance work, are required to attend
specific training courses so as to become a qualified person
before commencing the work.

Response to the Coronavirus disease
(“COVID-19") pandemic

To safeguard the health and safety of our employees and guests,
the Group keeps track of and strictly follows all government
policies, regulations and guidelines as well as the health advice
related to COVID-19. The key preventive measures adopted in
our business segments to lower the risks of the exposure and
transmission of COVID-19 are highlighted as follows:

° Outline the safety protocols for COVID-19 to each
department and require all staff to strictly observe the
safety working procedures and cleanliness and hygiene
measures during their shifts;

° Require employees to undertake a daily health check/body
temperature to ensure they are fit to work prior to the start
of their work shift, and to maintain good personal hygiene;

° Report to the department if employees have COVID-19
symptoms as soon as possible;

° Maintain adequate epidemic prevention materials in our
operations and provide appropriate personal protective
equipment (“PPE") (e.g., gloves, goggles/face shield) based
on the work duties or the risk assessment for cleaning and
disinfection;

° Organise training sessions and emergency drills to frontline
staff on new enhanced hygiene protocols, including
cleaning and disinfection working guidelines, performing
hand hygiene and avoiding touching their eyes, mouth,
nose, ears and face;
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° Wear surgical mask when employees need to enter the
tenant/resident/guest spaces;

° Post up signage and notice to remind employees on
hand hygiene, cough etiquette and COVID-19 infection
prevention; and

° Keep social distancing when having meals and meetings.

The Group has complied with all the relevant health and safety
laws and regulations, including but not limited to Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) of HKSAR, the Law of
the PRC on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases
(PE AR KFMBEBLZE R AEYand the Occupational Health
and Safety Regulation in British Columbia, Canada. During
the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with the relevant health and safety laws and
regulations.
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Development and Training

The Group strives to create training and development
opportunities to its employees and help them realise their career
and personal goals. The Group has provided a variety of internal
universal and topic-specific training programmes for employees
at different career levels, as well as external training courses to
enhance their professional expertise and technical skills.
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For the property management services, we have developed
an annual training plan based on our employees’ needs and
feedback collected. We offer in-house and external training
courses to equip the employees with technical knowledge
and soft skills for delivering excellent quality of services and
meeting customers’ needs. Orientation training is arranged to
our newcomers with the introduction of corporate culture and
regulations, service etiquette, basic safety knowledge in property
management, specific job functions, staff code of conduct and
staff benefits and welfare to assist them in adapting to their
positions. Various types of on-job training, covering the topics,
among others, elevator safety management, maintenance of high
voltage electricity, fire safety control and monitoring, corporate
management and leadership skills, customer services, building
services and facilities maintenance and cleaning working
procedures, are provided to our employees to improve their
work efficiency and performance. To encourage our employees
to enrich their professional knowledge in their leisure time,
we provide subsidies for external training and seminars held
by authorised institutions. Besides, the Group continuously
reviews the training outcomes and standards through soliciting
staff feedback after training, in order to ensure the training
effectiveness, thereby optimising the training arrangement
and further determining tailor-made training sessions for our
employees to suit their ongoing development.

To guarantee the service quality of the hotel operation business,
we have formulated a series of training manuals for different
roles with various duties, such as front of house, housekeeping,
marina, etc. The hotel policies and the essential knowledge
related to each job are stated with details, and the procedures
of each guest service are standardised to ensure our employees
respond to guests in an appropriate and helpful manner. In
addition, we lay great emphasis on employees’ individual
development and team spirit, and have integrated these training
programmes into the culture handbook. For example, “The
Human Element” and “The Implicit Career Search” aims to
assist our employees in discovering and clarifying their career
purposes and aspirations, as well as improving their ways to
work with others for greater accomplishment of goals and better
individual, team and organisational performance. Furthermore, a
13-month career development program, “The Emergent Leaders
Program”, is designed to develop individual's technical skills
and leadership abilities through coaching and goal setting. All
the training programmes are mandatory to the managerial staff,
while they are open for all employees in order to create space
for career growth and fulfilment and obtain greater personal
satisfaction.
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Total hours of employee training!

EEE AR

By gender
REBIE 5

Male

M

Female

Z

By employee category
RESERIE D
Senior management
=RERE

Middle management

hARERE

General staff
—fMET

Note:

L The data of employee training covers the business segment of property
management service and hotel operation only.

OUR BUSINESS OPERATION

Services Responsibility

The Group always upholds the management attitude of pursuing
excellence in the service quality, and continuously improves the
comprehensive experience for our customers, with an aim to
enhance customer satisfaction. The Group strictly complies with
the Product Quality Law of the PRC ({FEARKFMBERE S
7£)), the Law of the PRC on the Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests ((FPEARLMBEEERSIREE)) and
the Business Practices and Consumer Protection Act. During
the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance regarding health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to our service provision.
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Quality Management

Adhering to our property management service philosophy
of “customer first, service with heart and five-star service to
accompany you in your lifetime (2FZ + « BURBEER
RIS A —4 )", we strive to build a warm, harmonious and
comfortable environment and offer customer-oriented, sincere
and attentive property management services in exceeding
customers’ growing needs and expectations.

Nuofute Property Management has established property
management procedures with high service standards for
residential, industrial and commercial properties in various
aspects, including customer reception, security management,
engineering maintenance and environmental management.
Moreover, a quality management system accredited with the
international standard of ISO 9001:2015 is in place, and the
quality management department is responsible for the review,
verification, monitor and maintenance of the system as well as
quality inspection. Corrective and prevention actions will be
put forward according to the review results, so as to improve
the system, thereby providing services of higher quality and
enriching our customers’ experience.

In addition, we organise regular topic-specific training and
morning briefing sessions to facilitate our employees to better
understand the evolving needs of our customers and equip
necessary knowledge and communication skills in upholding
professional and flawless services. We also introduce the latest
technologies, such as the internet, property management system
and artificial intelligence to improve our service efficiency. For
instance, the upgrade of the smart parking lot in Forebase
Convention International Building helps resolve the problem
of traffic congestion in peak hours and provide smart and
convenient services to our customers.
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With the mission of embellishing the lives of our guests and
staff as well as promoting wellness and relaxation in the hotel
operation business, the Group is dedicated to offering our guests
a unique, extraordinary and memorable experience with joyfully
graceful hospitality. We have formulated a set of internal guest
service manuals to standardise the quality of our committed
services, such as greetings, telephone etiquettes and attitude
in customer care, in order to attract more guest return visits
and comply with the applicable laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Hotel Keepers Act. Meanwhile, we offer
a full range of featured spa packages, and all spa treatments
are served by our team of exceptional aestheticians and spa
practitioners to ensure the attentive and intuitive spa services are
provided and maintained.

Customer Satisfaction

We highly value our customers’ feedback, which is crucial
for us to understand customers’ concerns and expectations,
thus driving us to explore new opportunities for continuous
improvement on service efficiency and quality.

We have developed customer satisfaction management
procedures for the property management services to monitor
and analyse the level of customer satisfaction. Apart from
regular tenant visits, meetings and workshops, we conduct
annual customer satisfaction surveys to evaluate our service
performance and obtain their opinions and suggestions on
our services, so that we can take corresponding measures to
overcome our downsides and raise our services quality.
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To manage negative feedback efficiently, we have set up
comprehensive customer complaint handling procedures for
both main businesses. Customers are able to contact us directly
and indirectly through different channels, such as phone calls,
letters, online platforms and media interviews. Upon receipt of
any customer complaints regarding customer service, service
quality and/or facility operation deficiencies, we record the
details of complaint issues and conduct investigation to verify
and confirm complaint cases. Then the responsible person
or department will determine effective solutions and take the
remedial actions in a timely manner to ensure that the received
customer complaints are properly resolved and our customers
are satisfied. In particular, we adopt a compensation mechanism
for the hotel services. Discounts and complimentary gift cards
will be offered for apology. During the Reporting Period, we
received a total of 178 complaints in hotel operation related to
guest rooms, food and beverage and spa treatment services,
and all cases have been addressed, while no complaints were
received in the operation of property management services.

Customer Health and Safety

We always give top priority to the health and safety of our
customers. We have implemented a series of customised
measures on daily operation and the pandemic according to
business nature, so as to safeguard our customers effectively.

Property Management Services

We have set up an engineering team, comprised of experienced
engineers and technicians with relevant qualifications, to arrange
regular facility inspections and maintenance on the building
services and equipment, fire safety equipment and property
facilities to ensure they are functioned properly and prevent
the occurrence of incidents and accidents. We also maintain
daily security services, including routine security patrols, visitor
registration and entrance gate control, to prevent crime and
suspicious people entering our managed properties. Meanwhile,
we have developed emergency response plans and conducted
regular emergency drills for our security guards to ensure that
they have adequate awareness and knowledge to cope with
emergency situations.
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To minimise the risk of spreading COVID-19 in our managed
properties, we have adopted the following preventive and control
measures:

° Implement “closed-off” management in our managed
premises in accordance with the requirements of the
District Pandemic Prevention and Control headquarters;

° Clean and disinfect frequently touched surfaces and areas
with frequent access by members of the public, such as
washrooms, escalators, corridors, lifts garage and lobby
entrance, for infection prevention;

° Require in-out register and body temperature check for all
persons and vehicles that enter the premises at the only
entrance of buildings;

° Provide adequate hand hygiene facilities at the only main
entrances of buildings and receptions;

° Place special garbage bins for mask disposal to prevent the
virus transmission;

° Maintain good ventilation by regularly monitoring the fresh
air ventilation system and cleaning the air conditioning
systems;

° Provide regular indoor disinfection value-added service
for office tenants to ensure the environmental hygiene
standards in their workplace are fulfilled;

° Put up signages, posters and publicity notices in the
premises to ensure all customers and visitors are aware of
precautionary measures; and

° Conduct regular inspections and report the situations
of infection control work to the owners’ committee and
governmental departments to combat the COVID-19
disease together.
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Hotel Operation

The facility management team takes the responsibility to arrange
regular inspections and maintenance on property facilities,
such as elevators and fire safety equipment, etc., in BBR to
eliminate safety hazards for our guests as possible. Due to the
provision of dining, meeting and banquet services, food safety
is one of the major concerns. As such, our food and beverage
team has formulated a kitchen manual to standardise the food
service offered in our hotel resort and outline the best practices
for food handlers regarding the food storage, food hygiene
and food handling according to the applicable local laws and
regulations. The whole team has been well trained to guarantee
they have complete knowledge of the food product preparation,
food serving and food hygiene. The managerial staff of food
and beverage team carries out inspections on a regular basis to
ensure vigorous control on food handling and kitchen sanitary.

To minimise the transmission and spread of COVID-19, we
strictly followed all government regulations and guidelines,
provincial restrictions order and direction of the Provincial Health
Officer under the Public Health Act. We have made strategic
prevention plans and adjusted the operating hours of our hotel,
restaurant, marina and spa services in which go above and
beyond provincial guidelines, with an aim to limit the exposure
of COVID-19 while upholding our quality of service and fostering
joyful and experiences to our guests in a safest manner. Besides,
the COVID-19 response plans and our internal safety protocols
with control measures are in place to enhance the cleaning
and sanitisation within the hotel premises and ensure a safe
environment provided for our guests during their stays. Some
key precautionary measures adopted in BBR to safeguard our
guests’ safety are illustrated as follows:

o Require our guests to declare their recent health status
and travel history upon check-in. Any guests who exhibit
COVID-19 related symptoms will be asked to return until
they are well;

° Set up hand sanitising stations throughout BBR and
encourage our guests to sanitise their hands frequently;

° Keep distancing requirements between guests (e.g.
furniture arrangement, installation of appropriate plexiglass
barriers, and tapping line on the floor in front of the front
desk, etc.) to reduce contact;
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° Request all guests and employees to wear a mask or face
covering in all public spaces at all time and sanitise their
hands as they enter the building;

° Increase cleaning protocols in both public spaces and
guest rooms. High touch point areas and soft surface in
rooms are also sanitised/steamed on a routine basis;

° Enhance the cleaning procedures by our housekeeping
team in between each guest’s stay and implement a 24-
hour waiting period in between one party’s departure and
the next guest’s arrival;

° Display signages and posters throughout BBR to raise
guests’ awareness of the importance of COVID-19 infection
prevention;

o Alter/limit the number of guests for check in/check out the
hotel and the maximum capacity of spa and dining services
and wellness facilities to minimise the risk of virus spread
of COVID-19; and

° Wipe and sanitise the equipment of shared workstations,
key cards and pens before and after use.

Protection of Data Privacy and Intellectual
Property Rights

The Group attaches great importance to information security
and data privacy, and strictly abides by the relevant laws and
regulations, includinsfined the confidential information and
outlined the confidentiality obligations in the employee handbook
and employee contracts. All employees strictly exercise their due
care regarding the collection and use of personal information of
customers to ensure they only collect the essential information for
property management operation and hotel day-to-day operation,
such as guests’ certain preferences for the hotel services. All the
customer data is securely kept in our internal system with access
control and managed by designated personnel of corresponding
department to prevent unnecessary accidental information
leakage, processing or other use. Employees who review
and copy the contents and files of customer data due to the
operational needs must obtain prior approval by the management
and oblige the confidential requirements. Moreover, employees
are not allowed to disclose and communicate any information of
the Group, tenants, residents and guests, including the business
plans, financial budget plans, pricing, client information and
contact, etc., to unauthorised external parties or the media
during and after their employment.
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To prevent infringement of intellectual property rights, the Group
strictly conforms to the intellectual property laws of PRC, HKSAR
and Canada. All the software in use is legitimate and with license
agreements. We also pay careful attention to marketing-related
issues to better secure the customer rights and interests. We
ensure the information published in the marketing materials and
promotion brochures are accurate, factual and unbiased, as well
as compliance with the applicable provincial and federal laws in
marketing promotion.

Business Integrity and Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to upholding the highest standard of
business integrity, and has zero-tolerance on corruption, fraud,
money laundering, bribery and extortion. The Group strictly
complies with the relevant laws and regulations in the operating
regions, including but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap. 201) of HKSAR, the Criminal Law of the PRC,
the Anti-money Laundering Law of the PRC and the provisions
of the Combating Crimes (Money Laundering) and Terrorist
Financing Act. Our employees are forbidden from soliciting and/
or accepting any advantages, such as gifts, entertainment and
commission, etc., directly or indirectly. Additionally, we have
set up the whistle blowing mechanism and grievance system
with clear reporting channels, (e.g. reporting mailbox, e-mail)
in each business segment. Employees are encouraged to
report any illegal act or potential misconducts to the designated
management personnel, and the identity of the whistle blower
will be kept in secret to protect against any unfair dismissal,
victimisation and reprisal. In event of any case upon receipt,
we will handle and investigate the reported case thoroughly in a
timely manner and report the results to the top management.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering in the regions we operate
and there was no legal case regarding corrupt practices brought
against the Group or our employees. To further raise employees’
awareness of business integrity and anti-corruption, we plan to
arrange relevant training in the coming year.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group strives to maintain mutually beneficial collaboration
with our suppliers and contractors as their products and services
provided have a direct impact on our service quality and
competitive advantages in the industry.

The Group has established a stringent supplier management
system to standardise the selection, engagement, performance
evaluation of the new and existing suppliers and service
contractors. When assessing the qualification and competency
of the suppliers and service contractors, we always take
environmental and social risks into account. We conduct a
thorough inspection of their legal compliance, management
level, product and service quality, financial stability, corporate
reputation and sustainability performance, and then determine
the on-list approved suppliers. We give priority to local
suppliers with good track records in environmental and safety
management when possible, thus reducing the carbon emissions
of material transportation and minimising the adverse impact on
the environment and the society. In addition, we arrange regular
performance evaluation (at least once a year) to our existing
suppliers and services contractors from four aspects, which
are product quality, delivery capability, price level and services
quality, in order to ensure their product and service quality and
performance are up to standards. For the suppliers and service
contractors who consecutively fail to meet our standards, we will
terminate the business cooperation.

To further guarantee and better monitor the social responsibilities
and commitment to environmental protection of our suppliers
and service contractors, we clarify our requirements of ESG-
related issues, including environmental protection, health and
safety and business ethics in the service contracts and require
them to maintain proper management systems and control
measures among their business activities.

The Group is committed to open and fair procurement practices
and advocating green procurement. We require the departments
in different business segments to obtain adequate quotations
for cost and performance comparison to ensure the most cost-
effective products are chosen. The stock of existing products
on hand is also checked regularly to avoid unnecessary waste.
Furthermore, we aim at selecting and purchasing environmental
friendly products and services, such as products with energy-
efficient labels, high recycled materials and zero/low chemical or
toxic substances during installation or use.
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As of 31 December 2021, the Group has engaged 44 suppliers
and service contractors in total. The number of suppliers and
service contractors by geographical region is shown below:

Suppliers? by geographical region
R B 5 dl o 2 AR 2
Mainland China — Chongqing

HER -
Canada - Victoria
EK - %R
Ireland
EHEW
2 The scope of suppliers only covers the number of direct suppliers of

the business of property management and hotel operation.

OUR ENVIRONMENT

The Group firmly believes that environmental protection is one
of the most critical prerequisites for sustainable development
and long-term business success. Therefore, the Group has
formulated a series of environmental management policies
and procedures in managing emissions, waste, use of natural
resources and climate issues in a responsible manner, so
as to mitigate the negative impacts on the environment and
advocate clean, comfortable and environmental-friendly
operations. For instance, Nuofute Property Management has
implemented an environmental management system with 1SO
14001:2015 certification to manage the environmental issues
and performance in a well-planned manner and continually seek
opportunities for improvement.

The Group has complied with the applicable environmental laws
and regulations, including but not limited to the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC, the Environmental Protection Tax Law
of the PRC, the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap.354) of HKSAR
and the Environmental Management Act in British Columbia,
Canada. in the regions where we locate. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not aware of material breaches of
relevant laws and regulations relating to the air and greenhouse
gas (“GHG”) emission, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste.
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Emissions

The air emissions generated in our business segments are mainly
from the exhausted gas from fuel-powered stationary plants
and motor vehicles and the cooking fumes in the hotel resort.
To reduce the air pollution, the Group tends to select clean and
superior fuels for all fuel-driven stationary plants and company
vehicles, and encourages green transportation. To ensure the
vehicles work at high efficient mode, we assign specific staff to
be responsible for regular maintenance and monitor of the total
amount and concentration of the pollutants. We have installed
the pollution control equipment, such as grease filters and range
hoods in the kitchens of hotel resort, to cut down the cooking
fumes emissions to the surrounding environment.

The main sources of the Group’s GHG emissions are the
fuel combustion from stationary equipment (e.g. boilers and
generators) and vehicles owned by the Group (“Scope 1
emission”) and the consumption of purchased electricity (“Scope
2 emission”). The majority of our GHG emissions are directly
linked to the energy use in our day-to-day operation in each
business segment, and the management measures adopted
to control the emission are further explained under the section
of “Energy Use”. During the Reporting Period, the total GHG
emissions of the Group is 3,793.68 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent (“tCOe").

Waste Management

The Group acknowledges the detrimental effects of inappropriate
dumping of waste on the environment. As such, we have
formulated waste management procedures and working
guideline in each business segment to manage and handle
both hazardous and non-hazardous waste generated in our
daily operation, with the application of 3R waste management
principles (Reduce, Reuse and Recycle).
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The hazardous waste generated by the Group principally consists
of light tubes/bulbs, dry batteries, waste fire extinguishers and
containers with waste paint and detergent consumed during our
operations of property management and hospitality services. All
the hazardous waste is properly segregated by specific staff and
consigned to the qualified waste collectors for further handling.
Non-hazardous waste is mainly produced in our managed
premises and BBR, including general waste, paper, plastic,
construction and demolition waste, oil and grease and used
amenities. To reduce waste at source, we limit the use of single-
use disposable items, such as paper cups, plastic utensils and
containers, regularly review the stock records and analyse the
amount of materials used in service provision in order to prevent
the unnecessary waste of materials. Besides, we make full use of
materials like single-side printed paper, envelops, folders and so
on, and set up recycling facilities, such as sorting bins, nearby
the working area for waste recycling. All the harmless waste is
properly collected, sorted in recyclable and non-recyclable waste
and then handled by qualified waste collection companies for
recycling and disposal.

Use of Resources
Energy Use

Gasoline, electricity, kerosene and natural gas are the major
types of energy consumed in business operations of the Group.
Gasoline is the fuel of the Group’s vehicles, and electricity and
kerosene are mainly supplied to building services and lighting
in our managed properties and our resort, while natural gas
is used by the boilers for heat generation. To decrease energy
consumption and enhance energy efficiency, the Group has
taken various saving measures and continually looks for energy
saving opportunities, which are highlighted as below:

° Install and replace conventional lighting with energy-
efficient LED lights;

° Replace the old or malfunctioned building facilities and
equipment with high energy-efficient models and searching
for higher energy-efficient models when new purchasing;

° Carry out regular maintenance and commissioning of the

building plants and equipment to ensure the machinery
maintains the optimal function and energy efficiency;
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° Develop the equipment switching schedules to regulate
the central air-conditioning systems, lighting systems and
elevator systems based on the operational needs and user
utilisation rate in daytime and night-time;

o Switch off the office appliances,
conditioning when they are not in use;

lighting and air-

° Maintain the room temperature at comfort level about 24-
26 °C; and

° Conduct monthly, quarter and annual review on electricity
consumption of each department, and set energy saving
targets according to the analysis results.

Water Use

Water is the foundation of the smooth operation of every
business, and everyone shall take steps to save this finite and
valuable resource. As a responsible corporate, the Group puts
great efforts in water conservation during the daily operation
of each business segment by adopting various water-saving
measures. We install water appliances (e.g. water faucets and
toilets, etc.) with high water efficiency and maintain regular
checks and maintenance of the water plumbing and flushing
systems in our managed buildings to reduce the water use,
prevent water leakage and ensure water quality and safety. Our
BBR provides bedding change card and encourages our guests
to reuse bed linens and towels during their stay so as to lower
the water consumption for laundry. Regular inspections on water
facilities and irrigation system are conducted in BBR to ensure
the equipment and systems are functioned normally and no
occurrence of water dripping and leakage. Furthermore, we
have implemented the differential water pricing policy issued by
the government in PRC to stimulate water conservation. We are
also dedicated to promoting water saving to raise our employees
and tenants’ awareness. During the Reporting Period, the Group
was not aware of any water sourcing problem in our business
segments.
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The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to offering high quality services
and simultaneously maintaining the balance between
operational efficiency and environmental protection. Apart
from implementing the environmental management system
certified with ISO 14001 standards and/or relevant management
approaches in our property management segment, the Group
continues to arrange employee trainings and make joint efforts
in alleviating the negative impacts on the environment in
our operations by enhancing our employees’ awareness on
environmental protection and resource conservation.

To manage the possible noise nuisance arising from the building
facilities, equipment operation and fitting out in our managed
buildings, we have set out the working instruction of renovation
activities for both tenants and service providers to follow. For
example, all the renovation and building enhancement works
can only be allowed to carry out in designated hours (e.g. during
specific time period or during non-office hours) to minimise
disturbance to another occupants. Regular inspections are
conducted by the property management team to ensure all
parties strictly abide by the regulations and maintain the clean
environment to all the tenants and residents. Besides, we have
implemented practical engineering solutions such as replacing
the noisier equipment and machinery to low-noise ones and
installing the noise enclosure to the noise equipment to reduce
noise level.

Climate Change

Climate change has currently emerged as one of the most urgent
environmental issues in the world. As a shared responsibility
across all sectors, both China and Canada have acceded to the
Paris Agreement to combat the global warming together and
developed different strategies to cut down carbon emissions.
The Group also recognises the emergency of addressing climate-
related risks that may impact our stakeholders in our operation,
and has identified the following potential climate risks:
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Physical risks

Acute risks: The increased severity of extreme weather
events (e.g. typhoon, hurricane) may cause damage to
our office buildings and the delivered facade and further
interrupt our business operation.

Chronic risks: The increased severity and frequency of
extreme weather events and the changes in precipitation
and weather patterns (e.g. flooding caused by heavy
rainfall, heatwaves) may result in submersion and damage
to the office building and the delivered facade and further
interrupt our business operation. Additionally, more energy
consumption caused by heatwaves may render higher
operational cost, maintenance cost and/or insurance
premium.

Transition risks

Policy risks: The latest implementation of carbon-pricing
mechanisms may push up the price of GHG emissions and
operating costs, thereby leading to financial instability.

Market risks: Higher demand for environmental-friendly
goods and design services may be put forward due to the
shift in customer preferences. Moreover, limited natural
resources and higher transportation cost due to increasing
climate-related weather events may increase the costs of
raw materials and investment in low-carbon technologies.

To minimise the risks that pose negative impacts to our operation,
we will continue to improve our strategic plans and actions in
response to climate-related risks and keep track of international
trends and regional policies and regulations. The emergency
plans for typhoon and flooding are in place to prevent negative
impacts on our property management and hotel operation. For
example, we will issue early warnings based on the government
notice on typhoon and heavy rain to our employees in order to
ensure their safety. In the future, we will integrate climate risk
into our interior risk assessment for effective monitoring and
management of the climate-related risks.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

RiE - g NEAWmE

"R R
o VEMERR : BimKREM (PIINEE -
R MEREMIE A e YR AR L

BB R HBAE SRR - 4 A B3RP
o ERHEERR : BmXREFFNVEREMRIA

TIBINIA K SRR RAE R B Z 4L (20
S EAHKREVR) ATRE G Bl N2

B R R 8 MR - 4 P ETIR
PIRREFEE - I - HEURSIEMNE S

BERHRA e ER T e EERA - 4
AR HIRBRE

B E =

o  HERRER: RMEMAIREEEGITES
ESRERBEERERMEERA M
BYR S TEBTE -

o TEAK: AREFERENEE  HEg
HIRFERANRTREREESNFK -
AN - BRI B RERMERIEEBR X

REMFBRNMEHNE R EBKAAIGEE
SE AN B AR MBI IR E -

ABEHEFNEEEREmMTZENRR - &

1P 75 At A48 A 3 1P B S SR 1% A B L o ) BB S
EM1TE - WIRERBRBEMESBEOER
E%Umﬂel—ﬁwk“ﬁmﬁriﬂ PAR LE SR API Y
MEBENBEEZEERAETE - a0 &

1P 5 AR 4 KT B 1A G RV A K RR M 3B A ) B T 3%

HIEE - UHERMANZE - KK - HFHE

ﬂﬂ%ﬂ, B A AR EREL R 5HE - SRR R Rk
ETHEMERMER -



68

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B e REARE

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is dedicated to contributing to the community where
we operate by enriching community culture, building close social
bonds with the neighbours and creating harmonious community
living environment.

During the Reporting Period, we have organised a total of
13 community and charitable activities. On 27 May 2021,
we arranged a party building activity to celebrate the 100th
anniversary of the founding of the Communist Party, thereby
strengthening political consciousness. To create a pleasant
festive atmosphere, we prepared lucky bags for the residents on
the Dragon Boat Festival and the Mid-Autumn Festival to inherit
and promote Chinese culture. We also held a winter warming
event in December 2021 at Forebase Convention International
Building and offered free hot drinks to our tenants to advocate
the caring culture across our tenants and express our sincere
greetings for the coming new year. Moreover, we endeavour to
help vulnerable groups by participating in charity donation, and
a total of RMB 4,730 was donated during the Reporting Period.

Besides, the Group purchased orange shirts from the local
indigenous community to support the Orange Shirt Day (30
September) event in Canada, in which promoting awareness of
the concept of “Every Child Matters” and the individual, family
and community inter-generational impacts of Indian residential
schools. We also celebrated the National Day of Awareness for
Missing and Murdered Indigenous Women and Girls (5 May)
in Canada by partnering with a local indigenous artist, who
represents surviving and overcoming trauma. All employees
working wore artwork designed by the artist, raising a total of
CAD 1,430.
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ESG DATA RIEE - HEREREE

Environmental performance RIERH

Unit 2021! 2020 2019
B —EC-—fF1 —E-BF —E—hE

GHG emissions?

BEREHERK?
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1)3 tCOe 509.21 397.72 1,232.96
ERAEREHR (S8E1)3 Mg — %{t REE
Energy Indirect emissions (Scope 2)* tCOe 3,284.46 5,218.68 5,708.81
BRI R (8E 2) ¢ ME— ‘iﬂt REE
Other Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3)° tCOe - 2.64 2.52
HitE R = REHEN (HE3)° WE— %{t X S
Total GHG emission tCO,e 3,793.68 5,619.04 6,944.29
BEREBHHREE WA — ’%{t REE
GHG intensity®
AERERES
Hong Kong office tCO,e/employee 0.85 0.62 0.87
EERPLE WS IRE &
/B8
Property management tCO,e/m? 0.01 0.01 0.01
MEEE ME— %{t REE
SR

Hotel operation tCO,e/guest 0.037 0.055 0.043
BIERE night

WS L E S

I

Air emission’
BERBER7
NOx kg 4.02 2.29 -
Ek=R( )] NI
SOx kg 0.09 0.06 -
wE? /NI
PM kg 0.30 0.17 -
BEN T /NI
Waste disposal
EEEY R
Hazardous waste
BEEBEY
Hong Kong office Tonne 0.001 No available No available
EBRAE 72 data data

&R EUE A HEE
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Unit

B

Property management
MEEE

Hotel and resort

B IE R E R

Total hazardous waste
EEEREYRE
Non-hazardous waste

BEBERY

Hong Kong office
EERAE

Property management
MEEE

Hotel operation

BIERE

Total non-hazardous waste
BEEBERYHRE

Energy consumption®
BERHFE®S

Gasoline

7

Natural gas

RARR

Kerosene

oy

Electricity
EWj]

Total energy consumption
BERUHMERE

Energy intensity
BEIRE B

Hong Kong office
EERRLE

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Tonne
7

Tonne
T8

Tonne
7]

Tonne
7

Tonne
T

Tonne
7

Tonne
T

L
AF

Gigajoules (“GJ")

EHE
m3
GJ
EEE
L
AF
GJ
EEE
MWh
BB
GJ
HEE
GJ
EEE

GJ/employee
TEEBE

0.79

0.79

3.39

634.13

91.83

729.35

6,102.57

200.05

278,702.60

10,929.51

180.00

6.37

7,145.52

25,723.86

36,859.80

6.90

1.94

0.16

2.10

No available
data
=0 A EUR
629.51
50.10

679.68

3,940.01

129.16

194,084.56

7,611.16

360.00

12.74

6,619.95

23,831.81

31,584.87

3.99

12.20

0.16

12.36

No available
data

E A AR
240.75
64.24

304.99

8,350.53

273.75

423,675.10

16,614.71

460.00

16.28

6,963.27

25,067.76

41,972.50

8.35
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Property management
MEEE
Hotel operation

HEEE

Water consumption®
FAKE®

Hong Kong office
BERRAE

Property management
MEEE

Hotel operation

BIE R

Total water consumption
HAKE

Water intensity
FAKBE

Hong Kong office
BEERLE

Property management
MEEE
Hotel and resort

BERERBN
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GJ/m?

H5EHEFHK
GJ/guest night

=EE/
EYNZ

m3/employee

AV VA

m3/m?

VR VEDES
m3/guest night
RPN

i

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R - g MEAWRE

0.05

1.08

No available

data
& ARE
81,644.84

18,911.00

100,555.84

No available
data
A A

0.15

2.08

0.03

1.67

No available

data
& AEE
68,661.00

13,332.00

81,993.10

No available
data
B AR
0.10

2.60

0.04

1.13

No available

data
] AR
72,739.00

11,861.00

84,600.00

No available
data
] AEE
0.11

0.90
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HERE

Unit 2021
B —B-—F

Employee profile
EERR

Total workforce!®

BT A
Employees by gender
RUERESHIER
Male

B

Female

g

Employees by employment type
RERERESNES
Full-time

28

Part-time

R

Employees by age
RFERESNER
Under 30

30mAU T

Age 30-50

30-50 5%

Over age 50

50 A £

Employees by employee category
RESEREAINES
Senior management
SREEE

Middle management
PREEE

General staff

—RET

Employees by geographical region
BB HEID ZEE
Hong Kong

BB

China

HE

Canada

JIE N

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Number of people 325
AZ

Number of people 189
N

Number of people 136
A

Number of people 254
AEL

Number of people 71
AZ

Number of people 88
AZ

Number of people 147
N

Number of people 90
N

Number of people 24
AEK

Number of people 25
AEL

Number of people 276
AZ

Number of people 11
A

Number of people 199
A

Number of people 115
A
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RiE gk

Unit
B

Employee turnover!!

BERKEN

Total employee turnover

EERKEH
Total employee turnover rate
EEARAE
By gender!?
iR 12
Male

Bt
Female

gegid

By age!?
REFHER
Under 30
30@mAT
Age 30-50
30-50 5%
Over age 50
50 A £

By geographical region
R E D
Hong Kong
58

China

A

Canada

mEX

Health and safety

BERZR

Number of work-related fatalities
EIZETAZ

Rate of work-related fatalities
EIkT®E

Cases of work-related accident
IEEHN

Lost days due to work injuries

FAIEELATHERH
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HE
Day
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Yaras

B

akE

167

54.3

48.0

62.3

103.3
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E%E%‘ %té?li ‘A#&EJ

Supply Chain Management4
fHEgEEE v

Number of suppliers by geographical region

ZES HEls 2 HEEHE

China Number 12

thE %2

Canada Number 31

mEX HE

Ireland Number 1

EWW HE

Anti-corruption

REF

Number of concluded corruption-related legal Number 0
cases against the Group or employees Hs

HHHAEERESREVEFLNBRFARGHE

Notes: Bffs

1. The coverage of GHG emissions, waste, energy and water consumption 1. ZZEZ—FREREEM - BEY - EREKE
data in 2021 includes the office in Hong Kong, four managed property REBENAEHERERANAE - FEAME
projects in Chongging, Mainland China (Forebase Financial Plaza (£ ENER#EESEERMERNYEIAR (Eﬁg
E4RFES), Forebase Convention International Building (FAE & E CRES  REERBERAE - REHMERE
BIFE A JE ), Liangping Daisi International Community Project (2 & JEAL R K 1L SR A BB fE AR ) &Z’-‘%@ﬁf%\m
HYEIBRB/E 4L ) and Xiushan haosheng International Community ERABEMMLELTEHELFETAIBBR o Y
Project (F5 LS AEBBREELLR)) by Nuofute Property Management ¥TERGIBERGOESEE - ARAER
and our BBR in Victoria, British Columbia, Canada. Due to the WINEREE  WAEENEKDIPLEEH
business nature in property management services and hospitality FRIBEME

services, no packaging materials are utilised in our business segments
as we are not engaged in manufacturing industry.

2. The greenhouse gas emissions are defined and calculated according 2. ORERBHHUMBEAZREEZE (GHG Protocol)
to the GHG Protocol and “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: &?%H’éﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%%ﬁ’] [fal R fER2s - B RER
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by HKEX. - BigR—  IRIERRERIRIZIERIES | EE

&* =

3. Scope 1 emission covers the direct GHG emissions generated by the 3. SHEIRRERSEESNETR (RE) ki

combustion of fuels for stationary source (cooking stove) and motor BEERRIRGEITEE N ERE AT RN -

vehicles controlled by the Group.

4. Scope 2 emission covers the purchased electricity in Hong Kong 4. %EIZTJFB&/QEE/%#D#”ﬁ V¥ EEIREE MBS

office, property management service and hotel operation. The KEREINEE Zrt BT ER (2020 F &
calculation is based on the emission factors from 2020 Hong Kong B T?ii§’|$¥&¢>> FREERERMNEZES
Electric sustainability report, Average Carbon Dioxide Emission Factors BHE (2011 FM012FFEEFERFEH S
of China Regional Power Grid 2011 and 2012 issued by the National 1KEFT3FE5ZI?>> PRSP MRIR B REEE DR =
Development and Reform Commission of the PRC and 2020 B.C. Best T EFEFAAEREBHRTESREER A E
Practices Methodology for Quantifying Greenhouse Gas Emissions FRIBEREL -

published by Ministry of Environment & Climate Change Strategy.

5. Scope 3 emission covers the emission from the business travel of 5  HE3IFRE) E% E\Fﬁﬁﬁﬂ’\l?‘?mﬁ( RS HIEA
employees only, while there is no business travel taken during the 2019 AL 7'1?( FOEITRIR ©

Reporting Period due to COVID-19.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED BRRREEZERERLT



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The intensity of GHG emission is the sum of Scope 1 and Scope 2
emission divided by the respective organisational units.

The air emission includes the vehicle used in Hong Kong and PRC
only.

The conversion factors from volumetric units of gasoline, kerosene and
natural gas consumption to energy units are with reference to CDP
Technical note: Conversion of fuel data to MWh in 2020.

The water charge in Hong Kong office is included in the property
rental fee and thus no available records are available to reporting
disclosure.

The figure of employee number is calculated based on the number of
headcounts of the Group as of the end of the Reporting Period.

The employee turnover rates cover voluntary resignations, retirements,
dismissal and other reason during the Reporting Period.

The figure refers to total number of employee turnover of the gender
group, divided by the total number of employees of the corresponding
gender group.

The figure refers to total number of employee turnover of the age
group, divided by the total number of employees of the corresponding
age group.

The figure covers the business of property management and hotel
operation only.
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~ Environmental, Social and Governance Report
oo |7 A 2 fara VAN~
RE g ke amE

HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX EEHMTMIRE #HEREARFE
51 Z 5|
ESG Reporting Guide Section
BiE e REAMEED =40

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BERERE

Governance A statement from the board containing the following elements: ESG Governance
Structure REFEHHOBE  EEHAUTAS B - HEREAEE
ERRE

(i)  adisclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues;
FRESSHRE HERELGEEMNET

(i)  the board’s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the process used to evaluate, prioritise and manage
material ESG-related issues (including risks to the issuer’s
businesses); and
EESNRE  HEREREEDHIRE - B &
EHIREBBEARRR HEeREAEEEE(RELHET
AEBHRER)BEE 0 &

(ii)  how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related
goals and targets with an explanation of how they relate to the
issuer’s businesses.

EEQMARRE e NERER B R RERRAEE
WHREE TN BT AR B -
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RE g KERWmE

ESG Reporting Guide Section

RE - B REARREES E=:0]

Reporting A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the About the Report —
Principles following Reporting Principles in the preparation of the ESG report: Reporting Principles
&R Al RS MBREREIRE HEREAREFNMEATIRER BRA®RSE - ®ERA

U

Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process to
identify and the criteria for the selection of material ESG factors;
(ii) if a stakeholder engagement is conducted, a description of
significant stakeholders identified, and the process and results of
the issuer’s stakeholder engagement.
BEEM RS HeRESHREERE : V#IE2RE 14g
MEREZNBIRIERZERENEL (i) MBETADETH
mELHE EE%&%*JE’JE%#%@%E’U%QE&?& TARNEZELNB
%f&n\l:l

Quantitative: Information on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation tools used, and source of
conversion factors used, for the reporting of emissions/energy
consumption (where applicable) should be disclosed.

ARt EABREHRE ERERWER FTANZE . &
F o BE R HRAETANER - URAERANEREZNRR
JE TR o

Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any
changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any other relevant factors
affecting a meaningful comparison.

— B BITARGERR  HEgREAMEREER AN
RBPIEENEMEE (WA EMEMEER EE LERAIEMH

E= -
Reporting A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report  About the Report —
Boundary and describing the process used to identify which entities or Reporting Scope
& RA operations are included in the ESG report. If there is a change in  BARAIRE — WERA
the scope, the issuer should explain the difference and reason for
the change.

MRS S REARSHERRE - RS am
¥W%A%% 8RB ARE MBI - EERREEHED
BITABBRETAZEREDER -
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BE  HERER®EES

Section

3: 1]

A. Environmental

A BIE
Aspect Al: Emissions
BE AL - BERR
Al General Disclosure
—REE
Information on:
EHBERMBRERBHN  FKRTHEHES  BERESEE
MR EEFR)
a) the policies; and
B Rk
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BTHBETARERZENEBEERKABNER -
KPI Al.1 The types of emissions and respective emission data.
BRERIEE PER g A R AR R o
Al.1
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where
RARENEEZ appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
Al.2 facility).
mE RS (UBEETE ) R (EA) B E (A BEEEA -
BIERMEE)
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
ARENEEZ intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
Al.3 ﬁﬁ?iﬁ%@%#’mﬁ@; WAEH &) R (WER) BE (WA EBEE
Bi - BIERMEE
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes and, where
ARENEEZ appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
Al.4 facility).

P mE RS E AN E) R (
By - SERIEEH) -

WERZE(MABES
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Our Environment —
Emissions
IRIE - HEIK

Our Environment —
Waste Management

R - BEREYER

ESG data
RIR - B REREE

ESG data
RIE - g REVREUR

ESG data
RIR B REREE

ESG data
RIE - e REREIR
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BE  HERER®EES

KPI A1.5

BEENIER
Al.5

KPI A1.6

REAMIER
Al.6

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

R PRI SLEVHEIRE B IR R R iE D% B AR PTIREREY 28R, o

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

HEEEERBEEREYN AL - BRI SZARE B R R
RIEDZE BRI PR -

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 : EREA
A2

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

General Disclosure

— R

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials

BRERER(BREEER - KEEMERME) BOR

Section
=6/

Our Environment —
Emissions

R -

Regarding the result of
materiality assessment,
this KPI is not considered
as highly material for
the Group, hence no
target(s) setting during
the Reporting Year.
BIEEE ML
% It B AR REIT
RAHARERM S LT
EE Eit - RS E
WEHIEBF

Our Environment —
Waste Management
RIE - BEEYERE

Regarding the result of
materiality assessment,
this KPI is not considered
as highly material for

the Group, hence no
target(s) setting during
the Reporting Year.
BEEEZUHTEHOE
R HARBEBUEEE
REHAREEMS LA
B2 Al R|EH
WEHEBR

Our Environment —
Use of Resources

R - BRER
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ESG Reporting Guide

B HER

KPI A2.1

BEENIER
A2.1

KPI A2.2

BREMER
A2.2

KPI A2.3

BEEMIER
A2.3

KPI A2.4

BEEMIER
A2.4

B E S

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

REAESHEER LEEER(E - fslh) 4
EFERAE) REE (MABEEEN - BIER @ﬁ

ﬁ%ﬂ%?

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume per facility).

HFKEREE (MASEEEN - BEREAE)

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.
FEAPTRT S EY RS

TRE R B R R AE R 5 B R R 8 -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

I SKEGER /KRS B ERBE - AR ZHAKS =B R
MAREDZE B EMTKRE SR -
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Section

=6/

ESG data

RIR - LB REREE

ESG data
R - e REVREUR

Our Environment —
Use of Resources

R - BREM

Regarding the result of
materiality assessment,
this KPI is not considered
as highly material for
the Group, hence no
target(s) setting during
the Reporting Year.
BIEEZ ML
% It BARRAE REIE
RREAERM S LT
EE Eitt - REREES
WEHE B R

Our Environment —
Use of Resources

RIE - BEREA

Regarding the result of
materiality assessment,
this KPI is not considered
as highly material for

the Group, hence no
target(s) setting during
the Reporting Year.
BEEEUHTEOE
R OHERETEER
RAEHAREEMS LA
B2 Al R|EHD
WEHE B R
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ESG Reporting Guide Section
BRiIE  HEREREREES E=:0]
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, Not applicable
BRRENIERE if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. TiE A
A2.5 SR MFTAEEMBNAS (LAEETE) X (ER ) BEESENE
E o

Aspect A3: The environment and Natural Resources
BEA3 : BERRAARER

A3 General Disclosure Our Environment —
— MR FE The Environment and

Natural Resources
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the & - IRIBNKAELR
environment and natural resources.

RIEREIT ABIRIE M AAE RERERZENBER

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Our Environment —

BARENER environment and natural resources and the actions taken to  The Environment and

A3.1 manage them. Natural Resources
HEBEHHRBRAREFNEATFEREENEREAY BE -RERRKAER
28178 -

Aspect A4: Climate Change
[EHE A4 . RIRE{L

A4 General Disclosure Our Environment —
— B EE Climate Change
IR - RIRE( L

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the

issuer.

BRIl REFEERRAGEEHETAELATYENEARGIHBEE

HERER o
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have Our Environment —
RRENIER impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions  Climate Change
A4.1 taken to manage them. IR - RREL

BRI EHBETAEERENERARBGEREE - KE

178 o
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ESG Reporting Guide
RE - B REARREES

B. Social
B. &
Aspect B1: Employment
EmEB1 : EfE
Bl General Disclosure
—MRIKEE
Information on:
EHFTH R  BEREA  LENE R FE5#e %
Tt~ RIEARIA R B A 8 RABFIA -
a) the policies; and
B Rk
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
BTHETABEATENEBERMADBER -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or
ARENIEE part-time), age group and geographical region.
Bl.1 LR - EEER (EBEGRE)  FRAER RS S ES
Hme o
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
BRENIER region.
B1.2 IR - FRAERNRMEEIDOEERKALE -
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Section
=6/

Our Employees —
Employment Practices
REENES -
BIRER

ESG data
RIR - B REREE

ESG data
RIR - g REREUR
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BE  HERER®EES

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[BEB2 : RERLZZ

B2

KPI B2.1

RRENER
B2.1

KPI B2.2

RRENER
B2.2

KPI B2.3

REENER
B2.3

General Disclosure

— IR B

Information on:

BRRHEZ2THERREAREREMERBEERETN

a) the policies; and

120> e 4

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

BTHETABEAZENEREREAROINER

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the
past three years including the reporting year.

BE=F(BRBEFE)FFRTITHOABMELE -

Lost days due to work injury.
EAIEEAIEAS -

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted,
and how they are implemented and monitored.
PR PTER AN B SR (R FR A e 2 10 0 - DA RRABRARIIT R EE R 904 o

Aspect B3: Development and Training
[BE B3 : #ERZI

B3

KPI B3.1

RRENER
B3.1

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

General Disclosure

—fRIER

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

BRRTHME R BT TIERE M AE M IRBEMEER - 5 IIES -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).
RURREERN(IERERE  TRAEEE) EAINXIEES
BaLt e

Section
=6/

Our Employees —
Health and Safety
REENES -
EERkZE

ESG data
RIR - B REREE

ESG data
R - e REREIR

Our Employees —
Health and Safety
AEEREES -
REEkZE

Our Employees —
Development and

Training
AEEREES -
R Mg

Our Employees —
Development and

Training
REENES -
EEYEE

83
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RE - B REARREES E=:0]

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and  Our Employees —

BRRENIERE employee category. Development and

B3.2 RIURIREERMNES - BREETHZINNTIIRE - Training
REENEES -
BERRIE

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : HTEE

B4 General Disclosure Our Employees —
— R Employment Practices
REENEES -
Information on: BIEER

B IEE T 55 T -

a) the policies; and

BE &

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.

BTHETABEAZENERERLAROINER -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid Our Employees —

ARENIER child and forced labour. Employment Practices

B4.1 fa g T IR BB PR FE TE AR R B T R o& #8551 - REENES -
EIRER

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Our Employees —

ARENIER discovered. Employment Practices

B4.2 MM ERERISA R BB BRI LR - AEERNES -
ERER

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS : fiEHEER

B5 General Disclosure Our Business Operation
—M R — Supply Chain
Management
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply —3£7545&E — HEEE R
chain.

EIRHERAIRE R SRR -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Our Business Operation
BREWER muRE SR HERSE - — Supply Chain
B5.1 Management

ReE - fEREE
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BE  HERER®EES 3: 1]

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of  Our Business Operation

BREVNIER suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they — Supply Chain

B5.2 are implemented and monitored. Management
HAEEREARERNER  RERNTEASRNOEREEE @ EHEE - HEEER
ARABEITRER I ©

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social  Our Business Operation

BARENER risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and - Supply Chain

B5.3 monitored. Management
R EEHRHEEGERSNIRR R ERBOTER - ARE X558 - HEEEE
BRITRERTE -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable  Our Business Operation

BARENEEZ products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are - Supply Chain

B5.4 implemented and monitored. Management

M EREHRERRRESBRERERNMRBNER - ANERH
HITRERETX -

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EHEB6 : EmEE

RIGEE - HEEE R

B6 General Disclosure Our Business Operation
—AEHEE = Service Responsibility
EEE - REEE
Information on:
FAMREEMMRBHRERERZ S BE RERLEFENU
KA T AR -
a) the policies; and
HWE Rk
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress.
BTHETAREAZENEBEERBRONER -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for Not applicable
AR ENIERE safety and health reasons. E A
B6.1 EENEEXEMEHTRR 2 EHEREHMARKNE S
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and  Our Business Operation
BRENIEER how they are dealt with. — Service Responsibility
B6.2 BREANEMmRRBAIRFEE R EH T - EHEE - REEE
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ESG Reporting Guide

BE  HERER®EES

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
BAREVESR intellectual property rights.

B6.3 st MIRE A BERE AN TR -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
BREVIER HWilE 2R T BENERBBIERF

B6.4

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and
BREVIER how they are implemented and monitored.

B6.5 U B & ERHRE RALBBUR - ARBERITRER X o

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption
[BEB7 : R&ES

B7 General Disclosure

—RRIE

Information on:

BRARTLEFERE - BIR - BRFROARER

a) the policies; and
HWE Rk

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money Iaundering

ETHEITABEATENHERERRAPINES -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices

BREVIER brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting

B7.1 period and the outcomes of the cases.
REREHANEBETASEEEREYEEENE TRARENE
B KEFFARER -

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures,

BAREWESR and how they are implemented and monitored.

B7.2 P EHE I R ERRIR T - U RBERITREERG X -

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and

ARENIER staff.

B7.3 fmEE K E TIRHMORESHF

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Section

3: 1]

Our Business Operation
— Service Responsibility

EBeE - REEE

Our Business Operation
- Service Responsibility

EBeE - REAEE

Our Business Operation
— Service Responsibility

EBEE - REAEE

Our Business Operation
— Business Integrity and
Anti-corruption
FHEE-mEMER
RES

Our Business Operation
— Business Integrity and
Anti-corruption
FEEE - BEMER
k&S

Our Business Operation
— Business Integrity and
Anti- corruption

FHEE -BEHER
iiﬁﬁ

Our Business Operation
— Business Integrity and
Anti- corruption

XBEE -BEHER
Jia/’i

BARRERZRERAH
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RE - B REARREES E=:0]

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EMEBS8 : #HtERE

B8 General Disclosure Community Investment
— MR ER HERKE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities’ interests.

AU ELHETREEMTMENTEURBREERZS S
ERARNRAIBUR

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Community Investment
R ENIEE concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). tBIEE
BS.1 EIERSRE(HE  BEEH SIHFR BF Xt 8
B)e
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Community Investment
BRERIEE EHETEIBFABAER (NS RRERE) o HERE
B8.2
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Choi Yun Chor (Chairman)

Mr. Choi, aged 40, has been an executive director of the
Company and the Co-Chairman of the Board since 10 October
2019, and was re-designated as the Chairman following the
resignation of Ms. Yeung So Mui on 31 March 2022. Mr. Choi
started as the general manager, and currently as the executive
director, at Realway Investment Limited and Key Target
Investments Limited, each a company principally engaged in
the trading of lifestyle fast-moving consumer goods in local
and overseas market. At Realway Investment Limited, Mr. Choi
manages to provide professional global lifestyle fast-moving
consumer goods trading services to worldwide countries. He
established different distribution channels and target segment
in the past 15 years. He leads a team to explore new markets
in Southeast Asia and maintain a stable growth in the well-
developed market in the European Union and Middle East. Apart
from the trading business, Mr. Choi has been and is still working
in a family business in property management, with a team of
about 10 talents in Hong Kong for over a decade. He is the
director of the leasing and property management company and
is responsible for planning business strategies and managing
the local and overseas operation teams. Mr. Choi owns the entire
equity interest in Great Match International Limited which holds
827,896,014 shares of the Company, representing approximately
75.75% of the issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Choi
graduated from Seneca College, Toronto, Canada in General
Business in 2003.

Mr. Choi is also a vice chairperson of Yan Oi Tong, one of the
biggest charity organizations in Hong Kong.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

HITES
EEMKE (£F)

BAEE 0B BZE—NFTA+THE—E
BARBRIPTESRESSHELTE  YEN
BEBLTR _E-_—_F=A=+—H8FE
FAXAETRE - 204 AR IE — BN A KR
& B R AT K& Key Target Investments Limited
BRIEEARITES  ZERRDREEHRER
R EINTTERHBIREEERE S - AL
RIKERE FR A B Hef F 2 IRBOH B IR B
BEnEBHRBTHASE FRBETHAFRE
VAR HERERBEZESE - HEEEKHAR
REDFMETREE PR ETISET
BEER BRTEZIEBIN BEEEEFBER
MEEBEBNRKREELA—BFHTEETHN
B TIERA+F  BIORZEETE-BA
HEREERARINES  BERIEBRE
BE R EIBAM RBINEISEK - BAELEHS
Great Match International Limited #) & 3 &2 -
i Great Match International Limited ¥ & Z< /A &]
827,896,014 % f% 17 * (AN A R B BT ALY
75.75% c BEENR ST =FREENNEARS
REZENRER—MEESE -

BERENRCER (BEZKABREREZ )W
BIER -

BARRERZRERAH



Mr. Chen Jian

Mr. Chen, aged 65, has been an executive director of the
Company since 10 October 2019. Mr. Chen joined Realway
Investment Limited in 2014 as the director of sales and
marketing. From 2009 to 2014, Mr. Chen worked as the sales
and marketing manager of Great King International Limited. Mr.
Chen served as the marketing executive of Nippon Tsusho Co.,
Ltd.* (BRR & HAERE) from 2005 to 2008, and worked for
Ideal Properties Corp. as the department manager from 1997
to 2005. Mr. Chen is a professional in sales and marketing. He
is experienced in business development in both developed and
emerging markets including Hong Kong, Malaysia, Singapore,
Egypt, Greece and Pakistan etc. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor
of engineering from Shanghai Nautical College (now known as
Shanghai Maritime University) in July, 1982. As at 31 December
2021, Mr. Chen did not have any interests in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Tai Kwok Keung Kenny

Mr. Tai, aged 60, has been an executive director of the Company
since 10 October 2019. Mr. Tai started his career with his
expertise in the information technology department in Hong
Kong at the Bank of China Group in the 1980s. Since 2014,
he is the general manager of Gold Companion International
Limited, a trading company of lifestyle fast-moving consumer
goods, and since 2006, the director of the Realway International
(Phil.) Co. Rp., managing over 100 employees in Hong Kong and
the Philippines. Mr. Tai obtained a bachelor of electronic and
communication engineering from the De La Salle University, the
Philippines in 1985. Mr. Tai is appointed as the deputy manager
of the executive committee of The Fukienese Association Limited
(BEBBERME). As at 31 December 2021, Mr. Tai did not
have any interests in the shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Lin Junwei

Mr. Lin, aged 26, has been an executive director of the Company
since 10 October 2019. Mr. Lin is currently the chief financial
officer of Imperium Green Power Limited and his primary
responsibilities includes the planning, implementation, managing
and running of all the finance activities, including business
planning, budgeting, forecasting and negotiations. Mr. Lin
obtained a bachelor of science in accounting and finance from
University of East Anglia in 2018. As at 31 December 2021,
Mr. Lin did not have any interests in the shares of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Directors

55

PRt £
Red 65 BT NAF+ATEE—H
RARBRITES - REENR T —TFMA

KEREBRRA EIHERLEHEEE - @
TETAFEE T NF RAEAETRKBER
BRERARKEEREHECE - REENRZE
ﬁﬁiﬁ_g%ﬁ)\iﬂéﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁa$é_ﬁﬂ’ﬂ

EHATAE TR —NNEFEZZTETRF
7 Ideal Properties Corp. #E{EEBPIATIE o [R5 4
BIHEREHEEEAS - FREBRERFED
% (BESEE - BRADR - FIE - Bk - H
REEMMEE) BEEBRBELR - REER
—ﬂ)\*itﬂ HELEBESKE (BALEESE
AEB)MBIRSLEN -R_T_—F+_A
=+—H" $ET)§ E5 R HAERBIZEXVES - BR%C
A WA D R R A i

BEMEE

L 60 BT NFTA+HE—E
Y=¥IN/N T#MT%% BAEER—NWNZEEFERE
FRRTEEFNAENEBEMBHEHMNE
PFIREAREX - BT —HFRZZFTTF
i BBl ReABEERBERAR (RERIRERE
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie

Ms. Lai, aged 41, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 10 October 2019. Ms. Lai
obtained a Master’s degree in Civil Engineering from University
College London, United Kingdom in 2004 and was qualified as
a solicitor in England and Wales in 2013. In 2016, Ms. Lai was
also qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong. Ms. Lai has more
than 14 years’ management experience in the construction and
engineering industry, both as a civil engineer and qualified legal
practitioner, including project management, project planning
and implementation, financing and resourcing, litigation, dispute
resolution, contracts and corporate governance. Between
2016 and 2017, Ms. Lai held the position of legal counsel
of SUEZ (Asia) Limited. Between 2017 and 2018, Ms. Lai
held the position of legal counsel of SUEZ NWS Limited. Ms. Lai
is promoted to the position of senior legal counsel of SUEZ
NWS Limited in 2019. Ms. Lai previously held the position of
graduate engineer for Halcrow Group Limited and the position of
senior engineer for Mouchel Limited, United Kingdom and Legal
Counsel for Ove Arup & Partners Hong Kong Limited from 2012
to 2015 and Gammon Construction Limited from 2015 to 2016.
As at 31 December 2021, Ms. Lai did not have any interests in
the shares of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.
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Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam)

Dr. Loke Yu, alias Loke Hoi Lam, aged 72, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on
21 December 2012. He is also the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, a member of the Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Dr. Loke has over
40 years of experience in accounting and auditing for private
and public companies, financial consultancy and corporate
management. Dr. Loke is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute, and a life member of the Hong Kong
Independent Non-Executive Directors Association. Dr. Loke
obtained a degree of Master of Business Administration from
the Universiti Teknologi Malaysia in April 2001 and a degree of
Doctor of Business Administration from the University of South
Australia in March 2006. Currently, he serves as a non-executive
director of Veson Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1399) and
also serves as an independent non-executive director of Tianjin
Development Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 882), Hang
Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited (Stock
Code: 3626), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited
(Stock Code: 2882), Matrix Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1005),
China Silver Technology Holdings Limited (formerly TC Orient
Lighting Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 515), TradeGo FinTech
Limited (Stock Code: 8017), Crazy Sports Group Limited (formerly
V1 Group Limited) (Stock Code: 82) and Zhenro Properties
Group Limited (Stock Code: 6158), all of these companies are
listed on the Stock Exchange. He also served as an independent
non-executive director of Lamtex Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1041), Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited (Stock Code: 1619),
CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 445),
Zhong An Real Estate Limited (Stock Code: 672) and Chiho
Environmental Group Limited (Stock Code: 976) until 23 March
2020, 31 May 2020, 25 January 2021, 10 June 2021 and 6
December 2021 respectively. As as 31 December 2021, Dr. Loke
did not have any interests in the shares of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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The directors submit herewith their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are hotel operation in
Canada and provision of property management services in PRC.

The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries
are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business and geographical segments is set out in note 6 to
the consolidated financial statements. Further discussion and
analysis of these activities as required by schedule 5 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business,
can be find in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” set
out on page 8 to 18 of this annual report. This discussion forms
part of this directors’ report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of revenue and cost of sales for the year ended
31 December 2021 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers
and customers from continuing operations are as follows:

Revenue
The largest customer 5%
Five largest customers in aggregate 12%

Cost of sales
The largest supplier 8%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 11%

At no time during the year, have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the
directors, owns more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company) has a beneficial interest in the five largest customers
or suppliers of the Group.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the state of the Group’s affairs as at that date are
set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income” and “Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position” on pages 124 to 126 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$Nil).

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity” on pages 127 to 128 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2021, calculated under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
amounted to HK$Nil (2020: HK$Nil).

No dividend was paid or declared for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: HK$NIl).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company or the laws of Hong Kong which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets of the Group during the year are set out in notes
18 and 20 respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

SECURED LOANS

Particulars of secured loans of the Group as at 31 December
2021 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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BONDS

Particulars of bonds of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are
set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Ms. Yeung So Mui (Co-Chairman) "
Mr. Choi Yun Chor (Chairman)

Mr. Ng Kwai Wah Sunny

Mr. Chen Jian

Mr. Tai Kwok Keung Kenny

Mr. Lin Junwei

Independent non-executive directors

Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie
Mr. Ting Wong Kacee ®
Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam)

@ resigned on 31 March 2021

The biographical details of the current directors are set out under
the section “Directors” of this annual report.

In accordance with Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Tai Kwok Keung Kenny and Mr. Lin Junwei shall
retire from the Board by rotation and Mr. Tai Kwok Keung Kenny,
being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”). Mr. Lin Janwei
will not offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming AGM as he
wishes to devote more time to his other business commitments.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, each of the directors of the
Company have entered into a service contract or an appointment
letter (as the case may be) with the Company for either no fixed
term of service or an initial fixed term of three years commencing
from their appointment or re-designation, subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of the
Company pursuant to Articles of Association of the Company,
and will continue thereafter until terminated by (i) in cases of
executive directors and independent non-executive directors of
the Company, not less than one months’ notice in writing served
by either party on the other or payment in lieu of such notice, or
(i) in case of non-executive directors of the Company, not less
than one month’s notice in writing by the non-executive director
or the written notice issued by the Company with immediate
effect.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
upcoming annual general meeting of the Company has a service
contract or an appointment letter with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employer
within one year without payment of compensation (or statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board of the Company with reference to directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the remuneration committee periodically.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and are decided
by the Board, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme to motivate
and reward its directors and selected participants. Details of
the Share Option Scheme are set out under the section “Share
Option Scheme” on pages 100 to 105 in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
the directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) which were required
(i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules adopted by the Company (the “Model
Code”) (collectively “disclosure interests”) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Directors’ interests in Issued Shares of the
Company

EERERTHASRRY - HERR
MRESZEDRRXE

RNZEBE-—F+-_A=+—8 EFHELQ 7
BETBRAERARRSETMBE LR (F
ZRBHFRBERY ([EHFRBEEG]) XV
) 28k - MR m S EREET  EEAEOR
BEASREEKRIIEXVIEET RS BAE R
NAI BRIz R RARE (BIEREEE L
EEPBEBIEXEERBIES R BER 2R
KRB ) + 3k (i) iR IR 78 55 R HA & 16451 58 352 &5

AFZAGFT it 2 s il 2 s BOA R+ 8K (i) IRIE AR
DA TR ETR AR+ FrE EmEBITAE
FHRITELFR HIZESFR ([1REFR)) Mg
RAB MRz S RAR (B[ ATHE
x| AT

EERANACRITRNZER

Interest of
controlled Approximately
Personal corporation Interest Percentage of
Name of directors Interests ZEHZEE of spouse Total shareholding
BEEpE B ARR iR [T B RESAESKL
Mr. Choi Yun Chor - 759,367,674 (L) - 759,367,674 (L) 69.48%
ERIEE (note 1)
GEY
Note: BffsE -

(1) These Shares are held by Great Match International Limited (“Great
Match”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Choi Yun Chor.

(L)  Long position
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
directors and/or the chief executive of the Company, or their

respective associates had any other discloseable interests as
required.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than the
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests or long
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company were as follows:

Report of the Directors
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FTEREREMALTREG RERR
ZEmERE

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H BEARRZE
EREETBABIN  TIATRARRRE 2
HBRAEBRDT  BEARRREBEEFRBPE
&1 336 16 A T BT 2 BTt sk E NE
RAEZ BT AWT

Ordinary shares
37y Hﬁ

B
No. of ordinary % of issued
shares held Nature of share capital
Substantial shareholders BEZ interest/Capacity L2 1T
FERR ZEREE EEME 54 BREBDEH
Great Match (Note 1) (BifsF1) 759,367,674 (L) Beneficial owner 69.48%
EaEEA
Ms. Cheung Yuk Ha Jenny (Note 2) 759,367,674 (L) Beneficial owner 69.48%
REERL (MEE2) ExEBEA
Interest of spouse
feiBtE s
(L)  Long position (DI

Notes:
(1) Great Match is wholly-owned by Mr. Choi Yun Chor.

(2) By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Cheung Yuk Ha Jenny is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by her spouse, Mr. Choi Yun Chor.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no other
interests required to be recorded in the register kept under
Section 336 of the SFO had been notified to the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

On 25 March 2022, Elstone Securities Limited made an Offer (as
defined in the Company’s announcements dated 25 and 30 March
2022, respectively (collectively, the “Announcements”)) on behalf
of the Offeror (as defined in the Announcements) for the Offer
Shares (as defined in the Announcements) of of the Company.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, up to the
date of this report, following the transfer to the Offeror of Offer
Shares acquired by the Offeror under the Offer, the Company
does not satisfy the minimum public float requirement under
Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules. The Company has applied
to the Stock Exchange for a waiver from strict compliance with
Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules commencing from 25 March
2022 to 17 May 2022 (both days inclusive). Upon the close of
the Offer, the Offeror’s intention is to sell down Shares as may be
necessary to restore the public float requirement of the Company
under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules. For further details,
please refer to the Announcements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS THAT
ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY'’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transaction and Continuing Connected Transaction” and note 44
to the consolidated financial statements, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance, to which the Company
or any of its holding Company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors and his/her respective associates had
interests in the businesses which competes or was likely to
compete, whether directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

There has been no material change in directors’ interests in any
competing business subsequent to 31 December 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, the Group had entered into the following
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions.
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Lease agreement

On 23 July 2021, Best Master Limited (“Best Master”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) with Seven Elements
Interactive Digital Technology Limited (“Seven Elements”),
pursuant to which Seven Elements agreed to lease the Filecoin
equipment, storage facilities and auxiliary parts, which could
generate 3 pebibytes of effective storage mining power to
Best Master for the provision of cloud computing and data
storage services and mining of Filecoin for a term of three years
commencing from 1 August 2021 until 31 July 2024. At the
time of entering into the Lease Agreement, Seven Elements is
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Imperium Group Global
Holdings Limited which was controlled by a former controlling
shareholder of the Company (who ceased to be a controlling
shareholder of the Company on 24 December 2021). The leasing
fees shall be based on 35% of the total number of Filecoin mined
during the term of the Lease Agreement, which shall be settled
by Best Master in Filecoin. The amount of the leasing fee shall
be calculated based on (i) the cryptocurrency released on each
day by the official Inter Planetary File System; and (ii) the market
value of Filecoin on the relevant day, which shall be determined
with reference to the Filecoin price as quoted by Coinbase at 0:00
a.m. Eastern Standard Time on the same day. The annual cap
for the year ended 31 December 2021 was HK$6,500,000 The
amount of the leasing fees paid for the year ended 31 December
2021 which was settled by 1,585 Filecoins.

The Company’s independent non-executive directors of the
Company had reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the transactions had been
entered into:

(i)  Inthe ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the Lease Agreement governing such
transactions of terms that are fair and reasonable and in

the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.
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Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company,
was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor of the
Company has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the above-mentioned continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement schemes participated by the Group are
set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The old share option scheme, which was adopted by the
Company on 16 June 2003 was expired on 15 June 2013 and
no share options can be further granted under the old share
option scheme. A new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by the shareholders of the
Company at an annual general meeting of the Company held on
30 May 2013 and came into effect on 3 June 2013. The Share
Option Scheme shall continue in force for a period commencing
from the date the Share Option Scheme became unconditional,
which is 3 June 2013, and expire at the close of business on
the date which falls ten (10) years from such date (that is from 3
June 2013 to 2 June 2023).

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to selected participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Group.
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Selected Participants

The directors of the Company may, at their absolute discretion,
invite any person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants, to take up options to subscribe for Shares at a
price calculated in accordance with the paragraph headed
“Subscription Price for Shares” below: (i) any employee or
proposed employee (whether full-time or part-time and including
any executive director), consultants or advisers of or to the
Company, any of the Company’s subsidiaries or any entity (the
“Invested Entity”) in which the Group holds an equity interest;
(ii) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of the Company’s
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier of goods or
services to the Company or any of the Company’s subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (v) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity; and (vi) any Shareholders or any shareholder of
any of the Company’s subsidiaries or any Invested Entity or any
holder of any securities issued by the Company or any of the
Company’s subsidiaries or any Invested Entity. For the purposes
of the Share Option Scheme, the options may be granted to any
company wholly-owned by one or more persons belonging to any
of the above classes of participants. For the avoidance of doubt,
the grant of any options by the Company for the subscription of
Shares or other securities of the Company to any person who falls
within any of the above classes of participants shall not, by itself,
unless the directors of the Company otherwise determine, be
construed as a grant of option under the Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the above classes of participants
to the grant of any options shall be determined by the directors of
the Company from time to time on the basis of the participants’
contribution to the development and growth of the Group. In
order for a person to satisfy the directors of the Company that
he is qualified to be (or where applicable, continues to be
qualified to be) a participant, such person shall provide all such
information as the directors of the Company may request for the
purpose of assessing his eligibility (or continuing eligibility).
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Subscription Price for Shares

The subscription price for Shares in respect of any option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as
the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, provided that
such price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal
value of the Shares; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the
five (B) business days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the option; and (iii) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the option (which must be a business day). A consideration of
HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the offer of the grant of an
option.

Time of Exercise of Option

An option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days
from the date of the offer of grant of the option. An option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the directors of the Company to each grantee, which
period may commence on a day upon which the offer for the
grant of the option is accepted but shall end in any event not
later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option subject to
the provisions for early termination thereof.

Minimum Period of Holding an Option and
Performance target

The directors of the Company may, at their absolute discretion,
fix any minimum period for which an option must be held,
any performance targets that must be achieved and any other
conditions that must be fulfilled before the options can be
exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.

Maximum Number of Shares

(i)  The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the Company’s issued share
capital from time to time. No options may be granted under
any schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary of the
Company) if such grant will result in the maximum number
being exceeded.
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(i)  The total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme) to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of passing of the
ordinary resolution for adopting the Share Option Scheme
(the “General Mandate Limit”).

(iii) Subject to (i) above and without prejudice to (iv) below, the
Company may seek approval of the Shareholders in general
meeting to refresh the General Mandate Limit. However, the
total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company under the limit as “refreshed” must not exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as of the date of approval of
the refreshed limit. Options previously granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled or
lapsed in accordance with the Share Option Scheme and
other share option schemes of the Company or exercised
options) will not be counted for the purpose of calculating
the limit as “refreshed”. The Company will send a circular
to the Shareholders in compliance with Note (1) to Rule
17.03(3) and Rule 17.06 of the Listing Rules and/or such
other requirements as prescribed in the Listing Rules.

(iv) Subject to (i) above and without prejudice to (iii) above, the
Company may seek separate approval of the Shareholders
in general meeting for granting options beyond the General
Mandate Limit provided the options in excess of the limit
are granted only to participants specifically identified by the
Company before such approval is sought. The Company
will issue a circular to the Shareholders in compliance with
Note (1) to Rule 17.03(3) and Rule 17.06 of the Listing
Rules and/or such other requirements as prescribed in the
Listing Rules.

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme is 45,640,834 Shares, representing
approximately 4.18% of the total number of Shares in issue as at
the date of this annual report.
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Maximum Entitlement of Each Selected
Participant and Connected Persons

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to each participant in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue (the “Individual
Limit™).

Any further grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of
such further grant shall be subject to the issue of a circular
to the Shareholders in compliance with the Note to Rule
17.03(4) and Rule 17.06 of the Listing Rules and/or such
other requirements as prescribed in the Listing Rules and
the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting with
such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.
The number and terms (including the exercise price) of
options to be granted to such participant must be fixed
before the Shareholders’ approval and the date of the
Board meeting for proposing such further grant should be
taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating
the exercise price under Note (1) to Rule 17.03(9) of the
Listing Rules.

In addition to the Shareholders’ approval set out in Note (1)
to Rule 17.03(3) and Note to Rule 17.03(4) of the Listing
Rules, each grant of options to a director of the Company,
chief executive of the Company or substantial Shareholder
or any of their respective associates must be approved by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is
the grantee of the options).

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

BRETE

(i)

(i)

(iif)

»

HERFAEALTHRSEA

PRIFFERCRALAE - PR 121 A HA3fE - 1R
BB 8 R AR B EA B AT
g RMER2EERHRITEN 2 HBERE
(BREITERERITENBRE) E1T6E
Me &R TEITHNRNDER - 1586
BEEITIRMA 1% ([MEAREE]D -

MEEE - PREBRERSR (BREZ
B) WEEA 1218 A 8 - - PR EEE
fEARRBR A BB AAE - RIE — PR H AR
BIRIR ETRAIE 17.033) IRH R E
17.06 & &/ o b R BIHE TE & AL AR
AR B R AR BIRRAE £F
KA RBIBERALE - MSEEREBEA
AMERE - BRRF2EERDNBER
18 BBE MG (BRETTEE) AESK
ARBBRILAERETE - M IRIR LR
A% 17.03(9) xR (D) T EITEEM S -
RHE-—IERIBEENESTEERAE
RSB -

Bz £ R RIS 17.03(3) R R (1) I
5 17.03(4) 1R R T8l A IR R = Sk L
Sh - MARRES  ARAIERITRAR
FEBERRARES BEMNBEARDE
Pkt AR ARRBBULIFRITES (T
BIES BBREAR AN EABILIENT
BF) k-

BARRERZRERAH



(iv)  Where any grant of options to a substantial Shareholder
or an independent non-executive director or any of their
respective associates would result in the Shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) under the Share Option Scheme or
any other share option schemes of the Company to such
person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant:

(a) representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the
Shares in issue; and

(b) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the Shares at the date of each grant, in excess of
HK$5 million,

such further grant of options must be approved by the
Shareholders. The Company must send a circular to the
Shareholders. All of the connected persons of the Company
must abstain from voting in favour at such general meeting.
Any connected person may vote against the relevant
resolution at the general meeting provided that his intention
to do so has been stated in the circular. Any vote taken at
the meeting to approve the grant of such option must be
taken on a poll.

Share Options Outstanding

As at 31 December 2021, there were no outstanding share
options and no share options were granted, exercised or
cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2021.
Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
circular of the Company dated 29 April 2013 and 3 August
2017, respectively.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the year under
review. The Company has also taken out and maintained
appropriate insurance cover to indemnify the Directors for
liabilities that may arise out of corporate activities of the Group.
The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, no claims were made
against the Directors.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 298 of
this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

AUDITOR

Grand Thornton Hong Kong Limited (“Grant Thornton”) has
resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect from 22
December 2021, as the Company could not reach a consensus
with Grant Thornton on the audit fee for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Grant Thornton has confirmed in its resignation letter dated 22
December 2021 to the Company that up to the date of the letter,
there are no circumstances which it considers should be brought
to the attention of the Shareholders or creditors of the Company
in relation to the proposed change of the Company’s auditors.
The Board and the Audit Committee have also confirmed that
there is no disagreement or unresolved matter between Grant
Thornton and the Company, and that there are no other matters
in respect of the resignation of the auditors which should be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

The Board has resolved, with the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, the appointment of Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited
(“Asian Alliance”) with effect from 12 January 2022 to fill the
casual vacancy following the resignation of Grant Thornton.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been audited by Asian Alliance.

Asian Alliance has filled the casual vacancy as auditors
of the Company and will only hold office until the
conclusion of the next AGM, and being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Asian Alliance as auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Choi Yun Chor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 May 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

/ HE(EB)LHAEBEFAERARA
Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF
TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Times
Universal Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 124 to 297, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

RVR 3 S GRS

FRRARREFEZRERAFARR
(REBEMAILLZ BRAE])

REER

BMEEZENE 124 2 297 ANKRRIER
ZRBR AR ([ERA]]) REKBAR (5HE
[E&E)) NGEEMBRE - BER_F_—F
T-A=t—HNEEMBILR AR EZA
LFFENEABEaMEtEEEEER  FER
DB HR NGRS RERARKRAMBRE
MieE (BREZSATBERHE)

BMRE BRAREREELER —HAE
ERFEN  REVKEBRRBEESSEA
e8m ((EBetMAE]) NEBTBERE
XA ([BBYBHREELEL]) EEMAFHR
B EEER-_T_—F+-_A=+—HHEK
AUBHAREREZALFENGEMER
BRGEAELRE  YRRBEEQRIEHE



Independent Auditor’s Report
AN 7 BN R

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION REBEREMHM
(a) Limitation of scope on interest in an (@) WMEBEE R 2R Z & E R

108

associate

As disclosed in Note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in
an associate, Total Blossom Sdn Bhd (“Total Blossom”),
amounted to approximately HK$1,115,000 as at
31 December 2021, share of result of an associate
amounted to approximately HK$1,870,000 and share of
other comprehensive expense of an associate amounted
to approximately HK$72,000 for the year ended
31 December 2021. The sole and only asset of the
associate is an investment property under construction
located in Malaysia (the “Associate Investment Property”)
amounted to approximately HK$29,694,000 as at 31
December 2021 and fair value loss of the Associate
Investment Property amounted to approximately
HK$3,815,000 for the year then ended 31 December
2021.
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of the Associate Investment Property, which might have
material effects on the financial position and financial
performance of Total Blossom as at and for the year ended
31 December 2021. Consequently, as the Group accounts
for its interests in Total Blossom using equity method, we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to satisfy ourselves that the Group’s share of net assets of
Total Blossom as at 31 December 2021 which represents
the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in an associate
and the Group’s share of result and other comprehensive
expense of Total Blossom for the year ended 31 December
2021 which represents the Group’s share of result of an
associate in the consolidated financial statements were
free from material misstatements. There were no other
satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence in this regard.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Limitation of scope on interest in an
associate (Continued)

Any adjustments found to be necessary to the Associate
Investment Property may have significant impact to the
share of result and other comprehensive expense of an
associate and its net asset value, which in turn, may have
consequential significant impacts on the loss and other
comprehensive expense of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021, the net assets of the Group as at 31
December 2021 and the related disclosures thereof in the
consolidated financial statements.

Limitation of scope on interests in joint
ventures

As disclosed in Note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, the interests in Triple Market Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Joint Ventures”)
with HK$Nil carrying amount as at 31 December 2020 had
been derecognised since 31 October 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, all of the
investment properties of the Joint Ventures, which were the
major assets of the Joint Ventures, were seized (the “Seized
Investment Properties”) by the Intermediate People’s Court
of Chongging (the “Court”) in relation to a loan dispute with
a financial institution (the “Court Case”). The directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) inquired the management
of the Joint Ventures in relation to the Court Case, including
the court orders, the reason for the seizure and the latest
development of the case, but they were not able to obtain
all relevant information as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, as advised by the Company’s
PRC legal advisor, the Joint Ventures do not possess
control over the Seized Investment Properties because
the Seized Investment Properties of the Joint Ventures
are held under a compulsory auction as ordered by the
Court during the year ended 31 December 2020. The
Directors were of the opinion that the Joint Ventures
are unlikely to repossess the investment properties and
therefore impairment loss on the interests in Joint Ventures
of HK$29,523,000 was made during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)

(b) Limitation of scope on interests in joint

ventures (Continued)

In view of (i) the Seized Investment Properties; (ii) the
lost of contact with the management of the Joint Ventures
since 31 October 2021 and (iii) the Directors were unable
to obtain the books and records of the Joint Ventures, the
Directors resolved that the Group no longer had the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of Joint
Ventures, and the control over the Joint Ventures was lost
on 31 October 2021 and derecognised the interest in the
Joint Ventures since 31 October 2021 (the “Joint Ventures
Derecognition Date”).

Under the circumstances as explained above, we were
not able to carry out procedures which we considered
necessary on the books and records of the Joint Ventures
to ascertain (1) the net liabilities of the Joint Ventures of
approximately HK$57,725,000 and HK$57,725,000 as at
31 December 2020 and the Joint Ventures Derecognition
Date respectively; (2) the loss of the Joint Ventures of
approximately HK$89,021,000 and HK$Nil for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and the period from 1 January
2021 to the Joint Ventures Derecognition Date respectively;
and (3) the other comprehensive income of the Joint
Ventures of approximately HK$698,000 and HK$Nil for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and the period from
1 January 2021 to the Joint Ventures Derecognition
Date respectively. There were no other satisfactory audit
procedures that we could adopt to obtain sufficient
appropriate evidence in this regard.

Any adjustments found to be necessary to the above
amounts would affect the amounts recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in respect of the Joint Ventures for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and the period from
1 January 2021 to the Joint Ventures Derecognition Date,
with a corresponding effect on the loss on derecognition
of the Joint Ventures of approximately HK$882,000, the
release of cumulative exchange reserve upon derecognition
of joint ventures of approximately HK$882,000 and the
related disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial
statements.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net
loss of approximately HK$20,940,000 during the year ended
31 December 2021 and, as of that date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$75,492,000. As stated in Note 3.1, these events or
conditions, along with other matters set forth in Note 3.1, indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

RVR 3 S GRS

REERE®R (B)

BPERBEEL SN ASRMOTBEELE
Al ([BEEZEL ] E1T8%Z - REZTE
Al RPN EERARE R EHEIFLASS
MBMEAARENEFE—GRFR - REFE
St AREMNEZ A& TR ([5F
A1) RABLRX BEEE - AEBRFETAF
MEAMERET - HAIRE - RAERNHEZ
BREBRENKEE  ARARMBERRETRLRE
HER -

FRBERENEXRTHPRE

BES B EERAMBHRRME31: &
EEREE_E-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE
B B8 %58 A 420,940,000 T - BEE%
HE: BEBENRHEABERERBEEZY
75,492,000 7T © JAMIFE3.1 PRSI - 25 =14
15N CERM 3. 1MENEMEN) BT
BEEATHAREZ - Brjaey SEBEEER
BREMENELERRM - RMPLERILE
BRREBER -

Hith & 1

EEFHHEHMENAS - A ERBEFERN
Bf BT ERGEMERER LR AN ZEE

wE -

BMYSAMBREANERL TREEMBE
£ R THE AR BEREAE A RER

A
iEEm o

ERFIEZSE S M BRRE - RN ERE
BHMER  WHEBEFEREMENEDR
HGRAMBERRAKMNBZBET AT EN
BRBEARER - UFBEARHERRAL -



\

112

Independent Auditor’s Report
AN 7 BN R

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. As described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section above, we are unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate evidence about the carrying amounts of (i)
interest in an associate as at 31 December 2021 and (ii) interests
in Joint Ventures as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2021 and which would affect the Group’s financial performance
and position and related cash flows for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2021, were necessary. Accordingly, we
are unable to conclude whether or not the other information is
materially misstated with respect to this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matters described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Hin&# (4)

ERBMERTZIE  WEMREEMER
BEABEREN - BMAREZEE - ik
NIRBERER IR - BMIRERSE B
(R —F+-_A=+—BR—HEBEQ
AIZEm EEE: IR E_TF+=
A=+—BERZZFZ—F+_H=1+—HRE
BhEZEGZEMEZTHAREERE  H
@pE BEFEHE_T_TEKR_T_-—
TZ A=+ —BIEFEMNM BRI KA KAE
BIEenE - At BMEEEEHEMERR
A RS A R E A SRR o

FREZER

RREZFHASREBELRMNEXRAE - Ry
TG AV BRRNBEZRSEENER - &
LEREAERMELEREAMBRRLYE
HARRBETF2REN  ERMTHEL
SHEHEBNER - RREBELZER R
AEVFEIRSN - HAPITREE Tl FRB AR E
TEENFEREZER -

BARRERZERERAH



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRELER

Impairment assessment of trade and other receivables

B 5 RAMERRS R ERFE

As disclosed in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gross
trade receivables and other receivables amounted to
approximately HK$53,297,000 and HK$8,110,000,
respectively, and allowance of credit losses of
approximately HK$48,455,000 and HK$6,266,000,
respectively, were included in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.

The impairment losses, net of reversal, on trade
and other receivables, amounted to approximately
HK$2,656,000 and HK$3,241,000 respectively, were
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRI ERIIEEFRELER

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
assessment on allowance for credit losses of trade and
other receivables included:

understanding key controls on how the management
estimates the credit loss allowance for trade and other
receivables;

evaluating the competence, capabilities,
independence and objectivity of the independent
external valuer engaged by the management, and the
scope of the valuer’s work;

assessing the reasonableness and appropriateness
of the Group’s methodology of ECL model, including
the model design and calculation and model inputs in
compliance with HKFRS 9;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRELER

Impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
(Continued)
B 5 RAEMERRNRETE (&)

The allowance for credit losses of trade and other
receivables represents the management’s best estimates
at the end of the reporting period of expected credit
losses under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9:
Financial Instruments’ Expected Credit Loss (the “ECL")
Model.

As disclosed in Note 6(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the ECL in relation to trade and other
receivables are assessed individually for the debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings.

The management assessed the ECL based on historical
observed default rates and adjusted by forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort.

We consider impairment assessment on trade and
other receivables as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements
and the significant estimates and judgement involved in
determining the ECL allowance on the trade and other
receivables.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter (Continued)

B FEL I EEFREFZLEE (&)

testing the integrity of information used by the
management to develop the provision matrix,
including aging analysis of trade receivables as at 31
December 2021, on a sample basis, by comparing
individual items in the analysis with the relevant sale
invoices and other supporting documents;

challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance on trade receivables
as at 31 December 2021, including their identification
of significant balances and credit-impaired receivables,
the reasonableness of the management’s grouping
of the remaining debtors into different categories in
the provision matrix and the basis of estimated loss
rates applied in each category in the provision matrix
(with reference to historical default rates and forward-
looking information);
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Key audit matter

MREZER

Impairment assessment of trade and other receivables = How our audit addressed the key audit matter (Continued)

(Continued) HIREZ AR % EE ()
B SR A MERERS R EFFE ()

o reviewing the reasonableness of the management’s
estimation of other receivables in expected timing of
collection and the credit quality of individual debtors,
including the background of the debtors and their
credit worthiness and collection history;

o reviewing the repayment history and settlements
received subsequent to the reporting period from the
debtors; and

° evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade and other receivables in Note
6(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRELER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

WK - BESRREUAREAEEE ZREFE

As disclosed in Notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 December 2021, the
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of the Group were approximately
HK$84,914,000 and HK$12,445,000 respectively.
No impairment loss in respect of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Group’s management performed impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets for the segments that continued to
underperform by estimating the recoverable amount
of their property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets with reference to the valuation performed by an
independent professional external valuer, with reference
to value in use calculation for resort hotel and fair
value less cost to sale for development land included
in property, plant and equipment used for the hotel
operation segment, value in use calculation for property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets used for
the properties management segment.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B ERUIEEEREZER

Our audit procedures in relation to evaluating the
impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets included:

understanding the impairment assessment process
of the Group with involvement of the independent
professional external valuer engaged by the
management to estimate the recoverable amount of
the land and buildings;

evaluating the competence, capability and objectivity
of the independent professional external valuer
engaged by the management, and the scope of the
valuer’s work;

assessing the reasonableness and appropriateness of
the valuation methodologies;

Evaluating the reasonableness of the operating
cash flows forecast and the key assumptions
used, including evaluating the reasonableness of
the budgeted revenue, budgeted gross margins,
expected growth rate with reference to the historical
performance market comparable used, and evaluating
the suitability of the discount rate used; and
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Key audit matter

HRELER
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Impairment assessment of property, plant and  How our audit addressed the key audit matter (Continued)

B FEL U EEFREFZLEE (&)

equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

VR - BEERREUREFEEE 2 REFE ()

Relevant disclosures of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets and the impairment assessment
are set out in Notes 18, 19 and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

We consider impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets as a key audit
matter because of its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the significant estimates and
judgement involved in assessing the recoverable amount
of properties, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets.
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evaluating the sensitivity analysis performed by the
management by making adjustments to key inputs
and assumptions in the impairment assessments
and considering whether any reasonably possible
adjustments would result in material impairment.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRELER

Impairment assessment of intangible assets

BB E 2 B E

As disclosed in Note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2021, the Group’s
intangible assets amounted to approximately
HK$15,162,000, net of accumulated impairment loss
of approximately HK$2,133,000 was included in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

Impairment loss on intangible assets amounted to
approximately HK$1,748,000 was recognised in the
Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B ERUIEEEREZER

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on impairment of intangible assets included:

understanding the impairment assessment process
of the Group with involvement of the independent
professional external valuer engaged by the
management to estimate the recoverable amount of
intangible assets;

evaluating the competence, capability and objectivity
of the independent professional external valuer
engaged by management, and the scope of the
valuer’s work;

obtaining the valuation report of intangible
assets impairment assessment and to assess the
reasonableness and appropriateness of valuation
method adopted by management;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRELER

Impairment assessment of intangible assets (Continued)

BREEZRE (F)

Impairment of intangible assets is assessed by
comparing the recoverable amount and carrying
amount of the intangible assets at the end of the
reporting period. The Group engaged an independent
professional valuer to carry out an impairment
assessment by estimating the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit in which the intangible assets
have been allocated, with reference to value in use
calculation which required significant judgement on
assumptions and input adopted in the underlying cash
flows. Key estimates involved in the preparation of cash
flow projections for the period covered by the approved
financial budgets include the discount rate, growth rate
and retention rate in order to derive the recoverable
amount.

We consider impairment assessment on intangible
assets as a key audit matter because of its significance
to the consolidated financial statements and the
significant estimates and judgement involved in
assessing the recoverable amount of the intangible
assets.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter (Continued)

B FEL U EEFREFZLEE (&)

o obtaining the discounted cash flow forecast and
checking its mathematical accuracy;

o challenging and evaluating the reasonableness
of key assumptions and methodologies used by
the management in the cash flow forecasts, such
as growth rates, discount rate and retention rate
taking into account industry forecasts and market
developments, the budget, future business plan and
historical performance; and

o reviewing the sensitivity analysis performed by the
management on the key assumptions to understand
the impact of reasonably possible change in
assumptions on the estimated recoverable amount.
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020, were audited by another auditor who
expressed a qualified opinion on those statements on 29 March
2021.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

REPORT ON OTHER MATTERS UNDER
SECTIONS 407(2) AND 407(3) OF THE HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE

In respect alone of the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding interest in an associate and interests
in Joint Ventures as described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report above:

o we were unable to determine whether adequate accounting
records had been kept; and

° we have not obtained all the information or explanations
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, are necessary
and material for the purpose of our audit.

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Cheng Ting Chiu

Practising Certificate Number: PO6598

8/F., Catic Plaza
8 Causeway Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

6 May 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

y=Ad8c T

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HA 2 ik

1R

HE-_Z-_—F+_A=1+—HILFE
2021 2020
—EB-—-F —TFF
Notes HK$’000 HK$' 000
BRE FExT FAT
Revenue Yz 7 77,700 58,803
Direct costs BEKAKR (58,692) (41,533)
Gross profit EF 19,008 17,270
Other income, gains and losses, net Halg A - WEEFEE
KERFHE 9 3,489 8,304
Administrative expenses ITERS (35,145) (28,359)
Impairment losses under expected credit TEHR{E EEIBIEAIIE |
loss model, net of reversal MBS - BR[O 10 (5,897) (22,613)
Impairment loss recognised on interests B A S ¥ 2 #E
in joint ventures ﬁEpuJIﬁQEETE 24 - (29,523)
Impairment loss recognised on intangible gt & & E R REE 1
assets 20 (1,748) (385)
Share of result of an associate DR —fEEE N R A 23 (1,870) (4,349)
Share of results of joint ventures DEEEDEEE 24 - (15,335)
Loss on derecognition of joint ventures BRIEEREEDEEE (882) -
Finance costs BB 11 (5,163) (4,979)
Loss before tax BREBLATE A 13 (28,208) (79,969)
Income tax credit Frisiii & 12 7,268 1,189
Loss for the year REFEEEIE (20,940) (78,780)
Other comprehensive income (expense) ZASHFEH 2 MmN
for the year (F%)
Items that may be reclassified HitA[ge @ B 7 HE
subsequently to profit or loss: BamAEE -
Exchange differences arising on BMEGINETBESE
translation of foreign operations ZIEHER 678 577
Share of other comprehensive income DA ETEEM
of joint ventures 2E = 24 - 342
Share of other comprehensive expense o — g R F) H Aty
of an associate 2HERMX 23 (72) -
Release of cumulative exchange reserve 4 IFHER S L3R
upon derecognition of joint ventures IR RETIE KRS 24 882 -
Other comprehensive income for the year, N[ H b2 EUES -
net of income tax HBRFT1SHR 1,488 919
Total comprehensive expense for the year 752 5] 2 EfI X 458 (19,452) (77,861)
Loss per share BRER 17
Basic BN (1.92) cents 4l | (8.52) cents /&Ll
Diluted o N/A ~E A N/A g A

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“ra AR

As at 31 December 2021
KRB —F+-A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—fF —EEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B RE FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LEN = YN 18 84,914 85,533
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 19 12,445 2,894
Intangible assets | EE 20 15,162 20,520
Goodwill P 21 3,265 =
Interest in an associate R—REEERE 2R 23 1,115 16,865
Interests in joint ventures NEERE RS 24 - =
Deferred tax assets BERIAEE 35 8,514 3,875
125,415 129,687
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 25 656 584
Cryptocurrency nEgk 26 5,370 -
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E M YRR 27 8,167 12,818
Amount due from an associate FEU— I & A B IR 23 13,808 =
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 28 28,293 47,831
56,294 61,233
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk HAMER AR 29 39,190 23,228
Contract liabilities ABREE 30 5,527 4,284
Contingent consideration payable FERT S ARAE 39 240 =
Loans from a controlling shareholder — BRI ER 31 10,544 -
Secured loans EIHRER 32 29,857 33,667
Bonds B 38 30,181 10,181
Lease liabilities HEAE 34 1,371 2,518
Tax liabilities HIEaE 14,876 14,671
131,786 88,549
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REAEFE (75,492) (27,316)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEABERRBARS
LIABILITIES 49,923 102,371
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR

As at 31 December 2021
RZEZ—F+=-_A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—fF —EEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
PiiEE FHET FAT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Loans from controlling shareholders AR E K 31 - 20,558
Bonds &% 33 20,000 40,000
Lease liabilities HEaE 34 11,374 732
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEEE 35 2,275 5,355
33,649 66,645
NET ASSETS EEFE 16,274 35,726
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAXRFE
Share capital %N 36 441,350 441,350
Reserves i (425,076) (405,624)
TOTAL EQUITY i 16,274 35,726
The consolidated financial statements on pages 124 to 297 were BREIAEFE2997 B2 6N BHRERE

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 6

May 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Choi Yun Chor
=89

Director

EE

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

——ERANREESSHERKEET

HIATALTRKREE

Tai Kwok Keung Kenny

HE
Director

EE

N
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4R E

N

== N\ 7

EE P

HE_T-—F+-_A=+—HILFE
Share Merger  Contribution Statutory Exchange  Accumulated
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
e AHEE &G EERE 5 2HFHE 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TEL TAL TAL TEn TAL
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d)
(fitzFa) (FzEb) (Fzkc) (FirzEd)
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-%F-F-A 383,383 (124,635) 8478 2903 (391700 (175339) 61,120
Loss for the year rEEER - = = = - (78,780) (78,780)
Other comprehensive income for ~~ AEEEM2ENE
the year
ltems that may be reclassified BRI ea A Bz AntES
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on BEBIEBEEN
translation of foreign operations EHES - - - = 577 = 577
Share of other comprehensive AMEAELEEMZEYE
income of joint ventures - - - - 342 - 342
Other comprehensive income REREM2ENE - MRAMEH
for the year, net of income tax - - - - 919 - 919
Total comprehensive income TEEZENA (Fx) 88
(expense) for the year - - - - 919 (78,780) (77.861)
Issuance of shares under rights SRE—RNBARRIRG
issue (Note 36) (P36) 52,823 - - - - = 52823
Transaction costs attributable to BIROEGRSER
issue of shares (356) - - - - - (356)
At 31 December 2020 R-BZBE+ZA=1-A 441,350 (124,635) 8478 2903 (38251)  (254119) 35,726
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —E-_ER



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GARSEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_ZT-—F+_A=+—HILFE

Tz —<—
Share Merger  Contribution Statutory Exchange  Accumulated
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
Bx SRk HERE  iERE  ERRE  ZEE ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn Ti#n FiEn Tén TEn AR TiEn
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d)
(Hzta) (tzED) (FzEc) (FzEd)
At 1 January 2021 W-E--£-f-H 441,350 (124,635) 8,478 2,903 (38,251)  (254,119) 35,726
Loss for the year KEEEE - - - - - (20,940) (20,940
Other comprehensive income TEEEMZENE (RY)
(expense) for the year
ltems that may be reclassified EhusegirBzEamES
subsequently to profit or loss
Fxchange differences arising on AEBINERELR
translation of foreign operations EREE - - - - 678 - 678
Share of other comprehensive AME—FBERT
expense of an assaciate E2ERY - - - - (72) - (72)
Release of cumulative exchange BIFRRAELERELR
reserve upon derecognition of ZHER G
joint ventures - - - - 882 - 882
Other comprehensive income FEEERENE  NBAEH
for the year, net of income tax - - - - 1,488 - 1,488
Total comprehensive income (expense) RNAEE2EME () 4%
for the year - - - - 1,488 (20,940) (19,452)
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-§+=fA=1-H 441,350 (124,635) 8,478 2,903 (36,763)  (275,059) 16,274
Notes: M3E -
(@)  Merger reserve (a) EpHEE
Merger reserve was created as a result of the acquisition of common At EEB YR EEEES B MR - Ty

E!%W%@ETE’UﬂE@@E@’Aﬁﬁ@ZF&ﬁE’U%%ﬁ o I
BEREAGHEEAR-

control entities. It represents the difference between the carrying
amount and fair value of subsidiaries acquired. The acquisition was
accounted for using merger accounting.

(b)  Contribution reserve (b) HERFE
Contribution reserve represents contributions from shareholders for HERBERRR —ETE=FA=+HAHHE
indemnity liabilities payable for periods prior to 30 June 2003. ZENBEBELE -

(c)  Statutory reserve (c) EERRE

REBERANINEBECENPBER - ARFAR
TEZEHNHBRARARE - REFBES - 1

In accordance with the PRC laws applicable to wholly-foreign owned
investment enterprises, subsidiaries of the Company operating in the

128

(d)

PRC are required to set up a general reserve fund and appropriate
at least 10% of respective company’s annual profit after tax, as
determined under the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to the
general reserve fund until the balance of the reserve equals to 50% of
its registered capital. This fund can be used to make good losses and
to convert into paid-up capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchanges differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 3.2.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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BHEEREXR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-_Z-—F+_A=1+—HILFE
2021 2020
—s-—% it el -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KT
Loss before tax B A S 18 (28,208) (79,969)
Adjustments for: THE
Finance costs =D ®N 5,163 4,979
Interest income FE YA (12) (10)
Share of result of an associate ﬁtE—F‘aEJﬂﬁﬁ%’D\ GES 1,870 4,349
Share of results of joint ventures DMEEEDEREE - 15,335
Loss on derecognition of joint ventures BIFTEREEEEEE 882 =
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - HES NGB E
equipment 2,982 2,821
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESERE 1,899 2,111
Amortisation of intangible assets | A E 4,170 4,562
Impairment losses under expected TREEEBERAIE
credit loss model, net of reversal ZRAEESE - kR A 5,897 22613
Impairment loss recognised on MRE B 7 R
interests in joint ventures REEE - 29,523
Impairment loss recognised on MEFEERRAREEE 1,748 385
intangible assets
Gain on disposal of property, HEYIZE - HES
plant and equipment WGP - (54)
Loss on written-off of property, Wfﬁ%% HEs &
plant and equipment i 2 1R 51 =
Gain on loans from controlling %ﬂ&L\ﬁEnZJH‘J'?ﬁ/L\\/L,ng
shareholders stated at fair E ]l Hxﬂxﬁ
value upon initial recognition Bz - (1,564)
Gain on early termination of a lease BRI R E IS (136) -
Loss from changes in mEEsAREBEES
fair value of cryptocurrency IR A & 1R 2,253 =
Currency exchange translation HNEE 5 (7) (710)
Operating cash flows before EEESBHAINKE
movements in working capital HEeERE (1,448) 4371
(Increase) decrease in inventories 78 (3gm) md (70) 246
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 N E 4th & U BR FRAE A1 (601) (6,408)
Increase (decrease) in trade and B 5 REMBERIRFEM CR)
other payables 231 (3,527)
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities &£ & &0 CR4>) 1,201 (128)
Cash used in operations REERMAZRS (687) (5,446)
Income taxes paid ENFEH (127) (116)
NET CASH USED IN K& RE T A
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RE&FE (814) (5,562)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB E % - # 23 & &R (2,105) (607)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE - s MEE
plant and equipment ZFS 5 - 419
Purchase of cryptocurrency BB e (7,623) -
Interest received BUF B 12 10
Net cash inflow from H&E%Ffﬁ%/&ﬁﬁ%z
acquisition of subsidiaries FIRERA 2 =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REEZBFAZREFH
ACTIVITIES (9,714) (178)
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —E-—F#H
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

an\ Eﬁﬂ‘z /ﬁiﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—2--F ke S SS3
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AMEEH
Advance from shareholders PESLEA - 10,903
Repayments of secured loans ERIEHER (3,973) (1,132)
Repayments of bonds BiEES - (10,000)
Repayments of lease liabilities YHEEEE (1,512) (1,854)
Interest paid BEASFE (3,713) (4,270)
Proceeds from the issue of new shares PR B TR IR TS 5008
under right issues - 52,823
Share issuance expenses BHBITI - (356)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM mEEE (FTH) ISz FE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (9,198) 46,114
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN BeRELEEYZ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R4 EiniEEE (19,726) 40,374
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENZBERBESEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 47,831 6,898
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EXRSE =&
CHANGES 188 559
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERZEER
END OF THE YEAR, Re%EY
represented by bank balances and cash ~ BlR1T4&#RI & 28,293 47,831

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

Times Universal Group Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Forebase International Holdings Limited) (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability. The registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are located at Unit 3002, 30/F,
Workington Tower, 78 Bonham Strand, Sheung Wan, Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The immediate holding company of the Company is
Great Match International Limited (“Great Match”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the
ultimate controlling shareholder is Mr. Choi Yun Chor (the
“Controlling Shareholder”).

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are hotel operation
in Canada, properties management in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and cryptocurrency
investment.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 29 June 2020,
the name of the Company was changed from “Forebase
International Holdings Limited” to “Times Universal Group
Holdings Limited”. The change of the Company’s name
become effective on 16 July 2020.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$"). For the purposes of presenting the
consolidated financial statements, the Group adopted HK$
as its presentation currency as its shares are listed in Hong
Kong.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
Hong Kong Accounting - Phase 2

Standard (“HKAS”) 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the
IFRS Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the
International Accounting Standards Board issued in June
2021 which clarified the costs an entity should include
as “estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when
determining the net realisable value of inventories.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group'’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSS in issue

but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?
Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture*

Covid-19-Related Rent Concession
beyond 30 June 2021*

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates®
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use?
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-20207
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSS in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments:

° update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations so that it refers to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 issued in
June 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) instead
of Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2010 issued in
October 2010);

o add a requirement that, for transactions and other
events within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, an acquirer applies HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed in
a business combination; and

° add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The application of the amendments is not expected to

have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSS in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i)  the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle
the liability within 12 months; and

(ii) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are
met at the end of the reporting period, even if
the lender does not test compliance until a later
date; and

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current
or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31

December 2021, the application of the amendments will
not result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSS in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate
how an entity applies the “four-step materiality process”
to accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to
the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s
significant accounting policies. The impacts of application,
if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSS in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. An accounting policy may
require items in financial statements to be measured in a
way that involves measurement uncertainty — that is, the
accounting policy may require such items to be measured
at monetary amounts that cannot be observed directly
and must instead be estimated. In such a case, an entity
develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective
set out by the accounting policy. Developing accounting
estimates involves the use of judgements or assumptions
based on the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates
in HKAS 8 is retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSS in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 Income Taxes so
that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

As disclosed in Note 3.2 to the consolidated financial
statements, for leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to the relevant assets and
liabilities as a whole. Temporary differences relating to
relevant assets and liabilities are assessed on a net basis.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group
will recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised)
and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with the right-of-use
assets and the lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early application
permitted. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities which are
subject to the amendments amounted to approximately
HK$492,000 and HK$548,000. The Group is still in the
process of assessing the full impact of the application of
the amendments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSS in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements make amendments to the
following standards.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of assessing
whether modification of terms of original financial liability
constitutes substantial modification under the “10 per
cent” test, a borrower includes only fees paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or the lender on the
other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to Illustrative Example 13 accompanying
HKFRS 16 removes from the example the illustration of
reimbursement relating to leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to remove any potential confusion.

HKAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment ensures consistency with the
requirements in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement by
removing the requirement in paragraph 22 of HKAS 41 to
exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value
of a biological asset using a present value technique.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(the “CO”"). For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Going concern assessment

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
incurred a loss of approximately HK$20,940,000
and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$75,492,000. Such conditions indicate the
existence of material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, and thus, the Group may not be
able to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in
the normal course of business.

In order to ensure the Group’s ability to operate as
a going concern, a company wholly-owned by the
Controlling Shareholder has given an undertaking
to provide continuing financial support to the Group
to enable it to meet its liabilities as and when they
fall due and to enable the Group to continue in
operational existence.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Going concern assessment (Continued)

The Directors believe the Group will have sufficient
cash resources to satisfy its future working capital
and other financing requirements as and when they
fall due in the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, the Directors believe
that the Group will continue as a going concern and
therefore consider it is appropriate to adopt a going
concern basis in preparing its consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements do not include
any adjustments that would result from the failure of
the Group to obtain sufficient future funding. Should
the Group be unable to continue to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made
to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets of the
Group to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify
non-current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities, respectively.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs are to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of
the valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN pEES L

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if fact and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according
to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’
proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_ZT--—F+-A=t+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners
of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional
concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The
gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and
assets is determined not to be a business and no
further assessment is needed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating
the purchase price first to financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in October
2010).
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e B ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEZ-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if
the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which (a)
the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the
relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease
when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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e B ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting policy
above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or group of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or
any of the cash-generating unit within the group
of cash-generating units, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the cash-generating
unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of cash-
generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of
the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed
of and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the
group of cash-generating units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the

acquisition of an associate and a joint venture is
described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_ZT--—F+-A=t+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
and joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements
of associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in
net assets of the associate/joint venture other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
or joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_ZT--—F+-A=t+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of
the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the same
basis as would be required if that associate or joint
venture had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate or joint venture would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues
to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.
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e B ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time

when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

MRGGMBRFERRTESR
FHEUR (%)

EHIEN

AEBN K EAORER (FL)
FERA - BIEREROR TR
EmS R [EHE BRTEP

B o

BHAOREEERNEmRRS (—4A
EmERTS) 23— R 5 KA R A
AEmEART -

A& A TNE AR — IR - R
FEREER - MRARIZRTE2ETT
1R A B 40 B AR 0 HE T BE AR R

o RAEBEENE ZERGE
BN AR ANE BB A FTIR A
Az

o AEBEMBHAERRENT A
BE MREERAKREED
iS3z: -9k A I

s AEENBEHOLARAIEHARE
BEBAAENEE MAK
BHESCEANNRER R
BRI THORER) -

&R H&A#E)ﬁﬁg’e{lﬁlﬂé’iﬁﬁﬁ&
TE5 RO 22 551 4 0 P D B R

BARRERZERERAH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satistaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the goods or
services transferred to the customer to date relative to
the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.
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e B ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customer or the Group with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A
significant financing component may exist regardless
of whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated
in the contract or implied by the payment terms
agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment
and transfer of the associated goods or services is
less than one year, the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for
any significant financing component.
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re B ERARM R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %ﬁ%%&éﬂ#ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ&igﬁ
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FTHER (&)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FTEFEBUR (8)

(Continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will
not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of
the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and
instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.
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AR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_ZT--—F+-A=t+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MEGEUMBHRREERTER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS sTBUR (48)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEFBUR (&)

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of carparks that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic
basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the
lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T--—F+-A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MEAZSHMBRREERTESE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FTHER (&)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEFBUR (&)

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if

the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market rent
review/expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount
rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate

line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of exchange reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement
or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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MNGEUBREREERTIEE
STEUGR (48)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEFBUR (&)

(Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income, gains and
losses, net”.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”), state-managed retirement
benefit schemes and Canada Pension Plan are
recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %ﬁ%%&éﬂ#ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ&igﬁ
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FTHER (&)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FTEFEBUR (8)

(Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in
the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an
asset.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities,
the Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed
on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-
use assets over the lease payments for the principal
portion of lease liabilities results in net deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable
entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is included in
the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax
treatments, the Group considers whether it is
probable that the relevant tax authority will accept
the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be
used by individual group entities in their income tax
filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred taxes
are determined consistently with the tax treatment
in the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the
relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment, the effect of each uncertainty is
reflected by using either the most likely amount or the
expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes.
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Freehold lands are not depreciated and are measured
at cost less subsequent accumulated impairment
loss.

Buildings in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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NN pEES L

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration
is allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as
“right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of
financial position. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the
cost of assets other than freehold land less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with indefinite useful lives
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN pEES L

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Cryptocurrencies

The Group considers cryptocurrencies as a type of
intangible asset and accounts for cryptocurrencies
held by the Group under the revaluation model.
The cryptocurrencies held by the Group are
considered to have indefinite life, given there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the relevant
cryptocurrencies are expected to generate net cash
inflows for the Group. Any revaluation increase arising
from revaluation of cryptocurrencies is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognise in profit or loss, in which case
the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent
of the decrease previously charged. A decrease
in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of
cryptocurrencies is recognised in profit or loss to
the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation
of that asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus
is transferred to retained profits.

The Group recognises cryptocurrencies received
through airdrops or forks if the cryptocurrencies is
expected to generate probable future benefit and if
the Group is able to support the trading, custody, or
withdrawal of these assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NN pEES L

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit or a group of cash-generating units) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
and interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %ﬁ%%&éﬁ#ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ&igﬁ
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FTHER (&)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEFBUR (&)

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial
assets (including trade receivables, deposits, other
receivables, amount due from an associate and bank
balances and cash) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

re B ERARM R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HEZ-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %ﬁ%?%éﬁﬁ%#ﬁ%%ﬁ&i%@
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FTHER (&)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEFBUR (&)

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessments are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on trade receivables are
assessed collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings. The Group would also make
individual assessment on the recoverability of trade
receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %ﬁ%%éﬁﬁ%#ﬁ%%ﬁ&i%@
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FTHER (&)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEBUR ()
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) tRTR (#)
Financial assets (Continued) ERIEE (#8)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment WRIRE B IR EZERE I FETTH,
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued) BTG EE R E ()
For all other instruments, the Group measures the REABEHMITAMES ~AEEFEE
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there BRESNI2EABREEES -
has been a significant increase in credit risk since bR IE B W1t R & (5 A R e K ig g
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises m-AAEERREETEHEEES
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime B REEERRBEHREEEEN
ECL should be recognised is based on significant FHEEER B VIR TR AR B A iE 49
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default Ry R] REME Sk R SR RO EB AL N ©

occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk () (EEREZEIN

In assessing whether the credit risk has R E BB EREEERR
increased significantly since initial recognition, ERBERINE - AEBE R
the Group compares the risk of a default FERHERMIAZR4LENNR
occurring on the financial instrument as at YR H B em T EE
the reporting date with the risk of a default Z’]J_L BIHETTLEBR o TEETTEL(R
occurring on the financial instrument as B AEEgZRaEAAX
at the date of initial recognition. In making FHEEMEUHER  BREE
this assessment, the Group considers both SREBMBETBZHKAHSE
quantitative and qualitative information that is TIENAI SR RIRE &R} o

reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

184  TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED RRRBREBZRER AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per
globally understood definitions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_ZT--—F+-A=t+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(a)

(b)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes-off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written-off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights. The Group uses a
practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience
and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward-looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %ﬁ%%éﬁﬁ%#ﬁ%%ﬁ&i%@
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FTHER (&)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEBUR ()
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) tRTR (#)
Financial assets (Continued) ERIEE (#8)
Derecognition of financial assets BILEREHEE
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when EEcREERESME LA LENE
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset " ﬁzli'i?l CHEEERHEES
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and %Z%@K*B b IS ET 25—
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership T $§’%@7§ RILHERZIEE
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither o $EIZZD]IE${“—JZ1% BB T
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and BRI R KRB - I BT
rewards of ownership and continues to control the EE{“ZﬁE RlemREREEL
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained REBERKRA “bﬁ,\SEHZWF'@%Tfm
interest in the asset and an associated liability for o AEBWRBEEZEEHEER
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains Bz BRE Rk &ER - Aled
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership %Eﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁf%ﬁﬁE@?fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁllﬁﬁﬁ
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues REHEHEER -

to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at PRI ERIZEHEK AT ECERE
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s ER iﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁfﬁéﬂﬁﬂﬂl&%\ﬂﬁﬁﬁ
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration BB 7 ZREN B TR o

received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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re B ERARM R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %ﬁ%%éﬁﬁ%#ﬁ%%ﬁ&i%@
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FTHER (&)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEBUR ()

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual
obligation for the Group to deliver cash or other
financial assets or the Group has the sole discretion
to defer payment of distribution and redemption of
principal amount indefinitely are classified as equity
instruments.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or
at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial liability is (i) contingent consideration
of an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for trading or (iii) it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of repurchasing it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is
a financial guarantee contract or a designated
and effective hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading or contingent consideration of an acquirer
in a business combination may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKFRS 9
permits the entire combined contract to be
designated as at FVTPL.

For financial liabilities that are designated as at
FVTPL, the amount of changes in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

=
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, secured loans, loans from controlling
shareholders, bonds and lease liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

Going concern and liquidity

As explained in Note 3.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, the financial performance and financial
position of the Group indicates the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The assessment of
the going concern assumptions involves making judgement
by the management, at a particular point of time, about
the future outcome of events or conditions which are
inherently uncertain. The management considers that the
Group has ability to continue as a going concern and the
major conditions that may cast significant doubt about the
going concern assumptions are set out in Note 3.1 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T_—FT_A=1+HLFE
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated, which is the higher of the
value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit (or a group of cash-generating units) and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
or change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows or upward revision
of discount rate, a material impairment loss or further
impairment loss may arise. Furthermore, the estimated
cash flows and discount rate are subject to higher degree
of estimation uncertainties due to uncertainty on how the
Covid-19 pandemic may progress and evolve.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
goodwill is approximately RMB2,668,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,265,000) (2020: HK$Nil). Details of
the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note
21.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax asset amounted
to approximately HK$713,000 (2020: HK$Nil) in relation
to unused tax losses for an operating subsidiary has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position. No deferred tax asset has been recognised on
the unused tax losses of approximately HK$103,254,000
(2020: HK$94,162,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax
asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits
or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future, which is a key source of estimation uncertainty
especially the uncertainty on how the Covid-19 pandemic
may progress and evolve. In cases where the actual future
taxable profits generated are less or more than expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which result in revision
of future taxable profits estimation, a material reversal or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

Amortisation charges of intangible assets and
depreciation charges of property, plant and
equipment

Intangible assets with finite useful lives and property, plant
and equipment are amortised or depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
after taking into account the estimated residual value, if
any. The management of the Group reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of amortisation or depreciation expenses to
be recorded during each financial year. The useful lives
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation expenses for future periods
is adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts
of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
of the Group were approximately HK$15,162,000 (2020:
HK$20,520,000) and approximately HK$84,914,000
(2020: HK$85,533,000) respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T_—FT_A=1+HLFE
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and other
receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
trade receivable under simplified approach. The provision
rates are based on aging analysis as groupings of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix
is based on internal credit ratings and the Group’s historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered.

The Group calculates the ECL for the other receivables
by grouping the counterparties with similar nature under
general approach. The provision rates are based on internal
credit ratings and taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
changes in the forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade
and other receivables are disclosed in Notes 6(b) and 27
respectively.

Estimated impairment of an associate

As at 31 December 2021, in view of the suspension in
the construction of the investment properties held by
the assocate due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group
performed impairment assessment on the interest in an
associate. The associate mainly holds investment properties
which are stated at fair value. The determination of the
fair value performed by professional external valuer under
direct comparison approach involves certain assumptions
of market conditions which are that the investment
properties are sold in the existing state with similar price
per square metre with the comparables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of an associate (Continued)

In relying on the valuation report, the Directors have
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market conditions.
Changes to these assumptions, including the potential
risk of any market violation, policy, geopolitical and social
changes or other unexpected incidents as a result of
change in macroeconomic environment, travel restrictions
implemented by many countries or other unexpected
incidents would result in changes in the fair values of the
investment properties and the corresponding adjustments
to the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

The Directors performed internal assessment on the
risks of change in macroeconomic environment through
performing sensitivity analysis in relation to the Group’s
investment properties.

As at 31 December 2021, pursuant to the valuation on
the fair value of the investment properties provided by
the management, the carrying amount of investment
properties exceeds its recoverable amount, thus the
associate recognised impairment loss of approximately
HK$3,815,000 (2020: HK$8,581,000) and the Group
recognised share of result of an associate of approximately
HK$1,870,000 (2020: HK$4,205,000) in respect of the
impairment loss.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the
interest in an associate amounted to approximately
HK$1,115,000 (2020: HK$16,865,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T_—FT_A=1+HLFE
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are stated at costs
less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has
to exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any
indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate.

Determining whether intangible assets is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of intangible
assets which is the higher of the value-in-use or fair value
less costs of disposal. The value-in-use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the intangible assets and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, or change in facts
and circumstances which results in downward revision of
future cash flows or upward revision of discount rate, a
material impairment loss or further impairment loss may
arise. Furthermore, the estimated cash flows and discount
rate are subject to higher degree of estimation uncertainties
in the current year due to uncertainty on how the Covid-19
pandemic may progress and evolve and volatility in
financial markets, including potential disruptions of the
Group’s operation in properties management.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of intangible assets
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, pursuant to the value-in-
use calculation for intangible assets provided by the
management, the carrying amount of the intangible assets
exceeds its recoverable amount, thus impairment loss of
approximately HK$1,748,000 (2020: HK$385,000) was
recognised in respect of the intangible assets.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
intangible assets is approximately HK$15,162,000 (2020:
HK$20,520,000), after taking into account the accumulated
impairment losses of approximately HK$2,133,000 (2020:
HK$385,000). Detail of the recoverable amount calculation
is disclosed in Note 20.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets is impaired requires
estimation of the recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets which is the higher
of the value-in-use or fair value less costs of disposal. The
recoverable amount of those property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets was determined based on i) market
approach by reference to the transaction prices of similar
assets within the same industry, less costs of disposal for
development land and ii) the present value of discounted
cash flows for resort hotel, other property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets.

When indication of impairment is identified for property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, management
assesses its recoverable amount by reference to the
transaction prices of similar assets within the same
industry, less costs of disposal for development land and
the present value of discounted cash flows for resort hotel,
other property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T_—FT_A=1+HLFE
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
subject to impairment assessment were approximately
HK$84,914,000 and HK$12,445,000 (2020:
HK$85,533,000 and HK$2,894,000) respectively. The
recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets exceeds its carrying amount, thus
no impairment loss recognised in respect of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets. Details of the
impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are disclosed in Notes 18 and 19, respectively.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of
risk and securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
The Group’s strategy in monitoring its capital structure,
which was unchanged from the prior year, was to maintain
a sufficient cash level to meet its liquidity requirements. In
order to maintain or adjust the cash level, the Group may
issue new shares, raise new debts financing or sell assets
to increase the cash level.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T--—F+-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. &I H
Categories of financial instruments EMIENE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFHIT
Financial assets SMEE
Amortised cost BHA R 48,787 73,479
Financial liabilities eRAaE
FVTPL NAREEFEAHE8 ABHR
Contingent consideration eSS ARAE
payable 240 -
Amortised cost BHA A 142,517 130,884
142,757 130,884

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits, amount
due from an associate, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, contingent consideration
payable, loan from a controlling shareholder, secured
loans, bonds and lease liabilities. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-Z-—

6.

FH-A=1t—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to amount due from a third party included
in other receivables, the amount due to third parties
included in trade and other payables, bonds and
lease liabilities bearing fixed rates. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary action when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank deposits and secured loans
bearing variable rates.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of (i) prevailing
market rates arising from the Group’s secured loans
and bank balances denominated in HK$, United
States dollar (“US$”) and Canadian dollar (“CAD")
and (ii) Renminbi (“RMB”) base deposit rate
stipulated by the People’s Bank of China arising from
the Group’s bank balances denominated in RMB.
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AR R MR

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

b. Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Total interest income from financial assets that are

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

eI R (&)
ERERERE BRREK (8)

b.

Fil % JE b (45)

BB A B2 SREE Z BN S

measured at amortised cost: WA
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET T
Financial assets at amortised IR B AT EZ S RUEE
cost 12 10

Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured

WIFARAEBEFEREZS AR

at FVTPL: HAEZERMaEz ERY
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECFTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Financial liabilities at amortised 1Z# SR A=t E 2 SR EE
cost 5,163 4979
—E-—FH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-Z-—

6.

FH-A=1t—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate secured loan as at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis points (2020: 50 basis points) increase
or decrease in variable rate of secured loan is
used represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. The
amount due to third parties, loan from a controlling
shareholder bonds and lease liabilities bearing fixed
rates is not exposed to material interest rate risk,
therefore, no sensitivity analysis is presented. Bank
balances are excluded from sensitivity analysis as
the Directors consider that the exposure of cash
flow interest rate risk arising from variable rate bank
balances is insignificant.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2020:
50 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s loss for the year
ended 31 December 2021 would increase/decrease
HK$149,000 (2020: HK$168,000).
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to
trade receivables, other receivables and deposits,
amount due from an associate, amount due from a
joint venture and bank balances. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets, except that the credit risks associated with
amount due from an associate is mitigated because
the Controlling Shareholder have undertaken to
indemnify the Group against any losses that may
result from the non-recovery of the amount due from
an associate.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

The Group’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy
counterparties. Credit terms are granted to new
customers after a creditworthiness assessment by
the credit control department. Where available at a
reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports
on customers are obtained and used. Customers who
are not considered creditworthy are required to pay in
advance or on delivery of goods. The payment record
of customers is closely monitored. In this regard, the
management considers that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s concentration
of credit risk by geographical locations is mainly in the
PRC, which accounted for 99.74% (2020: 99.83%)
of the total trade receivables as at 31 December
2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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6.

FH-A=1t—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has a
concentration of credit risk as Nil% (2020: 27%) and
Nil% (2020: 71%) of the total gross trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively.

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade receivables
collectively based on provision matrix. Except for trade
receivables which the management of the Group
considered as high uncertainty of recovery, which are
assessed for impairment individually, the remaining
trade receivables are grouped under a provision
matrix based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the historical observed default rates adjusted by
forward looking estimates.

Impairment loss, net of reversal, of approximately
HK$2,656,000 (2020: HK$20,821,000) is recognised
during the year.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the Group
measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition. The Group
have assessed and concluded that the risk of default
rate for the other instruments are steady based
on the Group’s assessment of the financial health
of the counterparties except for other receivable
with significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Other receivables and deposits (Continued)

Impairment loss, net of reversal of approximately
HK$3,241,000 (2020: HK$1,792,000) is recognised
during the year.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk as
75.44% (2020: 61.90%) of the total gross other
receivables and deposits as at 31 December 2021
was due from the Group’s largest counter party.

Amount(s) due from an associate and a joint venture

Credit risk on amount due from an associate is limited
because the Controlling Shareholder has undertaken
to indemnify the Group against any losses that may
result from the non-recovery of the amount due
from an associate. The Group assessed 12m ECL for
amount due from an associate by reference to the
internal credit rating on the financial position of the
associate. Based on the average loss rates and after
considered the indemnity provided by the Controlling
Shareholder, the 12m ECL on amount due from
an associate is considered to be insignificant and
therefore no loss allowance was recognised.

The Group regularly monitors the business
performance of the joint ventures. The management
believes that there is significant increase in credit
risk of these amounts since initial recognition and
the Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL.
Impairment of approximately HK$29,523,000 is
recognised during the year ended 31 December
2020.
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6. &I R (&)
cREREEBRRER (8)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives b.
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Bank balances

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit agencies.
The Group assessed 12m ECL for bank balances
by reference to information relating to probability
of default and loss given default of the respective
credit rating grades published by external credit
rating agencies. Based on the average loss rates,
the 12m ECL on bank balances is considered to be
insignificant and therefore no loss allowance was

1= B /o e %2 ki {E =T 18 (48)
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The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal credit

rating Description Trade receivables Other financial assets

ABEEFR it g 2 ElRE HttemEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not Lifetime ECL - not 12m ECL
K& have any past-due amounts credit-impaired 12 {EREHEERE
RHHFEOBRIE B W EEFTEHHER L HIREBEEERE -1
BEREERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settle  Lifetime ECL - not 12m ECL
ERR 4 & in full credit-impaired 12 A BHSEERE
BERARERARREN  ERETHRE 2HENEEEE -1
BHREERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since  Lifetime ECL - not Lifetime ECL - not
A& initial recognition through information developed credit-impaired credit-impaired
internally or external resources THEREEFE-¥ 2HBEHEEFE-I
AFFIMNPERIRRAEESET - FERRE MR EHBREERE EHREERE
RLAREEZ LN
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired ~ Lifetime ECL - credit-  Lifetime ECL - credit-
B ERBRAREDLRESRE impaired impaired
5%%%15gﬁ—ﬁ 2HRNEEEE -1
REERE BEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off Amount is written off
g financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic BB BEAZIER
prospect of recovery
ERBEXNEBABARENBRE nASEUEE
BRAT R e TR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T--—F+-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &I A (&)
b. Financial risk management objectives b. &rEREEBERERK (&
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= & 7 B R s (B 771 (#48)
(Continued)
The table below details the credit risk exposures of TRFMAEEEETEBEEEE
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL Az eRMEENEERR
assessment:
External Internal
credit credit 12-month or
2021 Note rating rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
HNFEE ABEE  12@8AR
—2--% M R R 2HRHEERR IREAE
HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET
Financial assets
at amortised costs
REBERATTEZEREE
Bank balances 28 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 27,433
RIThER NiEA 128 AEEE EEE
Other receivables and deposits 27 N/A (Note 1) 12m ECL 1,992
Hit AR T R T NEA (FzED) 12{ARBHEEEE
Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired) 6,118 8,110
e T
(LREERE)
Trade receivables 27 N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) 1,528
B REKER TER (FizE2) ES R E
(TEEREERE)
Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired) 51,769 53,297
2HRHEEER
(HREERE)
Amount due from an associate 23 N/A (Note 3) 12m ECL ‘ 13,808
FE— B A RIF0E iEA (KizE3) 12{E A E EEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEZ-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ©RLTH (&)
b. Financial risk management objectives b. £ERETEEEREXR (&)
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= & 7 B R s (B 771 (#48)
(Continued)
External Internal
credit credit 12-month or
2020 Note rating rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
WEMEE ABEE  12fA%
“T-TF M R AR 2HRHEERSE REeR
HK$'000  HK$'000
TAET THET
Financial assets
at amqrtised costs
REHRAG R EREE
Bank balances 28 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 47,662
BITEEE NEf 2ARBHEEER
Other receivables and deposits 27 N/A (Note 1) 12m ECL 2,905
H b YRR R TF 5K NER (HizE1) 1218 A EEE
Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired) 6,675 9,580
2HRAEEER
(HREERE)
Trade receivables 27 N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) 4,206
B H IR N (HizE2) HESEERR
(EEEREERE)
Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired) 46,055 50,261
2 MENESEE
(HREERE)
Amount due from an associate 23 N/A (Note 3) 12m ECL 13,808
FE— B A RIF0R @R (HizE3) 1218 A SR
Amount due from a joint venture 24 N/A Loss Lifetime ECL
(Note 4) (credit-impaired) -
El—HaEtERE NER i 2 HRHEEER

(MzE4) (HREERE)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives

and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T--—F+-A=+—HIFE

6. £RTH (&)
b. €mEREREBRREK (H)

1= & o e % ini {E =18 (48

(Continued)

Notes: PR -

1) For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the ) HABEEEEMS  AKEERE
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit HEBRHEE SRR B 5 R AR
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. REEARELFA -

Not past due/
No fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
B30
peaf i EEEEED st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
2021 —E=—f
Other receivables and deposits ~ ELft FE U BF 7% ]2 17 7% 6,118 1,992 8,110
2020 —E-TF
Other receivables and deposits ~ E-ftt B U BR 71 2 17 7K 6,675 2,905 9,580

2)  For trade receivables, the Group has applied the 2) WEZERERME AKBDE
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss REAMBREENEIRP AL
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines ECL FEREBEREEB R EEER
on trade receivables on a collective basis, grouped o REBIRE S ERRTIRERE
by shared credit risk characteristics and the historical EBETRBEEHE  REREER
observed default rates adjusted by forward looking B R A BT I (AR A B AT &
estimates. RE|MBLOTIEL DA -

3)  To measure the ECL, amount due from an associate 3) AIEEHEEER - BlR—HEEE
have been assessed individually. As stated in Note 23 NEIFRIED BB - MR E M
to the consolidated financial statements, the Controlling MM FE23FTE, - R R AE
Shareholder have undertaken to indemnify the Group FhoRBE B [0 B Uk — R & X B BB FT
against any losses that may result from the non-recovery Bz EERmASBELREE -
of the amount due from an associate.

4)  To measure the ECL, amount due from a joint venture 4)  AEEHEEERRE EK—HEeE

have been assessed individually. As stated in Note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements, the management
of the Company is of the opinion that joint venture will
not be able repay the amount due to the Company, the
amount due from a joint venture was impaired in full
amount during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-Z-—

6.

FH-A=1t—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

6. ERTE (&)

Financial risk management objectives b. £FEKREEBEERBKR ()
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= & 7 B R s (B 771 (#48)
(Continued)
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the EAEAEBEERREEMN—IH
Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment AEEFAESANKRRKASERZF
for its customers in relation to property management YEER D EEITRE S - BAZ
segment because these customers have common EXFEABHRAMRERIFE - MiEk
risk characteristics that are representative of BEREEP B NIRRBERGERX
the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due A RIEFNIE - TRIBHABHEA
in accordance with the contractual terms. The ﬁiﬁﬁfﬁﬂﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁ'fﬁ@&%ﬁf
following table provides information about the EEITHENE ZRUERRNEE
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables BB o BREBED RREER
which are assessed based on a collective basis TEE’]T%F’EH&EE % 39,227,000 7T
by using provision matrix with lifetime ECL. Trade —E T F : 4936,826,0007% 7T)
receivables with credit-impaired with gross carrying B EET A o
amounts of HK$39,227,000 (2020: approximately
HK$36,826,000) were assessed individually.
Gross Net
Expected carrying ECL carrying
loss rate amount  allowance amount
" RS
FEHEER REAE ESERE REFEE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET TAT TAT
As at 31 December 2021 A=-T=—%
+=B=+-8
Collective assessment £ I
— Current and 1 to - BN AR @ ER
365 days past due 1£#365X 32.1% 1,528 (490) 1,038
— 1 to 2 years past due -EH1ZE2E 47.2% 4,787 (2,261) 2,526
- 2to 3 years pastdue -BEH2E3F 71.1% 4,419 (3,141) 1,278
— Over 3 years past due - EHBBIFE 100% 3,336 (3,336) -
14,070 (9,228) 4,842
As at 31 December 2020 R-T_ZT4F
+=-—A=+—H
Collective assessment 3
—Currentand 1 to — BNERLA R aan A
365 days past due _12365K 55.0% 4,206 (2,311) 1,895
— 1 to 2 years past due -BHIE2F 66.8% 4,622 (3,089) 1,533
— 210 3 years past due -BH2 =35 77.4% 226 (175) 51
— Over 3years pastdue - @HAMRIB 3 F 88.1% 4,381 (3,858) 523
13,435 (9,433) 4,002
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical fhEtiEE T)’ﬂ;z FEURBE ZRFBHAEEA N
observed default rates over the expected life of the W L RSB O SRETT NG - Wi

debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping
is regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

B RN MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIFE

=

ra

6. €MIR (&)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

b. Financial risk management objectives b. £ERETEEEREXR (&)
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= & 7 B R s (B 771 (#48)
(Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the HE-_ZT-_—F+ZRA=+—H1
Group provided approximately HK$314,000 FE AEERBEEBTEAES
(2020: HK$733,000) impairment allowance, net of R BR SRET IR E B E (EFBR#
reversal, for trade receivables, based on collective [B]) 49314,0008 7T (ZE =_FF :
assessment. Impairment allowance of approximately 733,000 7T) o A& B 2 3t E R FE
HK$2,342,000 (2020: HK$20,088,000) were HEE T EERERKEER EHE;HZTE
made on certain credit impaired debtors assessed B EX) 2,342 00087 (ZE=FF :
individually. 20,088,000 7T) °
The following tables shows the movement in lifetime Ti‘%ﬂﬁa’\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ:ﬁ/ﬁ# 5 SRR
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables RZEHEHEEHEE
under simplified approach:
Lifetime ECL
(credit-
impaired) Total
Lifetime ECL 2HENEE
2HEH FE (LR
FEER =ERE) “@st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 EA:;‘:"i A—H 4132 16,960 21,092
Changes due to financial instruments AR~ -TF—F— AR
recognised as at 1 January 2020:  Z&BTAMBLEEE) :
— Transfer to credit-impaired -BYEEERHE (2,833) 2,833 =
— Impairment losses recognised - EERREEE - 17,300 17,300
— Impairment losses reversed - BRERESE (1,307) (114) (1,421)
New financial assets originated EXSBE/NEREE
or purchased 2,040 2,902 4,947
Exchange adjustments I i % 279 2,154 2433
At 31 December 2020 R_Z_ZFE+_A=1+—H 2,311 42,035 44,346
Changes due fo financial instruments AR =T -——F—F—B#R
recognised as at 1 January 2021:  Z&RTEAMELEE)
— Transfer to credit-impaired -BREEERHE (2,143) 2,143 =
— Impairment losses recognised - ERRREEE = 1,920 1,920
— Impairment losses reversed - BREREEE (178) - (178)
New financial assets originated EXFBEE oREE
or purchased 492 422 914
Exchange adjustments i 5 % 8 1,445 1,453
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB=-5+ZA=+-H 490 47,965 48,455
—E—FW
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEZ-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

iﬁf

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6. EMITH (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives b. £ERETEEEREXR (&)
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= & 7 B R s (B 771 (#48)
(Continued)
Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables ZEORBESFEERE . ZFHETER
are mainly due to: A& IEFTEL -
2021
(Decrease) increase
—E-—F
(M2 1#&n
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit- ECL (credit-
impaired) impaired)
ZHEMEE 2HEHEE
BB (L& EE (HER
HREERE) =8RE)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FTHERT
Trade receivables with gross carrying #8BREI{E 476,573,000 7T
amount of approximately 2B RWERRERE
HK$6,573,000 transferred EERE
to credit-impaired (2,143) 2,143
Further impairment made for RELREERECES
credit-impaired trade receivables FEWER R EH #E — PR A - 1,920
New trade receivables with gross {EERMEE ) 2,299,000 7T
carrying amount of 2B Z MR
approximately HK$2,299,000 492 422

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ©RLTH (&)
b. Financial risk management objectives b. £FEKREEBEERBKR ()
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= & 7 B R s (B 771 (#48)
(Continued)
2020
(Decrease) increase
—ECTF
OR2) H#an
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit— ECL (credit-
impaired) impaired)
HESEERE 2HESEE
BB (L= & (B8R
HIREERE) =ERE)
HK$" 000 HK$' 000
TFHETT T
Trade receivables with gross carrying #2BREI{E#) 8,641,000 7T
amount of approximately 2B S REWEREEE
HK$8,641,000 transferred ZERE
to credit-impaired (2,833) 2,833
Further impairment made for HELBEEREZES
credit-impaired trade receivables FEUBR RIEH HE— P RE = 17,300
New trade receivables with gross #EBRE{E %Y 9,406,000 78 7T
carrying amount of 2B S REBERK
approximately HK$9,406,000 2,040 2,902
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —E-_ER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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FH-A=1t—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

6. ERLTH (&)

b. REREIEBRRER

1= B /o e %2 ki {E =T 18 (48)

(48)

(Continued)
The following tables shows the reconciliation of TRETCEHEMERERRIZSTE
loss allowance that has been recognised for other REEEBELER -
receivables and deposits:
12m ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
128 A 7B 2H
FEEE (1E BHEEEE
HREERE) (LREERE) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEL TAL TAL
At 1 January 2020 E/\\:7:¢ A—H 286 1,403 1,689
Changes due to financial AR-_Z_FF—H—H
instruments recognised as Rz EmIAMEE
at 1 January 2020: 28 :
— Impairment losses - BRHREER
recognised - 1,774 1,774
New financial assets originated EXFBENEREE
or purchased 18 - 18
Exchange adjustments P 5 R ®) 182 174
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZTF+-A=1+—H 29 3,359 3,655
Changes due to financial BAR—Z-_—%—H—H
instruments recognised BRI AMEE
asat 1 January 2021 2
— Impairment losses recognised = EEEM/DZTEESTE = 3,391 3,391
— Impairment losses reversed - BRERESRE (296) - (296)
— Written-off - #isH (746) (746)
New financial assets originated EXSBEC eREE
or purchased 146 - 146
Exchange adjustments i R 2 114 116
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE--§$+-A=1+—-H 148 6,118 6,266
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. AT HE (48)
b. Financial risk management objectives b. £ERETEEEREXR (&)

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for other receivables
and deposits are mainly due to:

1= B /o e %2 ki {E =T 18 (48)

H A R MOIR R R R S S R 2
EERN T RIBFE

2021
Increase (decrease)

—E-—F

i G
12m ECL Lifetime
(not credit- ECL (credit-
impaired) impaired)
12 @A TEHE 2 HATEHAE
FEEIE (ME BB (HR
HIREERE) FERE)

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FERT

Settlement in full of other receivables BB E AREE

and deposits with gross carrying #7811,0007 LAY

amount of approximately HA AR Rz &

HK$811,000 (296) -
Further impairment made for MEEREEREL

credit-impaired other receivables HEf BRI IR S

and deposits YEH#E—PR(E - 3,391
No realistic prospect of recovery WEER U EIAT 8 - (746)
New financial assets with WBEETE{EA) 1,123,000 7T

gross carrying amount of LI EMEE

approximately HK$1,123,000 146 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-—F+-_A=+t—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

6. £RTH (&)
b. REREEBRRER (&

1= B /o e %2 ki {E =T 18 (48)

(Continued)
2020
Increase (decrease)
—ZEITF
g Crid)
12m ECL Lifetime
(not credit- ECL (credit-
impaired) impaired)
12 & A 78 &1 ZHITEER(E
FEEE (& EEE (ER
HIREERE) SERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Further impairment made for MELHREEREC
credit-impaired other HE RS RIE S
receivables and deposits YEH#E—PR(E - 1,774

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents and adequate committed lines of funding

from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as the
Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$75,492,000 as at 31 December 2021. The
liquidity of the Group primarily depends on the future
funding being available and the ability of the Group to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Details
of which are set out in Note 3.1 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. Specifically, the secured loans are subject to
the relevant bank’s overriding right to demand for
repayment are included in the earliest time band
regardless the scheduled repayment dates are
twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIFE

6. ERTE (&)

b.

cREREEBRRER (8)

HBEE ER

SEERDECARME @ ARBEE
RWEFBREMREFEY - ULE
ITREREEARREREEANESER
B LNENEEHEEHZABES

Fk o

AEEEHBRRSES - REARSE
BER=—ZT——F+= ﬂ ‘f’ =F7¥e)
BB EF 475,492,000 T °
REEREE S EEEURNAIER
BARKRE 2 KA KEEEDN RV HEE
ERIBE )  HEFBHEN G B HEk
MIFE3.1 ©

TRV AEBESRABNER N K
FEER » TRIVIRBARSERER
ZEFAHFEESRAGE I ARELIER
fﬁuium;{/ﬁﬂj /E\Jﬁa'zﬁ:n’ iﬁﬂfﬂ?
EREHARERARET @A - &
WEFIDXRNERRITHER 2KE
REOEBERE - HGE ARERRHER ©
HiefTA S mB ENEIH B JIRE
STEIERAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEZ-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ©RLTH (&)
b. Financial risk management objectives b. £ERETEEEREXR (&)
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mBEL R (4B)
The table includes both interest and principal cash TREEMNERASHESRE o WA
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating BERERTEHFETE « QRIS
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from BN EHAR FEFESE -
interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
On demand Total
Weighted ~ or within More than undiscounted  Carrying
average Lyear  l-2years  2-5years 5years  cash flows amount
2021 interestrate ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
il BREX AMER
“EC-F THRE  g-FR  -2WE  WERE  BBEE 4&RE4E BEE
% ThR Tin Thn TiEn Thn TER
Non-derivative financial liabilities HTEERER
Trade and other payables BAREMENES | NARER 25209 - - - 25209 25209
Loans from third partes 2=HER
(included in trade and (FFAZSR
other payables) Hih M) 270500 14,226 - - - 14226 13981
Secured loans HRER 4.20 29,857 - - - 29,857 29,857
Loan from a contralling shareholder ~ EREEER 500 10,779 - - - 10779 10544
Bonds &% 3.00-8.00 31,002 10,848 10,865 - 52,715 50,181
Lease liabilies HERR 4,65-5.45 1,957 1,864 4,719 7816 1635 12,745
113,030 12,712 15,584 7816 149,142 142517
On demand Total
Weighted ~ or within undiscounted Carrying
2020 average  oneyear  1-2years  2-byears  cashflows amount
interestrate ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00  HKS000  HKS000
g REX ARTS
ZECEfF TRk g-FR  -EME  WERE ShEEE HEE
% ThT Tin Thr T Thr
Non-derivative financial liabifies HTEEBAR
Trade and other payables BARAMERER NATER 20,387 - - 038 20387
Loan from third party E=HER
(included in trade and (;TABZR
other payables) A ERER) 270 2877 = - 2877 2841
Secured loans HRER 445 33667 = - BT 33667
Loans from controllng shareholders ~ EXRERER 500 - 200 - D00 2058
Bonds &% 3.00-8.00 10235 22,021 22813 55,069 50,181
Lease liabilities i 465-5.13 2,644 743 - 3387 3250
69,810 44854 22813 137471 130,884
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Secured loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or within 1 year”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31
December 2021, the aggregate carrying amounts
of these secured loans amounted to approximately
HK$29,857,000 (2020: HK$33,667,000). Taking
into account the Group’s financial position, the
management does not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their overriding rights to
demand immediate repayment. The management
believes that such secured loans will be repaid
8-9 years after the end of the reporting period in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements, details of which are set
out in the table below:

ra

B RN MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIFE

6. €MIR (&)

b. £REREEBRERERK (&)

nBEEELR (4F)

BEBEREEFERINECEBFERD
AALRB oW BBk —F
R BRI B e #—%——¢+—H
=1+—H ZEERFERHE
ﬁ%msmpm%n(_g_gi-
33,667,000 7T) ° &L R AL E /Y
/ﬁjj-i%ﬁj(\/\ﬂ/ ’ %IEWUEEZ%E\E Z:K
A RERG T TP EB S Bk BNEE o
EREMRE  ZSFHERERRBRER
HRETFRNRBEER B RASETE
BREHEE  FRHIRTE

Maturity Analysis — Secured loans with
a repayment on demand clause based on
scheduled repayments

HfaH - ERBEENA

REREERINEEREN
Total
Within More than  undiscounted Carrying
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
REB
- -E@MER WMERER BBLE BRERELE BEE
HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FAEL FAL FAEL TAL FAEL FAL
2021 —g-_&
Secured loans  HEHEER 3,600 3,600 10,799 18,899 36,898 29,857
2020 —Z-ZF
Secured loans  HEIFEFR 3,864 3,864 11,593 23,582 42903 33,667
The amounts included above for variable interest fiet ) F B A 2 “E))Eﬁﬁ“ﬁ&iﬁﬁﬂirﬁmz
rate instruments are subject to change if changes *'JTE”PTI—J B Eatprsk 2 )2 8T
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of A &% 7TA$EFE§E@J

interest rates determined at the end of the reporting
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-Z-—

6.

FH-A=1t—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The Directors is responsible to determine
the appropriate valuation technique and inputs for
fair value measurement.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. For
instruments with significant unobservable inputs
under Level 3, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. The Directors works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &I A (&)
c. Fair value measurements of financial C. EBMIAEZAREEE (E)
instruments
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial (i) EEZMEEUNAEBEGE
liabilities that are measured at fair value HMZEBZHMEBEI A AIEE
on a recurring basis
Some of the Group’s financial liabilities are rEEHNERBBERERSE
measured at fair value at the end of each BRIEARDEETE - T&RIE
reporting period. The following table gives HEBNNEETZSZ2MARE
information about how the fair values of these HAREBENER (R Z
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, BRI R A SR ) -

the valuation technique(s) and input used).

Fair value hierarchy

AREERER
Fair value
as at 31
December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
B+=A
=+—H

HNAREE F—E BB =8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FERT TR FTET

2021 —E-—fF
Financial liabilities: TRAG:
Contingent consideration &8k
payable MRMEB 240 - 240 -
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —E-_ER
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e B ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEZ-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. &I R (&)
EMIBRZAREERE (F)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

c. Fair value measurements of financial C.
instruments (Continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial (i) EEZMEEUNAEBEGE
liabilities that are measured at fair value HMZEBZHMEBEI A AIEE
on a recurring basis (Continued) (%)

Fair value as at
RTHBEFHAREE Valuation

31 31 Fair  technique(s)
December December value and
Financial liabilities 2021 2020 hierarchy  key input(s)
“B--F | ZT_FTHF fh{E

+=H +=A DAEE BWREE
=+—AH =+—H B BWAZE

TRaE

Contingent consideration
payable

Liabilities -
approximately
HK$240,000

- Level 2 Effective
interest
method was

used to
capture the
present value
of expected
future
economic
benefits that
will flow out
of the Group
arising from
the
contingent
consideration,
based on
risk free rate
KAER
FEE - A
R i ) 2
REE
ERALHE
A AKE
i 2 A Y
TR R
A ERE

FENSANKE afE- F_E
#1240,000 & T

Note: BdaE:

FRNE—BRE_E2EIWEEE -

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during
the year.

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and (i) WHREZHEEEUNAIEE
liabilities that are not measured at fair FIEMAEBREHEEN AR
value on a recurring basis 1EE

EREERR  EFEMBHRR
NERNEREENERAE

MREERE R REERE

The management considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.
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7. REVENUE

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue from
contracts with customers

For the year ended 31 December 2021

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. W=

(i)

ER &M EZ Bk

BE_Z_-F+-A=1t—HLF

E
Hotel Properties
operation management Total
BERE YEEE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT TERT TERT
Types of goods or service EmRREEE
Hotel accommodation BIEEE 15,619 - 15,619
Food and beverage R 19,304 - 19,304
Spa KB 4,938 - 4,938
Marina 558 1,956 - 1,956
Sales of goods in HEKBERIBEER
spa and marina 519 - 519
Properties management MEERE - 35,364 35,364
Total st 42,336 35,364 77,700
Geographical markets it & h 35
The PRC o - 35,364 35,364
Canada YN 42,336 - 42,336
Total st 42,336 35,364 77,700
Timing of revenue recognition R 2 BB
A point in time R 19,823 - 19,823
Over time & i il 22,513 35,364 57,877
Total st 42,336 35,364 77,700
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from TXHEHI|IKREEFE LW EED S E
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed R ESRE 2 R -
in the segment information:
Segment
revenue
2 EBA
HK$’000
FET
Hotel operation B JE & 42,336
Properties management MEER 35,364
Revenue from contracts with customers EFAHWAREWA
and total revenue 77,700
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e B ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE (Continued) 7. Wi (48)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from (i) EREfWEZREIR (8)
contracts with customers (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-_ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILHF
g
Hotel Properties
operation management Total
HIER MEERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Types of goods or service ERSREEE
Hotel accommodation BIEETE 6,692 = 6,692
Food and beverage Z8R 12,820 = 12,820
Spa IKE 2,671 = 2,671
Marina 1558E 1,426 = 1,426
Properties management MEETE = 35,194 35,194
Total wst 23,609 35,194 58,803
Geographical markets it & T 35
The PRC o - 35,194 35,194
Canada YN 23,609 - 23,609
Total wst 23,609 35,194 58,803
Timing of revenue recognition ~ TERUNE 2 BE RS
A point in time EE BRI 12,820 - 12,820
Over time i 10,789 35,194 45,983
Total wst 23,609 35,194 58,803
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from TXHI|IKEEFE LW EED S E
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed R ES R 2 55k -

in the segment information:

Segment

revenue

2 EWA

HK$' 000

FET

Hotel operation BB 23,609

Properties management MEER 35,194
Revenue from contracts with customers EF&SQIWARERA

and total revenue 58,803
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REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts

with customers
Hotel accommodation

For hotel accommodation income is recognised over
time in the accounting period in which the services
are rendered because all of the benefits are received
and consumed simultaneously by the customer as
the Group performs. The payment is due immediately
after service provided.

Sale of food and beverage

Revenue from sales of food and beverage is
recognised at a point in time and payment is due
when the food and beverage are served.

Spa services

Spa service income is recognised over time in which
the services are rendered because all of the benefits
are received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer as the Group performs. The payment is due
immediately after service provided.

Marina

Revenue from marina which represents income from
moorage and kayak rentals is recognised over time
in which the services are rendered because all of the
benefits are received and consumed simultaneously
by the customer as the Group performs. The payment
is due immediately after service provided.

Sale of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when customer obtains
control of the promised goods in the contract. This is
usually taken to be the point in time when the goods
are delivered and the customer has accepted the
goods. The payment is due immediately after the
goods delivered and accepted by customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-ZT-—F+-A=t+—BUFE
7. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts
with customers (Continued)

Properties management services

Revenue relating to properties management services
is recognised over time. The Group bills a fixed
amount for services provided on a monthly basis
and recognised as revenue in the amount to which
the Group has right to invoice and that corresponds
directly with the value of performance completed.
Advance consideration allocated to the properties
management services is recognised as a contract
liability and is released over the period of service. The
normal credit term is 30 days upon service provided.

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers

All contracts with customers are for periods of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the board of Directors (the “Board”),
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on types of goods or services
delivered or provided.

During the year, the Group commenced the business
engaging in the cryptocurrency investment, and it is
considered as a new operating and reportable segement by
the CODM.

No operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HEZ-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 8. ZHENH (&)
Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS BREMmME  REBBMBHEHRELERESH
8 Operating Segments are as follows: KEDE - NEBMR 2RO IWT ¢
(i)  Hotel operation (i) BEELE
Operation of a resort in Canada. KE—BARIMERZEBRABIE -
(i)  Properties management (i MEER
Properties management in the PRC. R EREMEER
(i) Cryptocurrency investment (i) MMEEERE
Investment in cryptocurrency. REMEEE -
(@) Segment revenues and results (@) DB ERELS
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue REEIZT2|ROHEI D 2 WA RE
and results by reportable segments: BEOMEFNAT -
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-E-_—F+-A=+t—HLHF
E
Hotel Properties Cryptocurrency
operation management  investment Total
e
EE R MESE EXRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET FTET
Revenue Wz 42,336 35,364 - 77,700
Segment profit (loss) AERF (BB 1,963 (11,758) (3,480) (13,275)
Unallocated corporate income RABEATWA 104
Unallocated corporate expenses AP B AR (8,802)
Share of result of an associate %fﬁ—ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ%
UNGIES | (1,870)
Loss on derecognition RIFERAEHE
of joint ventures B8 (882)
Finance costs AR (3,483)
Loss before tax BREAIEE (28,208)
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —E-—F#H
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-Z-—

(@)

FH-A=1t—HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 8. ZHENH (&)
Segment revenues and results (@) EMERESR ()
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HIF
g
Hotel Properties
operation management Total
BIELE YEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FTAT FTAT
Revenue Wz 23,609 35,194 58,803
Segment loss DEEE (3,098) (16,724) (19,822)
Unallocated corporate income RABATWA 2,182
Unallocated corporate expenses A9 B A AR (9,770)
Impairment loss recognised on ~~ BERABEZ
interests in joint ventures EmERAEBE (29,523)
Share of result of an associate i3 NI E (4,349)
Share of results of joint ventures ~ FME& & ¥ EE (15,335)
Finance costs AR (3,352)
Loss before tax BT A B 1R (79,969)
The accounting policies of the operating segments 2%%%a‘52§§+ﬂ(’ﬁéﬁiﬁﬁ§$3ﬁﬁt$

are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in Note 3. Segment results represent the
profit earned by/loss from each segment without
allocation of certain administration costs, certain
other income, gains and losses, net, certain finance
costs, share of results of an associate/joint ventures,
impairment loss recognised on interests in joint
ventures, loss on derecognition of joint ventures,
gain on loans from controlling shareholders stated
at fair value upon initial recognition and directors’
emoluments. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments.

As at 31 December 2021

HE-ZT—

8. ZEHA (K)

(b)

SHEERAR

—F A= t—BILEE

AEERAIZREELEDEE D 2B

ERBEINAT

R-B-_-%+-A=+—H

Hotel Properties Cryptocurrency
operation management  investment Total
mEz
BEEE MEEE E¥RKRE st
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TER TER TER
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 87,711 44,445 5,370 137,526
Unallocated corporate assets RAABARIEE 44,183
Consolidated total assets HEeBEEHE 181,709
LIABILITIES =L
Segment liabilities HEBE 36,698 37,063 - 73,761
Unallocated corporate liabilities ~ AP ERAIEE 91,674
Consolidated total liabilities mEeREER 165,435
As at 31 December 2020 RN-ZE-TE+-A=+—H
Hotel Properties
operation management Total
IS YEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 87,145 36,661 123,806
Unallocated corporate assets RAAOBARIBE 67,114
Consolidated total assets HAEAERE 190,920
LIABILITIES afE
Segment liabilities DEBE 37,425 24,360 61,785
Unallocated corporate liabilities ~ AP ERFEE 93,409
Consolidated total liabilities meBERRE 155,194
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities
(Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between
segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than certain other receivables, bank
balances and cash, interests in an associate/
joint ventures, certain property, plant and
equipment, and certain right-of-use assets; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than certain other payables and accruals,
bonds, loan from a controlling shareholder and
certain lease liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. EENE (&)
(c) Hipmr#m&ER

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

(c) Other segment information

Year ended 31 December 2021

Amounts included in the measure of segment result

BE-Z-_—H+=-B=+—HL#F

E

AEDHEERDHEERTAZE

or segment assets: R
Hotel  Properties Cryptocurrency
operation management  investment  Unallocated Total
ik
BEESE  WEER  E¥RE FAR o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhEx FaEx FhEn FhEn FaEx
Addition of goodwill REME - 3,265 - - 3,265
Addition of property, plant REME  BENLE
and equipment 2,105 - - - 2,105
Addition of right-of-use assets REGRREE - 12,183 - 622 12,805
Amortisation of intangible assets BYEERH - 4,170) - - (4,170)
Depreciation of property, plant % BERXENE
and equipment (2,795) (187) - - (2,982)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ EREEENE - (597) - (1,302) (1,899)
Finance costs BEKA (1,452) (228) - (3,483) (5,163)
Gain on early termination of lease  #RAIAR IR EUEE - 136 - - 136
Government grants B 4,142 681 - - 4,823
Impairment loss recognised on BB SRR
trade receivables, net of reversal LRERE - BMREE - (2,656) - - (2,656)
Impairment loss recognised on SEM KRR
other receivables, net of reversal LRBEER  ENREE - (3,241) - - (3,241)
Impairment loss recognised on EREFEERRN
intangible assets REsE - (1,748) - - (1,748)
Loss from changes in fair value NEEEALEEED
of cryptocurrency pd ;- - - (2,253) - (2,253)
Loss on derecognition of joint ventures &% |-FERA L ¥E1E - - - (882) (882)
Loss on written-off of property, plant ~ #i$5¥% « #E R &klEZ 5B
and equipment (51) - - - (51)
Share of result of an associate ME—EBEAREE - - - (1,870) (1,870)
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not FHREELERARERBERTE
included in the measure of segment result: DEREERWEST A Z ST -
Hotel  Properties Cryptocurrency
operation management  investment  Unallocated Total
BERE  NEER ik
% % EMER FA® b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhEx FhEn FhEn FhEn FhEn
Interest income from RESEEE 2 FSHA
financial institutions - 12 - - 12
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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HE-_Z-_—F+_A=1+—HILFE
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 8. BENH (&)
(c) Other segment information (Continued) (c) HioEp&ER (48)
Year ended 31 December 2020 BHE_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HILF
E
Amounts included in the measure of segment result ENHEENDHEERTAZE
or segment assets: R
Hotel Properties
operation  management Unallocated Total
BIETE MEER v Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TAET
Addition of property, plant RNEMF  BERZHE
and equipment 607 - - 607
Addition of right-of-use assets REFRREE = 2,062 = 2,062
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH - (4,562) - (4,562)
Depreciation of property, plant mE - ERRERE
and equipment (2,592) (229) = (2,821)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE - (430) (1,681) (2,111)
Finance costs BEKAE (1,587) (40) (3,352) (4,979)
Gain on loans from controlling NipHREZALEE
shareholders stated at fair value I ERBREER
upon initial recognition pd¢x = = 1,564 1,564
Government grants BHEED 4,259 999 534 5,792
Impairment loss recognised on EEN EERRN
intangible assets REFR - (385) - (385)
Impairment loss recognised on RREBRFE L ERERL
interests in joint ventures HEEE - - (29,523) (29,523)
Impairment loss recognised on B FEUERTER
trade receivables, net of reversal LREEE  BkREE = (20,821) - (20,821)
Impairment loss recognised on TLE M MR TR
other receivables, net of reversal ZREERE - BikRER = (1,792) - (1,792)
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, HEME - BBRR
plant and equipment < (B18) e (37) 91 - 54
Share of result of an associate Ah—RBEAREE - - (4,349) (4,349)
Share of results of joint ventures AEARELEEE - - (15,335) (15,335)
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not TEHAEELERRERBERTE
included in the measure of segment result: DESHEBERWETAZ LR
Hotel Properties
operation  management Unallocated Total
BIEEE MEER v Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT THT TAT
Interest income from RECEKE
financial institutions ZHBMA = 10 = 10
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong
Kong, Canada, Malaysia and the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current
assets is presented based on the geographical location of
the assets.

8.

[}
e

RISk I ot

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-Z——

F+=A

ZESER ()

=t+—HILFE

AEBEBETBMUNEE  MEXN - FXK

Poas M A o

BRAAKEXRBINSES ZRBmEH IR
BEEFPAEMEZR - AHEAKEEREE
EENEREEMRZS -

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

REMREF 2 Wz FRBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
“EC-F | ZTZTH | B | ZZT-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET T TET FHET
Canada JIEN 42,336 23,609 84,413 84,930
Hong Kong HE - = 492 1,172
Malaysia [ i - = 1,115 3,057
The PRC H 35,364 35,194 30,881 22,845
77,700 58,803 116,901 112,004
Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and financial sk IERBEETREEEMGHEERSRIT
instruments. Ao
Information about major customers EREEZTFPHER

None of the customers contributed over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

During the year ended 31 December 2021, approximately
RMB565,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$681,000) (2020:
RMB888,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$999,000)) represents
an incentive from the Finance Bureau of People’s Government of
Chongging, Yuzhong District* (EETAF &K /) for maintaining
good quality of properties management service and to provide financial
support to retain employees.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
government grants of approximately CAD668,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$4,142,000) (2020: approximately CAD736,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$4,259,000)) which relate to Canada
Emergency Wage Subsidy and Emergency Rent Subsidy provided by
the Canada Federal Government.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
government grants of approximately HK$534,000 which relate
to Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong
Government.

There are no conditions attached to the receipt of the government
grants and they are non-recurring in nature.

* For identification purpose only
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9. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, 9. HiA - WEHBFHEREGEZHE
NET
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
Interest income from bank deposits TR F B HﬁU\ 12 10
Gain on disposal of property, plant ﬁ%%% N G T e -
and equipment, net - b4
Gain on loans from controlling VIRFERHIRAABERYZ
shareholders stated at fair value PERRARR Bk Was
upon initial recognition - 1,564
Loss from changes in fair value MEEEANEBEZ S 2 EE
of cryptocurrency (2,253) =
Gain on early termination of a lease  IEATAR T EUES 136 =
Government grants (Note) EERG (MEE) 4,823 5,792
Loss on written-off of property, plant H#ii& ¥ - #22 N R EEE
and equipment (51) =
Others Hib 822 884
3,489 8,304
Notes: BdaE -

BE_Z_—H4+_A=+—HLFE AR
565,000 7T (FEERA681,00087T) (ZE=F
F: AR 888,0007T (1HE 7 49999,000/&7T))
DNEEMATRVBBRESSEZMEERR
BIEH 2 2R - Y ARKRE EETM A HS -

HE-Z-_—F+-A=+—HLFE ~5£H
ERANENEHABTREZ NEAEEZTE
7 B & 22 2 78 & 18 Bh A8 B8 IUAT 7 Bl 49.668,000 N
T (HEERHA14200087T) (ZE_TF : 4
736,000 117 (FHE %) 4,259,0007%8 7)) °

BE—_Z 2+ _A=+—HIFE £x&H
R EEE,%BZJHTELﬁZ [REAZERT B ] ARR BT 1
AL #7534,000 87T °

YSER KT 478 R 0 SR S A A A - QLSS AR IR -

* EXaEzvil
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED 10. FHEEEEREX T ZREEE

CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL ($NpREEEME)
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FH&T
Impairment losses recognised on:  NFIFKIBRERRERE :
— Trade receivables - B S RUERR (2,656) (20,821)
— Other receivables — HAb AR (3,241) (1,792)
(5,897) (22,613)
Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 6(b). BB S 2 FEENKIFE6Db) °
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. BAE A&
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FAET
Interests on: A
— Secured loans - EHER 1,452 1,587
— Bonds - &% 2,345 3,101
— Lease liabilities -HEAE 240 187
— Imputed interest on loan from - ERBRRERZHEEFE
a controlling shareholder 513 32
— Other - Hith 613 72
5,163 4979
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —E-—F#H 24
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_ZT--—F+-A=t+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT

12. f

Bk 7

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Current tax BNER%L 18
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") S BR¥MAEH ([REMEH]) 278 1,326
Deferred tax IEERIE
Current year (Note 35) REE (M13E35) (7,546) (2,515)
(7,268) (1,189)

Notes:

(b)

(d)

()

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profit for both years. No provision for taxation in
Hong Kong has been made as the Group’s income neither
arises in, nor is derived from, Hong Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Provision for the PRC EIT for Nuofute Property Management
Co., Lid.” EE#HEFMEEEARR A (“Nuofute Property
Management”) is calculated at 15% of the estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 31 December 2021. Nuofute Property
Management is qualified as a company under the development
strategy of the PRC’s western region and is able to enjoy
a preferential income tax rate of 15% for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulation in the PRC,
Chongging Haotai Property Management Company Limited* 2
EMRFMEEE AR ETAR (“Chongging Haotai”), which
is newly acquired during the year ended 31 December 2021, is
qualified as small low-profit enterprises enjoyed a preferential
tax rate of 20% for the year ended 31 December 2021. In
addition, in accordance with the “Notice on Preferential Income
Tax Policies Applicable to Small Low-profit Enterprises”,
Chongging Haotai is also entitled to a tax concession for 75%
and 50% of its taxable income for the annual taxable income
of less than RMB1,000,000 and the portion that exceeds
RMB1,000,000 but does not exceed RMB3,000,000 (inclusive)
for the year ended 31 December 2021, respectively.

Canadian Corporation Tax is calculated at Federal Tax rate of
15% and British Columbia Provincial Tax rate of 12% on the
estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020. No provision for taxation has been made as
there is no assessable profit for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

For identification purpose only

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

f i

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

)

ZMEFRENEENEHR IR G ERD G
M2 16.5% 5t & o I 8 5t A TR H B
e RAS/KREE ZWAILFFEERHHKA
BE -

RBHEDEAEEE ([REMBHIED
REEMETABIRIGS - hEHEAR L
MESEE 2 HEID R 25% °

BEFERVEEREERAR (HFEFD
TR MPECEMSHBEINEE
—E - —F+-A=+—RHILFENMGETE
AR HFIE15%TE - FEEHEVEERETY
FREABAFAETHEERAR  REE=
T —F+-A=t+—HRZZE_TF+=
B=+—BILtFERAIZERAEHE15% °

RIEPEARAERES  EEMREME
EBEAEREARE ([EBZFE] ZRAFR
BE-_Z-—HF+-_A=1+—HILFEHFK
) AR SEER  RHREE=Z
T F+ A=+ HULFEZTE20%ER
TR o tpoh - RIF CEER/ DN EVEFID E TS
HEIRRNEBN)  BE2-_T=_—F+=
A=t+—BHIEFENFERRHRAELRA
R #1,000,000 7T & B i@ A R # 1,000,000
TTAE DA AR 3,000,0007C (&) BUERS
EEZEHRNAIDRIFE75% & 50% H fE R
FRURAFUCR . -

BHE-_ T —FR-ZTF-FF+-_A=1+—
AIEFE - MERDEMBH TG ER
BB AR B R 15% KRB Rt d
MEI2%TE - HRBE-_T-_—F k=
E-THE+ - F=1+— B I FETERERR
A AR AR R B T o

RE M RDERE R E 4 2 BIRIZAER RhA R
ZBITHEE -

EPHE5)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

12. FrfEHim R ()

AERHRBHAX G BRSEREMEE
Wt R 2 BRI AT RE R T

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
from the loss before tax per the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2021 2020
—BC-—F —ECETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Loss before tax BRELATE R (28,208) (79,969)
Income tax at applicable tax rates ~ IZ@E B R+ E TSR (4,295) (16,350)
Tax effect of expenses not PRI AR ETE
deductible for tax purpose 2,760 15,075
Tax effect of income not taxable BANTBRANTRIEZE
for tax purpose (575) (329)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised R MR IAE BTG £ 1,500 415
Tax effect of temporary difference  RERERME=BARETLE
not recognised (4,858) =
Reversal of withholding tax on o Hh BB A A ARk EE
undistributed profits from s Az TR
the PRC subsidiaries (1,800) =
Income tax credit for the year REEMEHRER (7,268) (1,189)
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —E-—ERH
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e B ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

13. LOSS BEFORE TAX 13. BB AIEE
Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging: BRETISHIRIESIBAET E B 0Bk
2021 2020
—Es-—fF —ETE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET T
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEREMEN &
— audit services — ZERTE 1,337 1,260
— non-audit services - e EPRTS 287 150
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXA (BIEESEHM)
emolument (Note 14)) (FizE14)
— salaries, wages, allowance and -¥& I8 - ERINEHAM
other benefits in kind EYEF 38,116 29,226
— bonus — {E4L - 211
— retirement schemes —RURET 812 3R (FfRE (a))
contributions (Note (a)) 2,585 822
Total staff costs (Note (b)) B TRKA A% (B3Rt (b)) 40,701 30,259

Cost of inventories recognised as ER BRI NFERAR

expense 6,839 4,662
Depreciation of: E -

— Property, plant and equipment S ERR Y 2,982 2,821

— Right-of-use assets —FAEEE 1,899 2,111
Total depreciation mEBRE 4,881 4,932
Depreciation included in direct costs Bt ABBERAZITE (2,131) (1,962)
Depreciation included in ERATTHRASZ 2T ERX

administrative expenses 2,750 2,970

Amortisation of intangible assets E|EEESHE (B ATTHAR)
(included in administrative

expenses) 4,170 4,562
Legal and professional fee ERREEER 4,666 3,318
Notes: BifsE
(a)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the increase in (a) HEZ-_—F+-_A=+—HULEFE R

retirement benefit scheme contributions was primarily due REERETElZ hﬁ?ﬁ'bﬂi%ﬂﬂﬁ"qﬂ Ebzilapiie
to the exemption of social insurance contributions as a result NAEBE-—T_TF+-_A=1+—HItF
of regulatory supportive policies issued by the PRC local E20195 AR S EE MBHNES X
governments in response to the outbreak of Covid-19 for the BB M et SRR E AT -

year ended 31 December 2020.

(b)  Staff costs amounted to approximately HK$29,992,000 (2020: (b) B IRKA#29,992000/8 T (ZFE-FT4F :
HK$20,889,000) and HK$10,709,000 (2020: HK$9,370,000) 20,889,000/ 7T) &% 10,709,000/ T (=&
have been included in direct costs and administrative expenses —T 4 :9370,00087T) ER Rl AEE
respectively. A RITIRFAS ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 14. EERITHAERKBEME
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments, disclosed RIEATIEMEIS3) KR A (HEE
pursuant to section 383(1) of the CO and Part 2 of the EFRER) ROIEOHERERES RITH
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BEOMST

Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_ZE_—F+-A=+—HLEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits schemes
Fees inkind  contributions Total
i 3:' BIRER
ik BENER BE 3 Mgt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T THL TR
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Choi Yun Chor ML E
(Co-Chairman) (BEERE) - 120 6 126
Ms. Yeung So Mui YL
(Co-Chairman) (BEEE) - 120 6 126
Mr. Chen Jian PR - 120 6 126
Mr. Tai Kwok Keung Kenny HERLE - 120 6 126
Mr. Ng Kwai Wah Sunny REEELE - 360 18 378
Mr. Lin Junwei WEERE - 360 18 378
Independent non-executive directors B FEHTES
Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie et 120 - - 120
Mr. Ting Wong Kacee TEEE 120 - - 120
Dr. Loke Yu g EL 120 - - 120
360 1,200 60 1,620
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e B ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 14. EERITHARMME (8)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BHE-_ZT-ZTF+-_A=+—HILFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits schemes
Fees inkind  contributions Total
e 2R RAER
e EMEr TR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TR THT TAET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Choi Yun Chor RS E
(Co-Chairman) (BEERE) - 320 11 331
Ms. Yeung So Mui BREZL
(Co-Chairman) (BEERE) - 170 9 179
Mr. Chen Jian BRi & = 170 9 179
Mr. Tai Kwok Keung Kenny FEA L - 170 9 179
Mr. Ng Kwai Wah Sunny REMLL - 460 18 478
Mr. Lin Junwei WEERE = 460 18 478

Independent non-executive directors BV FHTES

Ms. Lai Cheuk Yu Cherrie Remgt 145 - - 145
Mr. Ting Wong Kacee TR%AE 145 - - 145
Dr. Loke Yu FEEMET 170 - - 170
460 1,750 74 2,284
Notes: FisE
(a)  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for (a) LEXFTRATEEZHMEeNARSERARN
their services in connection with the management of the affairs AIRAEBEBMIT
of the Company and the Group.
(b)  The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown (b) EXFTREBMYIERTESCMETIAKEN
above were for their services as directors of the Company. EERNRMERE M
(c)  No chief executive of the Company was appointed for the years () ARARBEZT-_—FR-_ZFT_FTF+=
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. A=+—HIIFEITEZEZSTBAS -
There was no arrangement under which a director or the REBEE_TE-_—FR_FT_FF+=H
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any emoluments =+—BIFE  WEESHITHRAEHK
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. B2 R ERETAMES 28k
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15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included two (2020: three) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements above. Details of the remuneration for
the year of the remaining three (2020: two) highest paid
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of
the Company are as follows:

15. A& &

re B ERARM R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIFE

= #h e &

$EI¢W£%§%ﬁMEEa%W%
(_7_§¢ =R)EF REZHFNF

%FtI”AW%%%WEM Her=
2 (ZZTF : MB) WIHFARAIESH
TTHRAER 2 =R B R AFE 2 5
BT

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Salaries, allowances and e ERRREWER
benefits in kind 1,763 1,561
Bonus 4L - 112

Retirement benefits schemes BRIRBFIET IR

contributions 58 36
1,821 1,709

The number of the highest paid employees who are not
the Directors whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

TN TFUTHE 2 FEEESFTMES
AT :

Number of individuals

EEAH
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£% 1,000,000 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 # 7T Z 1,500,000 7T 1 1

There was no arrangement during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020, under which the directors or
the five highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration, and no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the Directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-—F+-_A=+t—HILFE

16.

17.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021,
nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period (2020: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

16.

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iz 2

BE_S-—F+-_A=+—HILEE -
W ERAR B LR EIR A SERZERE
BEREHRARMERZZTMES (=

TR ) e

BRER

ARRRHEE AREOBRER LB EEE
THERANBIEAE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THETT
Loss for the year attributable to FTEERERRESEEISFTH
owners of the Company ZARRNEHE NEIERFEEE
for the purpose of basic and
diluted loss per share (20,940) (78,780)
2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
000 '000
Number of shares BB E T B TFh&
Weighted average number of FSTESRERREEEIERTA
ordinary shares for the purpose Z LR INET I8
of basic and diluted loss per share 1,092,878 924,373

No diluted loss per share for both years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 were presented as there
were no potential ordinary shares in issue for both years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

18. M5k « WF R

Freehold Other
land and buildings property,
held for Leasehold Motor plant and
ownuse  improvements vehicles equipment Total
KAFELTHE Hthz -
HEERNEFT HEMEERE e BERR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx T Tir T THx
CoST KA
At 1 January 2020 W=E-%F—-H—H 95,404 1,59 1,670 8,150 106,818
Exchange adjustments L 1,640 = 38 176 1,854
Additions ME 295 - - 312 607
Disposals i - - (413) (335) (748)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-FF+-A=1+-H 97,339 1,59 1,295 8,303 108,531
Exchange adjustments L 284 = 19 55 358
Additions AE 562 - - 1,543 2,105
Written-off Hisa (61) (1,594) = = (1,655)
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-F+-R=t-A 98,124 - 1,314 9,901 109,339
ACCUMULATED EHTERAE
DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2020 W=ZE-ZF—-H—H 10,645 1,59 779 7,076 20,094
Exchange adjustments B 5L AR 269 = 14 183 466
Provided for the year RERRME 1692 = 161 968 2321
Written back on disposals &R i - - (84) (299) (383)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-TF+-A=1+—H 12,606 1,59 870 7,928 22,998
Exchange adjustments B 5L AR 19 = 7 23 49
Provided for the year RERRE 1658 = 120 1,204 2,982
Written-off Hisa (10) (1,594) = = (1,604)
At 31 December 2021 R=B--£+t-R=t-A 14,273 - 997 9,155 24,425
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2021 RZE--£+-F=t-H 83,851 - 317 746 84914
At 31 December 2020 RZZZFF+-A=1+—H 84,733 - 425 375 85,533
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e B ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEZ-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. )% - MR ERRE (B)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s freehold land RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H " ' A&EER
and buildings held for own use situated in Canada with ﬂﬂ%‘ﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁ%ﬁéiﬂ&hﬁ@)ﬂﬁ’]@?
carrying amount of approximately HK$83,851,000 (2020: RFBRMEE# 483,851,000 L (ZE-F
HK$84,733,000) were pledged to the secured loans  : 84,733,000 ) EEFTFTAEHE
granted to the Group (Note 32). R ER (FizE32) ©
The above items of property, plant and equipment, are LA EWn% - a3 R ETE B RUA TG
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated FRFHANNLNEREATTERE :

useful life as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated KASERE LT NTIE
Buildings held for own use 25 years FEBRANETF 254
Leasehold improvements 3 years MEMEEE 34
Motor vehicles 5 years B 5%
Other property, plant and equipment 3-5 years HAnWsE - #as MR 3E54F
19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. FRHESE
Office
premises Car parks Total
NE /S BES Bt
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FAET
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZTF—H—H 2,853 = 2,853
Additions NE - 2,062 2,062
Depreciation charges WEEH (1,681) (430) (2,111)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 R = 90 20
At 31 December 2020 N—_E_EF+_-_A=+—H 1,172 1,722 2,894
Additions NE 12,697 108 12,805
Depreciation charges WEEH (1,704) (195) (1,899)
Early termination ERARE - (1,589) (1,589)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 R 180 54 234
At 31 December 2021 R=ZB=-—F+=HA=+—8H 12,345 100 12,445
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19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

re B ERARM R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIFE

19. EREEE ()

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T

Expense relating to ERFE HAFH SRR I 2
short-term leases 1,371 -
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRL4RE 3,123 2,041

For both years, the Group leases office premises and car
parks for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term ranging from 2 to 10 years (2020: from 2 to 3
years) but may have termination option as describe below.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of
a contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.

The Group entered into several short-term leases for
carparks for the operation of properties management
segment and a short-term lease for 1,000 networked
computing nodes for the cryptocurrency investment
segment during the year ended 31 December 2021. As at
31 December 2021, the outstanding lease commitments
relating to these carparks and 1,000 networked computing
nodes are HK$195,000 and HK$Nil respectively. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, there was no portfolio of
short-term lease.

The Group has termination option for office premises (2020:
Nil). The Directors is reasonably certain the Group will not
exercise such termination option.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain not to exercise a termination option, upon the
occurrence of either a significant change in circumstances
that is within the control of the leasee. During the year,
there is no such triggering event (2020: N/A).
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e B ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEZ-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20. ELEE

Customers
relationship
EFBR
HK$’000
FET
cosT R
At 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 RZZEZTF—H—HK
—E-ERF+-A=+—H 45,616
Exchange adjustment b H R 1,446
At 31 December 2021 N_E_—F+_A=+—H 47,062
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION RITBEREE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2020 RZE-FTF—H—H 20,149
Charged for the year REE X IE 4,562
Impairment loss RIEEE 385
At 31 December 2020 RN_E_TF+-A=+—H 25,096
Charged for the year REEH 4,170
Impairment loss BEBE 1,748
Exchange adjustment M H B 886
At 31 December 2021 R-E-_—-F+=-HA=+—H 31,900
CARRYING VALUES ARTEIE
At 31 December 2021 R-B-_—F+=-HA=+—H 15,162
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_EF+-_A=+—H 20,520

The customers relationship was acquired from third parties
through business combinations. It was amortised on a
straight-line basis over 10 years. The remaining useful life

of the intangible assets was 4 years (2020: 5 years). hE) o
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the intangible assets has
been determined based on a value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management of the
Group covering the remaining four-year period with a pre-
tax discount rate of 26.10% and cash flow beyond the
four-year period is extrapolated using a steady 3.00% per
annum growth rate. The growth rate used does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the relevant industry.
Another key assumption for the value in use calculation is
the budgeted gross margin, which is determined based on
the CGU’s past performance and management expectations
for the market development.

Impairment assessment of intangible assets

At 31 December 2021, the property management segment
continued to underperform, the management of the
Group concluded there was indication for impairment and
conducted impairment assessment on intangible assets.

The discount rates reflect specific risks related to the
relevant cash-generating units. The retention rates within
the remaining four-year period (2020: five-year period) have
been based on the past experience and management’s
expectation of market development.

The following table sets forth each key assumption on
which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of intangible assets as at 31
December 2021:

Impairment loss amount to approximately HK$1,748,000
(2020: HK$385,000) was recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to the post-tax discount rate and long-term
growth rate and budgeted gross margin, representing the
key inputs to the determination to the recoverable amount.

If the post-tax discount rate was changed from 15.10% to
15.60%, while other parameters remain constant, the fair
value of the customer relationship would be reduced to
approximately HK$15,044,000 and further impairment of
the customer relationship of approximately HK$118,000
would be recognised.
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20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of intangible assets
(Continued)

If the long-term growth rate was changed from 3.0%
to 2.5%, while other parameters remain constant, the
fair value of the intangible assets would be reduced to
approximately HK$14,495,000 and further impairment of
the customer relationship of approximately HK$667,000
would be recognised.

If the budgeted gross margin was changed from 21.77%
to 21.27%, while other parameters remain constant, the
fair value of the intangible assets would be reduced to
approximately HK$15,036,000 and further impairment of
the customer relationship of approximately HK$126,000
would be recognised.

7w ﬁ/ﬁjx (HE)
BREERRERG (8)

i R EAIE R R H3.0% & A2.5% + MEA
LHERFTE  ABFEENAAEER
WA EX) 14,495,000 70 WiEHERRF
IR — B REXY 667,000 BT

MEEENKRE21.77% & /21.27% T
HM28 T8 AEBEEENAAE
{EH%/JEZQ\E?’] ].5 036 000 /%775 ’ IHT}ﬁEWL‘,\
B BIRA#E—HREL 126,0008 7T °

21. GOODWILL 21. HE
Property management
— Acquisition of
Chongging Ailuojia
MmEERE
- WEEEEER
HK$’000
FET
COST %S
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and RZEZFTF—H—H "
1 January 2021 —;_7¢+ A=+—H
k=T —F—H—H -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 38)  FEUWBETB AR MAEL (M:E38) 3,265
At 31 December 2021 R=-B-_—F+=HA=+—H 3,265
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT REPRE
At 1 January 2020, E’\_%E_gi A—H -
31 December 2020 and —EEFF_A=1+—HBK
31 December 2021 —E-_—-f+=-A=+—H =
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2021 R-B-_—F+=-A=+—H 3,265

At 31 December 2020

R_F_FEF+-A=+—H

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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21. GOODWILL (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, the goodwill above
has been allocated to one cash-generating unit, comprising
Chongging Ailuojia Technology Service Limited* (& B &
EREHE R AR A 7)) (“Chongging Ailuojia”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Chongging Ailuojia CGU”) in the property
management segment with reference to a valuation carried
out by Valtech Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer.

The recoverable amount of the Chongging Ailuojia CGU
has been determined based on a value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management of the
Group covering five-year period with a pre-tax discount
rate of 15.89% and cash flow beyond the five-year period
is extrapolated using a steady 3.00% per annum growth
rate. The growth rate used does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the relevant industry. Another key
assumption for the value in use calculation is the budgeted
gross margin, which is determined based on the CGU’s
past performance and management expectations for the
market development.

As at 31 December 2021, the recoverable amount of the
Chongging Ailuojia CGU exceed its carrying amount by
approximately RMB382,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$467,000). Accordingly, no impairment loss has been
recognised against the carrying amount of the Chongging
Ailuojia CGU.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to the post-tax discount rate and long-term
growth rate and budgeted gross margin rate, representing
the key inputs to the determination to the recoverable
amount.

If the post-tax discount rate was changed from 12.68%
to 13.18%, while other parameters remain constant, the
recoverable amount of the Chongging Ailuojia CGU would
be reduced to approximately RMB2,919,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$3,572,000) and no impairment
loss would be recognised against the carrying amount of
Chongging Ailuojia CGU.

* For identification purpose only
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21. GOODWILL (Continued)

If the long-term growth rate was changed from 3.00%
to 2.50%, while other parameters remain constant. The
recoverable amount of the Chongging Ailuojia CGU would
be reduced to approximately RMB2,955,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$3,616,000) and no impairment
loss would be recognised against the carrying amount of
Chongging Ailuojia CGU.

If the budgeted gross margin rate was changed from
42.33% to 41.33%, while other parameters remain
constant, the recoverable amount of the Chongging Ailuojia
CGU would be reduced to approximately RMB2,899,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,547,000) and no
impairment loss would be recognised against the carrying
amount of Chongging Ailuoja CGU.

22. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Hotel operation

At 31 December 2021, the hotel operation segment
continued to underperform, the management of the
Group concluded there was indication for impairment
and conducted impairment assessment by determining
the recoverable amounts of development land and resort
hotel included in property, plant and equipment with
carrying amounts of approximately HK$52,901,000 and
HK$30,950,000 respectively.

In determining the recoverable amount of the development
land as at 31 December 2021, the Group engages Roma
Appraisals Limited (“Roma Appraisals”), an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group,
to perform the valuation. The Directors work closely with
Roma Appraisals, to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The recoverable
amount of the development land was determined based
on the direct comparison approach by assuming sale of
the property in its existing state with the benefit of vacant
possession and by making reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant market.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

21. HE (8)

22.

it &= B 1% & R 13.00% & A2.50% M
H2HEFHTE  IEETSRREE
HEBENMAIKRESEBERLENARE
2,955, 00075 (*H”‘“E’\\?’B 616, ooo,%rz)
ETE%P/IL\/W{EEE{E\ ©

MIBE EF|RH42.33% & 541.33% *
HbREMEFTE  AEEERRREE
EEUAATKREEEBERLENDARE
2,899,0007T ( HHE 493,547,000 7T)
METEREERE SRR ELEMAORK
HEEERREESE -
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ER{ERHE

RBREURIERESER

iﬁrgllm%
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22. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Hotel operation (Continued)

In determining the recoverable amount of the resort hotel
as at 31 December 2021, the Group engages Roma
Appraisals, an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected to the Group, to perform the valuation. The
Directors work closely with Roma Appraisals, to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The recoverable amount has been determined with
reference to value in use calculation based on discounted
cash flow approach. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management of the Group covering a 10-year period.
The pre-tax discount rate and terminal capitalisation
rate applied to cash flow projection is 8.34% and 4.00%
respectively. Another key assumption in the calculation is
the budgeted gross margin, which is determined based on
the past performance of the resort hotel and management’s
expectations for the market development. The growth
rates and discount rate have been reassessed as at 31
December 2021 taking into consideration higher degree
of estimation uncertainties in the current year due to
uncertainty on how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress
and evolve.

As at 31 December 2021, based on the result of the
assessment, management of the Group determined that
the recoverable amount of the development land and
resort hotel exceed its carrying amount by approximately
HK$4,461,000. Accordingly, no impairment loss would be
recognised against the carrying amount of the development
land and resort hotel included in property, plant and
equipment.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to the post-tax discount rate and terminal
capitalisation rate, representing the key inputs to the
determination to the recoverable amount.
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22. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Hotel operation (Continued)

If the post-tax discount rate was changed from 7.00%
to 7.50%, while other parameters remain constant, the
recoverable amount of the development land and resort
hotel would be reduced to approximately HK$79,654,000
and a impairment loss on the development land and resort
hotel of approximately HK$4,197,000 would be recognised.

If the terminal capitalisation rate was changed from 4.00%
to 4.50%, while other parameters remain constant, the
recoverable amount of the development land and resort
hotel would be reduced to approximately HK$82,290,000
and a impairment loss on the development land and resort
hotel of approximately HK$1,561,000 would be recognised.

Property management

At 31 December 2021, the property management segment
continued to underperform, the management of the
Group concluded there was indication for impairment
and conducted impairment assessment on certain
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
with carrying amounts of approximately HK$501,000 and
HK$11,953,000 respectively.

The Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGUs
of property management to which the asset belongs when
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, including allocation of corporate assets when
reasonable and consistent basis can be established.
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22. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Property management (Continued)

The recoverable amount of CGUs has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the management of the Group covering the remaining
lease term of the office premises of approximately 9.7
years with a pre-tax discount rate of 16.80% as at
31 December 2021. The annual growth rate used is 3.00%,
which is based on the industry growth forecasts and does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate of 3.00%
for the relevant industry. Another key assumption for the
value in use calculation is the budgeted gross margin of
17.26%, which is determined based on the CGUs’ past
performance and management’s expectations for the
market development. The growth rates and discount rate
as at 31 December 2021 have been reassessed taking into
consideration higher degree of estimation uncertainties
due to uncertainty on how the Covid-19 pandemic may
progress and evolve.

As at 31 December 2021, based on the result of the
assessment, management of the Group determined that
the recoverable amount of the CGUs exceed its carrying
amount by approximately HK$11,645,000. Accordingly, no
impairment loss has been recognised against the carrying
amount of those property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to the post-tax discount rate, long-term
growth rate and budgeted gross margin, representing the
key inputs to the determination to the recoverable amount.

If the post-tax discount rate was changed from 12.68%
to 13.18%, while other parameters remain constant, the
recoverable amount of the CGUs of property management
would be reduced to approximately HK$19,294,000
and no impairment loss has been recognised against the
carrying amount of the CGUs of property management.
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22. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Property management (Continued)

If the long-term growth rate was changed from 3.00%
to 2.50%, while other parameters remain constant, the
recoverable amount of the CGUs of property management
would be reduced to approximately HK$19,348,000
and no impairment loss would be recognised against the
carrying amount of the CGUs of property management.

If the budgeted gross margin rate was changed from
17.26% to 16.76%, while other parameters remain
constant, the recoverable amount of the CGUs of property
management would be reduced to approximately
HK$18,915,000 and no impairment loss would be
recognised against the carrying amount of the CGUs of
property management.

22. % - BERBBURERESE
ER{ERTE ()

MEEE (&)

R EIE R EH3.00% & 52.50% @ MH
W2BHEFIE  AIMXEERCELSE
{ﬁE’UTHQEQ%EHﬁM’J\E,Z'] 19,348,000 7%
T MATERYERERRSELEMN
FREERERREREE

MIEEEFEB17.26%E 516.76% * T
Hih 2@/ TE  AMEERRSES
B8 iz 1) AT Y B & B8 R =49 18,915,000
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23. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 23. R—REBENRZER
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cost of investment in an associate & —RHf & A 7 2 5K 6,235 6,235
Share of post-acquisition loss e ERE BB (4,921) (3,051)
Exchange adjustments bE A% (199) (127)
1,115 3,057
Amount due from an associate (Note) &4 — B <A 717008 (M) 13,808 13,808
14,923 16,865
Less: Amount that is expected to B IERBEEIE TFTREEF
realise after 12 months R 12E A% &8 2 5008
shown under non-current
assets (1,115) (16,865)
Amount that is expected to realise ‘}/ﬁj)féfﬁlﬁ—l—ﬁﬁj_’\ﬁﬁﬂﬂ—r
within 12 months shown under R 12188 NE IR 2 7K
current assets 13,808 -
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23. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 23. R—REBE AR Z#ERE (8)

Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the reporting AEEEE R RRRERARGTFBOT
period are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/ Proportion of
principal place of ownership interest Proportion of
operation held by the Group voting rights
Name of entities MR/ RAREREZ held by the Group Principal activities
2 TERERY FrEgERLS  ASBHANRRELA TEER
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEC-F | ZZCEF | ZBC-F | ZTIEF
Total Blossom Sdn Bhd Malaysia/Malaysia 49% 49% 49% 49% Properties investment
(“Total Blossom”) BRAES/ SRED for rental
Total Blossom Sdn Bhd ESA
([ Total Blossom.) nyjahiches
The Group holds 49% of the ordinary shares in Total K A 8] ¥ A Total Blossom #49% & 3_
Blossom. As major operating decisions are made by ff c AR ERKEERKRAFTAELIN E
another shareholder which holds 51% of the ordinary REEMRRIEL - EFR 7%74»‘%@5
shares, the Directors consider that the Group has Total Blossom & B & K& £ 1 » # Total
significant influence in Total Blossom and Total Blossom Blossom J3 PA#E #5075 VE /2 2N 52 [ B & 1 A
was accounted for as an associate of the Group by using AR ©
the equity method.
Note: The amount due from an associate is unsecured, non-interest D= —— =% TFE+-A=+—H ' ER—EE
bearing and not expected to be repaid within one year as at BNRIFEAEET 28 &TEHHTQE*
31 December 2020 and it is repayable on demand as at 31 ilﬁ%%& MR=ZE=—F+=ZA=+—
December 2021, thus the amount due from an associate is B AKRERERE  AtEKR—HEEA
reclassified from non-current assets to current assets in the ARER_ZE_—F+A=1+—HAKNEKE
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December Eﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁi‘%q] EE?F;AEbéFi%ﬁ"*E?%ﬁ@J
2021. The Controlling Shareholder have undertaken to BEE o Hxﬁxigﬁﬁdﬁk £iB B e U — R gk
indemnify the Group against any losses that may result from &N A 3RIE %) 13,808,000 T (= F _2;
the non-recovery of the amount due from an associate of i 13 808 ,00087T) Fr8z i8R mA
approximately HK$13,808,000 (2020: HK$13,808,000). £ T -
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23. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

EFT—

FH-A=1t—HILFE

The summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the Total Blossom’s financial statements

prepared in accordance with HKFRs.

23. R—REBERRAZER

AR BA 75 & FL B 2 & Total Blossom IR BB &
B REENREZVBBRERMTZE

(48)

2021 2020
—E-—F TE-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Current assets MENEE - -
Non-current assets ERBEE 29,694 34,419
Current liabilities mEaE (27,418) (28,179)
The above amount of assets and FEERAESRE

liabilities include the following: BIEATEIE
Investment properties WEYE 29,694 34,419
Current financial liabilities nBErRAE

(excluding trade and (TBEESX

other payables and provisions) H AR 1) (27,418) (28,179)

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FET

Revenue Wz - -
Loss for the year KEEEE (3,815) (8,877)
Other comprehensive expense AEBHMEEH

for the year (149) (623)
Total comprehensive expense AEELEX HRE

for the year (3,964) (9,500)
Dividends received from R4 E B Total Blossom U EL 2 i% &

Total Blossom during the year - =

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

BARRERZERERAH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

23. R—REBERRAZER (F)

B E R Z AR S B SRR R
2 Total Blossom # = 2 BRTHEI{E 2 $15R -

23. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
Total Blossom recognised in the consolidated financial

statements:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Net assets of Total Blossom Total Blossom #),F & & 2,276 6,240
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 2<% [E 7 Total Blossom A A #&
interest in Total Blossom ey dll] 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the Group’s £ B Total Blossom Hy#E s
interest in Total Blossom ZBREE 1,115 3,057
24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24, REEGEZESR
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Cost of investment in joint ventures &S & E Z KA - 15,758
Share of post-acquisition loss (G ERE BB - (14,876)
Exchange adjustments bE R - (882)
Amount due from a joint venture EY—ME &t ERIE - 29,523
Impairment loss (Note) BEEE (M) - (29,523)

Note:

In July 2019, all the investment properties of Chongging Xingling
were seized by the Intermediate People’s Court of Chongging* (2
BE—PhHARZKT) (the “Court”) in relation to a loan dispute with
a financial institution. As at 31 December 2020, as advised by the
Company’s PRC legal advisor, the joint ventures do not possess control
over the seized investment properties because the seized investment
properties of the joint ventures are held under a compulsory auction as
ordered by the Court during the year ended 31 December 2020. The
management of the Company is of the opinion that the joint ventures
are unlikely to repossess the investment properties and therefore
impairment loss on the interests in joint ventures of HK$29,523,000
was made during the year ended 31 December 2020.

* For identification purpose only
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24.

(Continued)

Details of each of the Group’s joint ventures at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

BELERBEARNFHEOT

+
i
JiE]
i
]S

Place of
incorporation/ Proportion of Proportion of
Principal place of ownership interest voting rights
Name of entities operation held by the Group held by the Group Principal activities
MAATREZ AREREN
£ AT TELERY g RgsLfl FRELAI IEER
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEC-F | ZTCRF (ZRC-F | CBOTF
Triple Market Limited BVI/BVI 49% 49% 49% 49% Investment holding
(“Trile Market") ABRAEE/EBRINS REEHR
Daily Host Limited* Hong Kong/Hong Kong 49% 49% 49% 49% Investment holding
ERERAT! Bk /B REBR
Chongging Shandu Corporate PRC/PRC 49% 49% 49% 49% Investment holding
Management Limited** HE,/® RESR
ERERORERERAAY
Chongging Shance Limited** PRC/PRC 49% 49% 49% 49% Investment holding
EREREFARAAM hE/PE RERR
Chongging Xingling Limited** PRC/PRC 49% 49% 49% 49% Property holding for
(“Chongaing Xingling”) e/ rental
EREREFARAAM REELE
()
# Wholly-owned subsidiary of Triple Market # Trlple Market £ 2 & /& A 7]
o For identification purpose only * EHaz
Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, unanimous *EB%‘EEZ”&ZE%T}?% #% © Triple Market & £ [t B

consent from both shareholders are required for certain
key corporate matters of Triple Market and its subsidiaries
(the “Triple Market Group”). Therefore, the Triple Market
Group is under the joint control of the Group. The Group
has the right to the net assets of the Triple Market Group.
Accordingly, the investment in the Triple Market Group was
accounted for as joint ventures of the Group by using the
equity method.
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/NE] (TTripIe Marketﬁ H) WETEE

NAEHBAESMEBRREN—HEE - B
It Triple Marketé’%@ﬁﬂﬁ%@ L[A1Z %U
=@ B = A Triple Market £ [@ 8% &
B o A R Triple Market & B #7#%& A
BREARIAREENEGEDE -

BARRERZERERAH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and not expected to be repaid within one
year.

Since 31 October 2021, the Directors lost of contact with
the management of the Triple Market Group and the
Directors were unable to obtain the books and records of
the Triple Market Group, the Directors resolved that the
Group no longer had the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of the Triple Market Group, and
the control over the Triple Market Group was lost on 31
October 2021 and the Group derecognised the interests in
joint ventures since 31 October 2021.

The derecognition of the Triple Market Group resulted in
a loss of approximately HK$882,000 in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
during the year ended 31 December 2021, calculated as
follows:

B RN MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIFE

ra

24. REELEZES (B)

KR —FHAZEERARERT RER
BHrEE—FAEER -

5_7‘_—¢+ﬂ +—HR EEHEZE
k4% Triple Market R EIE BB A ASEE
I /8 # L ER 1S Triple Market &£ B #)BR 8 &
B EFRAASETHAEBEE Triple
Market 5 [ 81 7 K AL & BUR R #E 7 - ﬁﬁzﬂ
Triple Market 52 E AV IZFIHETR N =T =

FHA=T—HBRX A&KER_T_—
FHA=T—HAEKRIBRANGELEDN
S o

RIEFER Triple Market EEEHEHE—F
——F+Z A=+ —HLEFEMNGZREESE
Ko ELAth 2 T U 25 55 85 1B 49 882,000 78 TT A9
SHEMT

2021
—E-—F
HK$’000
FER
Carrying amount of the 49% Triple Market 5 & 49% Jx R BRI &
equity interest in the Triple Market Group -
Release of cumulative exchange reserve RILTERE SRS N/ 25TE W E
upon derecognition of joint ventures (882)
Loss on derecognition of joint ventures RIEEREE DR EE (882)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-—F+-_A=+t—HILFE

24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24. REELEZ#ERE ()
(Continued)
The summarised financial information below represents AT B 75 & BHE 2 & Triple Market £ B3%
amounts shown in the Triple Market Group’s financial BEABV B HmEERRR 2 B mKRR
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. ZBFE o
2020
—TTF
HK$'000
THTT
Current assets MENVEE 2
Non-current assets ERBEE -
Current liabilities i N=NE (57,134)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (593)
The above amounts of assets and TEERBESHEEE
liabilities include the following: AT&IE :
Cash and cash equivalents REeRRESEEY 2
Current financial liabilities nEEmBE (TERES R
(excluding trade and other EAth pE AT BR R S s )
payables and provisions) (56,602)
Non-current financial liabilities FnBemaE (TERESH R
(excluding trade and other E A AR )
payables and provisions) (593)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24. REELEZES (B)
(Continued)
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
(Note)
(FfEE)
Revenue Wz - -
Loss for the year REEEIE - (89,021)
Other comprehensive income AEZEMEEWES
for the year - 698
Total comprehensive expense AEEEHAS L
for the year - (88,323)
Dividends received from the ARF[E A Triple Market £ &

Triple Market Group during the year YEL 2 i% 8. - =

The above loss for the year includes the following: FRAFEEBRENTSHA
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Note)
(Bf&E)
Depreciation and amortisation PTE R - -
Interest income FLEWA - -
Interest expense B - -
Income tax expense iSRS - =
Note: From 1 January 2021 to 31 October 2021 (date of Mi: BT =_—F—A—BEE=_T=_—F+

derecognition) .JEIE'f'*EIJJ: (R I-TERBE)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEZ-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial

24. REEREZHES (B)

bt TS E R B

iR e B HmaR NHER

information to the carrying amount of the interest in Z Triple Market 5= B #E %5 2 BRI 2 18R ¢
the Triple Market Group recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:
2020
—TTF
HK$'000
T
Net liabilities of the Triple Market Group Triple Market &£ B 2 5 & 1& (57,725)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REEER Triple Market £E &Y
interest in the Triple Market Group mEREER LB 49%
Carrying amount of the Group’s ARE B Triple Market £ /Y
interest in the Triple Market Group 2 REE -
2020
HK$OOO
THT
The unrecognised share of loss of 15 Triple Market &£ B AR EE
the Triple Market Group for the year RIERHEIE 28,285
Cumulative unrecognised share 251914 Triple Market £E /9
of loss of the Triple Market Group RIEREE 28,285
25. INVENTORIES 25. & &
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ZT=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT THT
Food and beverages By ae 535 443
Hotel merchandise B JE T 121 141
656 584

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T--—F+-A=+—HIFE

26. CRYPTOCURRENCY 26. NZEE#E
Filecoin
XA
HK$’000
TR
FAIR VALUE AREE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and RZEZFF—H—H "
1 January 2021 —EEF+=R=+—H
rZFE=——F—H—H =
Addition NE 7,623
Net decrease in fair value recognised RN IEEN A EBEF D
in profit or loss (2,253)
At 31 December 2021 R-E-_—-+=-HA=+—H 5,370

Note:

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cryptocurrency is carried at a
revaluated amount of approximately HK$5,370,000 being estimated
its fair value arrived at using available information for the reference
prices in the relevant cryptocurrencies markets. The fair value was
categorised under Level 1 fair value hierarchy as the fair value was
based on a quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for
identical assets.

At 31 December 2021, cryptocurrency of approximately HK$4,347,000
represented an initial pledge collateral committed for the investment in
Filecoin mining. No restriction is placed on those Filecoins, the Group is
able to withdraw those Filecoins at any time.

G

RZE-_—F+-A=+—H AEENNEE
MR B (L £ 5E495,370,000 8 TTETE - Mz L EA
FATREHABNEEEMEN2EERERG
BHAREBEREMGT AR AAEBEIENE
FREEEERMBSTNMERE CREAE) A&
WARBEEREAE " EBANEBEER -

RZZBZ—F+-A=+—H MEEEHH
4,347,000 78 7T A& I E XA EE 1Z TR A0 47) 25 4 4
EIR G o X EAEAR S - ASEE B SRS
IREGZ S -

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. EG REMEWERT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T

Trade receivables B SRR
— contracts with customers -EFAH 53,297 50,261
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (48,455) (44,346)
Trade receivables, net (Note (a)) B S RWEEFFRE (M3E @) 4,842 5915
Other receivables (Note (b)) H b R BE R (FF5E (b)) 7,344 8,464
Deposits Ee 766 1,116
Prepayments AT RIE 1,481 978
9,591 10,558
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (6,266) (3,655)
3,325 6,903
Trade and other receivables, net E 5 R HAEWRIFRE 8,167 12,818
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_ZT--—F+-A=t+—HIFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 1 January 2020, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to approximately HK$19,344,000, net of
allowance for credit losses of approximately HK$21,092,000.

The Group allows an average credit period of O to 30 days to
its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables, net of allowance for credit losses, presented based
on the date of delivery of goods or date of rendering of services
which approximated the respective dates on which revenue was
recognised.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27. B 5 REMEWERK ()

WoZZ-ZE—F—H REBFPEHNE
M BRFRA /19,344,000 7T (EHBAE
EE1E 421,092,000 7T)

AEBRTEESEP 2P EERROE
30H « U ARBEZNE R A HRIEMH
BR#% ) A H (BaER U a0 A HIARE) 271
%%ﬂ[‘?%%l&ﬂéﬁéﬁﬂ@%ﬁ%%H&ﬁ@%ﬂﬂ%‘é’%ﬁ

2021 2020

—EC-—fF —EEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Within 90 days 90HA 597 2,719
91 to 180 days 91%180H 2 613
181 to 365 days 181365 H 439 476
1 to 2 years —EWE 2,527 1,533
2 to 3 years ME=F 1,277 51
Over 3 years HBB=F - 523
4,842 5915

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$4,496,000 (2020: HK$4,923,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, approximately HK$441,000 (2020: approximately
HK$1,089,000) has been past due 90 days or more are
not considered as default by considering repayment history.
Approximately of HK$3,804,000 (2020: HK$2,107,000) is
considered as default as it has been past due over one year.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2020, included in other receivables,
approximately HK$3,099,000, net of allowance for credit loss
of approximately HK$2,830,000, represents amount due from
a third party which is unsecured, interest bearing at 8% per
annum and repayable on demand. The amount has been fully
impaired during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables are
set out in Note 6(b).

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(b)

R-ZT-—F+-"A=+—8 KEENZ
SIEWRTE & 04 A2 BRI (A4 4,496,000 7
T (ZZ ZF4F : 4,831,000/ 1) &) JEUW
BRIB - MAEMZTERSRE B e EE - f£i18
R EAE ST - 494,245,000 T (Z B =
T ¢ #93,196,000787T) B #HI0 H 8k A
FETHRAEREY  RAAHLBTAERT
B o REBWERZELEHIET B TAEKIF

o0
g °

RZZF-_TF+-_A=+—H HMEK
R 381 #53,099,000% 7T - Mk E B &8
#92,830,000 #TT * ZFIAREKE=T R

I BEER  REFESERE - RAER
ERER - ZHERBE—ZE-_—F+=A

=+—RIEFEERERE -

BRIE 5 K HE A USRS AR B RT 4 #5300
FE6(b) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_T-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

28. RITHBRREE

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which ranged RITHEBRIZMIBF R E0.001EE05E
from 0.001% to 0.5% (2020: from 0.001% to 0.39%) per (ZE-ZTF : 0001 EXE039F) 5T 8 -
annum.

28. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

RITEHBR MRS BRE TIIAKEEEIEE
ERNINEBEREBEMN 2SR

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than the group
entities’ functional currencies:

2021 2020

—E-—fF —E-FTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT FET

Amounts denominated in USD AETEHEN SR 2,384 =

RITHERIA S BB NIIZINEEHIIRE
MRENA BRI R

Included in the bank balances and cash are the following
amounts which are subject to foreign exchange control
regulations and not freely transferable:

2021 2020
—®¥--%| =-T=%
HK$'000 HK$000
AT FBT
Amounts denominated in RMB PAA RUESHE B4 58 4692 1054

R ORERHEFHEHSIR M FE6(D) °

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances are set
out in Note 6(b).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEZ-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

29. B 5 R H BT RRRK

2021 2020

—B—F —E_FF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET Fi&T

Trade payables = AL N 953 417
Accruals (Note (a)) FEFtER (FifFE(a) 4,427 2,220
Other taxes payables HE A ER TR 3,947 3,765
Bond interest payable FERESHFE 3,274 2,929
Other payables (Note (a)) EMEMER (MFE @) 26,589 13,897
39,190 23,228

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables

UNTREREZREHENNZEHRMNER

presented based on the invoice date: ZHRER AT
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Within 90 days 90 HA 899 321
91 to 180 days 91& 180 H 3 23
Over 365 days 365 HIA 51 73
953 417

The average credit period on purchases of goods is O to 90

days.

Notes:

a) Other payables and accruals mainly include the followings:

(i) Approximately HK$3,436,000 (2020: HK$1,898,000)
represented properties maintenance fund collected from

customers for the payment on

behalf of the customers

for the properties maintenance fee.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEZFHEEMROEWNA -

i

a)

HENEAREFTERIZEEATE
1A

()

493,436,000 T (=T = T F:
1,898,000/ L) AREFUEH P
ﬁ&g%ﬁ C AEREBZEX YL
28
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HEZ-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. EZ REMEMERR (8)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) B : (48)
a)  (Continued) a) (8

(i) Approximately HK$11,066,000 represented a loan from (i)  FFARE B/ HE M E R ERKD
Rich Vision Developments Limited (“Rich Vision”), a 11,066,000 7T 4 2K B Al 1% IR A% 3R
former controlling shareholder, which was reclassified Rich Vision Developments Limited
from loans from controlling shareholders upon Rich ([Rich Vision]) B)—Z &5 * B Rich
Vision completed the disposal of the Company’s shares VisonE—E-——F+=-_A=+N\ EI
and ceased to be a controlling shareholder of the nﬁﬁ’i$ AR R TNEAER A
Company on 28 December 2021. On 20 December R R - REE Hxﬂx?gfﬁ’\ﬁ’]t
2020, the Company has signed supplementary MEREESHHE -RT-TF
agreement with Rich Vision to extend the repayment date +;Ji_+E ZK TERth$w
to 30 June 2022. The loan is unsecured, non-interest R HEAERERBHE=-F
bearing and repayable on 30 June 2022. ZZHFXNA=+H-ZE; ATJ%?EE

H B RBER_E__FX A=+
HEE -

(iii)  Approximately HK$6,993,000 (2020: HK$7,156,000) (i)  #96,993,0008 T ( =& = T F:
represented the amounts due to third parties. 7,156,000787T) BEME =58 -

(iv)  Approximately HK$1,746,000 (2020: HK$1,589,000) (iv)  #91,746,0008 T (=Z & = & F:
represented the legal and professional fee payable. 1,589,000 7T) AIEMANEERESE

B -

(v)  Approximately HK$2,915,000 (2020: HK$2,841,000) (v) #12,915000 BE(—-T =T &,
represented the amount due to a third party which was 2,841 OOO/%N:) BENE=FIE
unsecured, interest bearing at 2.7% (2020: 2.7%) per nimﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ BERE27E (=
annum and repayable on 30 June 2021. TZTF27E) B RARZE

—FRNAEE-
30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES = op=Ri-y
2021 2020
—E—— —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi# FHT
Contract liabilities EREE
— related to hotel operation - EEREgE 4,304 3,262
— related to properties management -~ BREAYEEE 1,223 1,022
5,527 4,284
As at 1 January 2020, contract liabilities amounted to ATE-ZFTF—H—B:AY8EBENA
approximately HK$4,407,000. 4,407,000 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILFE

30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 30. §HI&aE (&)
Contract liabilities, that are not expected to be settled EHRTERALBERLERPALE
within the Group’s normal operating cycle, are classified EHBERASERNE PEEE MRS
as current and non-current liabilities based on the Group’s KesVEELEARBBERIERBE
earliest obligation to transfer goods or services to the & o
customers.
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRINREERREFHEEBESNEES
recognised relates to carried-forward contract liabilities and 8 LA &ﬁ(\‘i@{fﬁyﬁfﬁ}@f?z}@%ﬁaﬁfﬁ%ﬁz
how much relates to performance obligations that were SR o
satisfied in prior periods.
Hotel Properties
operation  management Total
BIERE NEER et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FERT FET
For the year ended BE-_Z—_—f§
31 December 2021 +TZA=+—HLEE
Revenue recognised that was FFAFVIEHEELEHS
included in the contract 2 BRI
liability balance at the
beginning of the year 538 1,022 1,560
For the year ended HE-ZT-FTF
31 December 2020 TZA=+—HILFE
Revenue recognised that was STAFUIEHEaBEES
included in the contract 2 B R E
liability balance at the
beginning of the year 2,322 768 3,090
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of FECDHRENBESE 2 BB IR
contract liabilities recognised are as follows: W
Hotel operation HERE
The Group receives 100% of the face value of gift cards REBE W E 100% HEMNEmTT  MZF
and these gift cards are non-refundable and have no expiry B~ AAERK Hﬁ)z/%ﬁ,ﬁﬁ
date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

ra

BE-_Z-—F+_A=1+—HILFE
30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 30. eX&aE (&)
Properties management MEER
In general, the Group receives an one-month deposit —RME  EAEBWIREDEEER
in advance for the provision of properties management Bz —EAENZRER  GHAEEGER
service, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of BHIFIIRREAE ©
a contract.
The significant increase in contract liabilities in current year REEEGHNBENBEEENEEZEZHNE
was mainly due to the significant increase in sale of gift JEHEE DI 2019 AV BARARENFE
cards as the result of recovery from the effect of Covid-19 FiRiE - BRERREEANE -
in the hotel operation segment.
31. LOANS FROM CONTROLLING 31. EERBREENK
SHAREHOLDERS
The loans from controlling shareholders are unsecured, TR R E R BT RENER-E
non-interest bearing and repayable on 30 June 2022. “ZHFXA=THEE-
2021 2020
—B-—-F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Great Match Great Match 10,544 10,032
Rich Vision (Note) Rich Vision (&) - 10,526
10,544 20,558
Less: Amount due within one year  J& : /RENEEE N~
shown under current liabilities R—FRNEE 2 %IR8 (10,544) =
Amount shown under FREBEEENR2ZRE
non-current liabilities - 20,558
Note: BT
As at 31 December 2021, the loan from Rich Vision was reclassified RZZEZ—F+ZA=1+—0 ' ' F#R=ZZT=—%F

from loans from controlling shareholders to other payables upon Rich
Vision completed the disposal of the Company’s shares and ceased to
be a controlling shareholder of the Company on 28 December 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

32.

BE-T_—F+_A=1tHLHFE

SECURED LOANS

32. AR

2021 2020
Effective | —Z=——%F | _ZT-TF
interest | HKD’000 HKD’000
Maturity date rate FERT FHET
FH A BRFI=
Variable-rate borrowings:
FERAREE
Canada prime rate + 1.75%/2% 15 September 2031
secured bank loan 4.20%-4.45% 29,857 32,023
bu”%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁbul.75@/2@ —FNA+AAH
BEHIRITER
Canada prime rate + 2% 15 September 2029
secured bank loan 4.45% - 1,644
MERFEEMNEM2EERRTER T NFAA+TAHA
29,857 33,667

As at 31 December 2021, the mortgage loans of
HK$29,857,000 (2020: HK$32,023,000) are repayable on
15 September 2031, bear an interest rate of 1.75% (2020:
2%) plus prime rate per annum and jointly and severally
guaranteed by Mr. Choi Yun Chor and Ms. Yeung So Mui.
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the banking facilities
are secured by freehold land and buildings held for own
use with carrying amount of approximately HK$83,851,000
(2020: HK$84,733,000) (Note 18) and are reviewed
periodically.

As at 31 December 2020, the mortgage loans of
HK$1,644,000 was repayable on 15 September 2029,
bear an interest rate of 2% plus prime rate per annum and
jointly and severally guaranteed by Mr. Choi Yun Chor and
Ms. Yeung So Mui. The loan has been fully repaid during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

As secured loans are subject to bank’s overriding right to
demand repayment even though the scheduled repayment
dates are twelve months after the date of the reporting
period. The secured loans were classified as current
liabilities for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.
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W—_E-_—F+=-_A=+—H8" EBE
29,857,000 TTAIZIBER (ZE =T F :
32,023,000 L) ER =T =—F 1 A
+HAEE  FARAEKERMNEMLTS
B(ZZE-ZF:28) A8PNLER
BEBLTHRARENER RZ2T=——
FRZZE_EF+_A=+—H " FBITH
& LABR T4 /583,851,0008 7T (Z 2=
T 184,733,000 7T) HIK A R i
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32. SECURED LOANS (Continued)

The Group’s secured loans are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s financial
statement ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. During the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 the Group is
required to comply with the financial covenants throughout
the continuance of the relevant loan and/or as long as the
loan is outstanding which the ratio of debt coverage ratio
shall not be less than 1.25. The Group has complied with
the covenant throughout the year ended 31 December
2021. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group breached to comply with the financial covenant
which the ratio of debt coverage ratio was less than 1.25.
The financial institution did not demand for immediate
repayment after the breach.

32.

B RN MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIFE

ra

Mg (48)

AEBZERERABTEREREES
THBBRRL T B 2R ZERH
T— R EHBEE R E LR -

HAREZR AR AEMZRES
X IRESKIERE - Zii'ilﬁﬁ;ﬁﬁ*%ﬁﬁvﬁi

FREZEBTERL - RBE_T-—FK
—BRFt A=+ EIJtﬁf“ K&
EANBBE: AZ*NI#”“HEW&/E)Z

EERHARER (HAEEEXTHER
1.25) B & <7 R #5225k K%IE’:\%Z%E

—E T —FF+ - HA=+—HULEFEHEH
EBTE@EE REBEZE-_ZT-_TF+=A
=+—BLEFE  AEEERETHHEE
#HBEBERER1.25 - BEH#ER
BHEREBIWEEKENRFER

33. BONDS 33. &%
2021 2020
—EB-—fF —EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Current portion: BNHAER 5 -
Bonds carried at fixed coupon REF6EETERmFFE
rate of 6% per annum (note (a)) FFEMES (M) 20,000 =
Bonds carried at fixed coupon BEFIEETRAEFFE
rate of 3% per annum (note (d)) FFERES (M) 10,181 10,181
30,181 10,181
Non-current portion: FERNEREL 5 -
Bonds carried at fixed coupon EEFoEREERmMFENE
rate of 6% per annum (note (a)) TERES (K@) - 20,000
Bonds carried at fixed coupon REF 8 EETERmFFIE
rate of 8% per annum (note (b)) FFEMES (M (b)) 10,000 10,000
Bonds carried at fixed coupon BEF 3 EETEREFHE
rate of 3% per annum (note (c)) FFERES () 10,000 10,000
20,000 40,000
50,181 50,181
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_ZT-_ -+ _A=+—HILFE
33. BONDS
Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

The Company entered into two placing agreements with a
placing agent issued two 6% coupon unlisted and unsecured
bonds on 6 August 2014 and 10 October 2014 with the
aggregate principal amount of HK$10,000,000 each within the
placing period. The amounts are repayable within 96 months
from the date of issue, which are 5 August 2022 and 9 October
2022 respectively.

The Company issued a 8% coupon unlisted and unsecured
bonds with the aggregate principal amount of HK$10,000,000
on 23 January 2015. The amount is repayable within 96
months from the date of issue, which is 22 January 2023.

The Company issued a 3% coupon unlisted and unsecured
bond with the principal amount of HK$10,000,000 on 1
December 2017 to Mr. Shen Ke, a former director of the
Company. The amount is repayable within 84 months from the
date of issue, which is 30 November 2024.

The Company issued an unlisted bond with the principal
amount of HK$10,181,000 as part of the consideration in
respect of the acquisition of the joint ventures on 6 March
2018. The bond bears interest rate at 3% per annum and is
unsecured. The amount is repayable within 36 months from the
date of issue, which is 5 March 2021.
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33. 1%# (:"E)

BT

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

ANAFIE—ZEERIEE I MDE S
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10,000,000/ 7T * ZEFFI R A6ERIE L
MRERRES - ZE AR EITAHR
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% %8 410,000,000/ 7T « 2@ F X A3E
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A4 » & BEAN T A H#E s 84 &
ARfEE ISR A-Z-_NFE+—A=+
E| o
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34. LEASE LIABILITIES

HE-ZT—

For the year ended 31 December 2021

34. HEAR

—F A= t—BILEE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER THTT
Lease liabilities payable: R THBESZ N HEARE -
Within one year —FR 1,371 2,518
Within a period of more than —FRERMFEA
one year but not exceeding
two years 1,094 732
Within a period of more than WMEERBRAFA
two years but not exceeding
five years 3,348 -
With a period of more hFi&
than five years 6,932 -
12,745 3,250
Less: Amount due for settlement B mBBEE TR
with 12 months shown under 12 &8 A AEHA&EE 2 5B
current liabilities (1,371) (2,518)
Amount due for settlement after EMEBERE TAATR
12 months shown under 128 A& B8R4 E ~ FUIR
non-current liabilities 11,374 732

The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities
range from 4.65% to 5.45% (2020: 4.65% to 5.13%).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEZ-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

35. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES)

The following is the deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the end of each financial reporting period:

EEHEEE (BR)
AT RIS B R A AR

fRa RN

RANERAZTBEREHBEE (BE)

2021 2020
—E 5% TE-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Balances presented in the e MBI KR 2R

consolidated statement of

financial position
Deferred tax assets EEFRIEE E 8,514 3,875
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEA & (2,275) (5,355)
Net balance ERRFRE 6,239 (1,480)

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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35. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES)

(Continued)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and

B RN MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIFE

ra

EEHEREEE (BfF)(F)

ATRRAFERBEFERRAZIEIRE

assets recognised and movement thereon during the EHEBEREEREES -
current and prior years.
Withholding
tax on
Loss  undistributed
allowance of profits from
Accelerated tax trade and other the PRC Intangible
depreciation Taxlosses  receivables  subsidiaries assets Total
EARHEM TEREAT
EREZG RREERZ
R BENE HEER FERE bl BREE it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
A A T A T T
At 1 January 2020 R_E-FF-f—-H - - 1,749 (1,800) (4,049) (4,100)
Credited to profit or loss iAER (i 12)

(Note 12) - - 2,021 - 494 2515
Exchange adjustments EHHRE = = 105 = = 105
At 31 December 2020 RZZZEETZA=1—H - - 3875 (1,800) (3,555) (1,480)
Credited to proft or loss iAER (HiF12)

(Note 12) b34 713 3219 1,800 1,280 7,546
Exchange adjustments L = = 173 = = 173

h34 713 7,267 = (2,275) 6,239

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has tax losses
of approximately HK$105,895,000 (2020: HK$94,162,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$2,641,000 (2020: HK$NIl) of such losses. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses of
approximately HK$103,254,000 (2020: HK$94,162,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. These
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$49,920,000 (2020: HK$52,347,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_Z-—F+-A=+—HLEFE
36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. B4
Number of shares Amount
RO#E t8
2021 2020 2021 2020
—EC-F e el 33 —EC-f el 3
'000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THRT TEL
Ordinary shares issued BERTRBELER
and fully paid:
As at 1 January ®—A—H 1,092,878 728,586 441,350 388,883
Issuance of shares (Note) BIIRG (M) - 364,292 - 52,823
Transaction costs attributable BIIROEER FHA
o issue of shares (Note) i3 - - - (356)
As at 31 December R+ZA=1—H 1,092,878 1,092,878 441,350 441,350

In accordance with section 135 of the CO, the ordinary BIERBFMEHIZE 1351F + AR a) @R

282

37.

shares of the Company do not have a par value.

Note:

On 14 July 2020, the Company completed a rights issue on the basis
of one rights share for every two shares held on the record date.
364,292,398 ordinary shares were issued at the subscription price
of HK$0.145 per rights share, with net proceeds of HK$52,467,000,
after considering the share issuance expense of HK$356,000.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard
to the Company’s residual assets.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Hong Kong

The Group operates a MPF scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs capped at HK$1,500 (2020: HK$1,500)
per month to MPF scheme, in which the contribution is
matched by employees.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

37. R

HEE -

BRE -

AZZ-ZFLATME - AR AEREHEH
S MR (0 7] 3 — AR AR ) 2 B ESERK
HRAR - 48 356,000 7% 7T B9 AR 19 B 1T 2 1&
364,292,398 % E @A E F A A% 0.145 B TTEV R
BEEEE(T - B8 508 %55 52,467,000 BT °

TREFEAGRKRTRE
RAAE LA RERBRNER —
AR ZHBEEMS

/EEZHQ 8 WHA
2 ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬂxq—ﬁHE%?’F‘J ©

KRR RTE) 2 5K
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AEEAZHAERBE B EEHETITRTE
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(Continued)

The PRC

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the government of PRC. The subsidiaries in
the PRC are required to contribute a certain percentage of
the payroll cost to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

Canada

Employees in Canada participate in a Canada Pension
Plan (the “Plan”) which is a mandatory scheme under
Canada Pension Plan Regulations. The employer and the
employees are required to make a total contribution of
10.9% (2020: 10.5%) on the pensionable earnings, subject
to a cap of pensionable earnings of CAD61,600 (equivalent
to approximately HK$381,000) (2020: CAD58,700
equivalent to approximately HK$357,000).

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
approximately HK$2,585,000 (2020: HK$822,000)
represents contributions payable to these plans by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans. As
at 31 December 2021, contributions of approximately
HK$40,000 (2020: approximately HK$34,000) due in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 had not been
paid over to the plans. The amounts were paid subsequent
to the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_ZT--—F+-A=t+—HIFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 9 September 2021, Chongging Ailuojia entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with Mr. Yang Jin Zhu, Ms. Wang Jing
(collectively known as the “Vendors”), pursuant to which
Chongging Ailuojia agreed to acquire and the Vendors
agreed to sell the entire equity interest in i) Chongging
Haotai Property Management Company Limited* (EE
MEEWMEEEEREMLAR); i) Chongging Jia Duan
Technology Company Limited* (EE M RxRIBRARE
£/ F]); iii) Chongging Qi Chang Technology Company
Limited* (EEMHBEHRABRZAFR); and iv) copyrights of
smart home software (registration nos. 1229777) and its
associated Android version (registration no. 3291622) in
the PRC registered in the name of Ms. Wang Jing, one
of the Vendors (collectively the “Chongging Business”)
at the consideration of RMB2,950,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,610,000).

The Vendors warrant to Chongging Ailuojia that the
amount of the account receivables of the Chongging
Business (i.e. RMB1,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,713,000)) shall be more than 10% of the sum of
(i) renovation deposit; and (ii) management fee deposit.
If the inspection by Chongging Ailuojia (which shall be
completed by 30 November 2021) reveals that any of the
account receivables of the Chongging Business cannot
be recovered, the amount of the consideration shall be
adjusted downward by deducting the amount equivalent
to the amount of the account receivables of the Chongging
Business cannot be recovered in the last instalment
(i.e. RMB950,000) before the adjustment (“Contingent
Consideration 1") and which is subsequently waived.

On the same date, Chongging Ailuojia subsequently
entered into a supplemental agreement to the Sale and
Purchase Agreement with the Vendors (the “Supplemental
Agreement”), pursuant to which, RMB200,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$245,000) of the consideration will
be upheld and will only be payable upon the successful
renewal of a property management agreement on or
before 1 August 2022 (the “Contingent Consideration I1”).
RMB196,000 (equivalent to HK$240,000) represents the
estimated fair value of this obligation at the completion of
the acquisition.

* For identification purpose only
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

re B ERARM R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIFE

38. WEEMIB AR (&)

(Continued)
The acquisition is completed on 9 September 2021. WHEERZZE=Z—FNLANBEK °
HK$’000
FExT
Consideration transferred HERE
Consideration payable ERRE 3,365
Fair value of the contingent consideration IAREBEZANREE 240
3,605

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB164,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$198,000) have been
excluded from the consideration transferred and have been
recognised as an expense in the current year, within the
“administrative expenses” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

Ug BE 4B A R AN A R #5 164,000 7T (FEE R
#7198,00078 7t) WE T AFTEZEN(E -
BERAFEEGEBEREMEAKER
[1TE RS | BB AR AR -

income.
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised HK$'000
at the date of acquisition RBERAZKBEEREE FHET
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E M YRR 480
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR NIR S 2
Other payables H {th FE{S AR X (142)
340
HK$’000
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WESEELEZBHE . FET
Consideration transferred Frég:E (8 3,605
Less: recognised amounts of net assets acquired & : DR Z KB EEFE (340)
Goodwill arising on acquisition W B TRE A 2 B2 3,265

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of the Chongging
Business because the acquisition included the benefit of
expected synergies, revenue growth and future market

MR WEERBRKIER 2 BEIHF K&
M RSB RERRTISER - #UKE
ERFBELARE - mRZFNETHE

development after the acquisition. These benefits are not Al BT B E 2 WERIZ%E » I

recognised separately from goodwill because they do not BHFRER -

meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible

assets.

Net cash inflow on acquisition of HK$’000

Chongging Business KBEEXKE2RERARE FET

Bank balances and cash acquired RITHEBR R T EIR S 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_T-_—H+-_A=1+—HILFE
38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

39.

(Continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

Included in loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 is
the loss of approximately HK$466,000 attributable to the
additional business generated by the Chongging Business.
Revenue for the year includes approximately HK$964,000
generated from the Chongging Business.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2021,
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 of the
Group would have been approximately HK$80,592,000
and loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 of the
Group would have been approximately HK$22,338,000.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only
and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2021, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

Pursuant to the supplemental sale and purchase
agreement entered between Chongging Ailuojia, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with the Vendors,
RMB200,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$245,000)
of the consideration will be upheld and will only be payable
upon the successful renewal of property management
agreement on or before 1 August 2022.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

38. WEEMIB AR (&)

39.

WEEEHAEEXRRNZE

BE_S - F+_A=+—HILEFEH
EEREREREEREENREINERERE
#7466,0008 7T - FEWRZBIEEEXTK
EEAH#7964,00078 7T °

HWEBEBEHEER _T-_—F—H—H
TR AIAEBBE_T - —F+=
A=T—BLEFENFEREKLD
80,592,000 B T R A EBEHE _T_ —

FH+_A=+—HIEFENEESLD
22,338,000/ 7T ° 1%%%*41%1,\/% iz}
VHAEERRBEFHENR T —F—
A—HEZKERTE m—JL@lE’JHQﬁn&
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39. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

(Continued)

On 9 September 2021, the Acquisition was completed. The
fair value of the contingent consideration payable is valued
by Valtech Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent
professional valuer. The valuation of the contingent
consideration payable is mainly based on effective interest
method on expected future cash flows.

At 9 September 2021, the fair value of the contingent
consideration payable is estimated to be approximately
RMB196,000 (equivalent to HK$240,000). The contingent
consideration payable is remeasured at 31 December
2021 on the same basis as above and the fair value of
the contingent consideration payable is estimated to be
approximately RMB196,000 (equivalent to HK$240,000)
as a result of the consideration of effective interest accrued
and other factors remain the same. Hence, no changes in
fair value of contingent consideration payable is recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows from financing activities:

40.

MERSMELNEEEHR

TRHAMLREEDAEENAEEE
EEE)  BRRASMERENES - @&
EBEANAEENARERERIARKR
ERENAEEGFARERERTED ;EE

RO BERRMEBZDMELNRERE
BfE:

Loans from
third parties
and interest
payables
included in Loans from
other Secured controlling Lease
payables loans  shareholders Bonds liabilities Total
BitA
RERER
LEZHER
REfHIE ERER  ERRRER &% HERR s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
(Note 29) (Note 32) (Note 31) (Note 33) (Note 34)
(k29 (M3 32) (Hsk31) (H3k33) (Hi3E34)
At 1 January 2021 R-B-—%F—A—H 5770 33,667 20,558 50,181 3,250 113,426
Changes from cash flows: Benesy.
Repayment of secured loans [EREFER - (3.973) - - - (3,973)
Payment of lease iabilties SOl - - - - (1,512) (1,512)
Interest paid BRFIE (2,000) (1,473) - - (240) (3,713)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BER S REZENETE (2,000) (5,446) - - (1,752) (9,198)
Non-cash changes: FRe89:
Finance costs (Note 11) RERA (K1) 2,958 1452 513 - 240 5,163
Entering into new lease HE 1i:k-1 - - - - 12,805 12,805
Reclassified to other payables ENPEZEMEAERR 10,527 - (10,527) - - -
Offset by trade receivables mE ARG
(Note 43) (FizE43) - - - - (243) (243)
Early termination of lease RARIEE - - - - (1,725) (1,725)
Exchange adjustments B AR - 184 - - 170 354
Total other changes e ER 13,485 1,636 (10,014) - 11,247 16,354
At 31 December 2021 RZZF=-F
TZB=t-8 17,255 29,857 10,544 50,181 12,745 120,582
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HEZ-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 40. MEFTHMELNABEHER (&)
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(Continued)

Loans from
third parties
and interest
payables
included in Loans from
other Secured controlling Lease
payables loans  shareholders Bonds liabilities Total
BEtA
Rt BB
LEZRER
REHRIS ERER  BRRRER &% BEER Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
(Note 29) (Note 32) (Note 31) (Note 33) (Note 34)
(H&29) (f&E32) (faE31) (HtE33) (it 34)

At 1 January 2020 R-2-5E-A-H 5,093 34,275 11,187 60,181 2939 113675
Changes from financing cash flows: HERLHEED !
Advance from shareholders e = = 10903 - - 10903
Repayment of secured loans BEEAER - (1,132 - - - (1,132
Repayment of bonds [ERES - - - (10,000) = (10,000)
Payment of lease liabilties THEERE - - - - (1,854) (1,854)
Interest paid BfifI8 (249) (1587) - - (187) (4270)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~~ BER & REZENESE (249) (2719 10903 (10,000) (2,041) (6,353)
Non-cash changes: FHe%E.
Finance costs (Note 11) RARK (M 10) 3173 1,587 R - 187 4979
Entering into new lease TARE - - = = 2062 2062
Gain on loans from controling MeARR AL ERBEY

shareholders stated at fair value LERRRE 2 g

upon initial recognition (Note 9) (R3k9) - - (1,564) - - (1,564)
Exchange adjustments L = 524 = = 103 627
Total other changes U E 3173 2111 (1532) - 2352 6,104
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZF

TZA=1-H 5770 33,667 20,058 50,181 3250 113426
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEZ-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

41.

42.

PLEDGE OF OR RESTRICTIONS ON
ASSETS

Pledge of assets

The Group’s borrowings had been secured by the pledge
of the Group’s assets and the carrying amounts of the
respective assets are as follows:

41. EEHRM IR FI

B ERH

AEBRBREARAEEER 2 EEFE
o MHEEEZREENT -

2021 2020
—EB-—-F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F&T
Property, plant and equipment L E YN
(Note 18) (B5E18) 83,851 84,733

Restrictions on assets

In addition, lease liabilities of approximately
HK$12,745,000 (2020: HK$3,250,000) are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$12,445,000 (2020: HK$2,894,000). The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor and the relevant leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

& & PR

&t $7I\ B A E#A12,745,0008 7T (=
T — T4 : 3,250,000 7T) Eﬁiifa Féﬁ@ﬁﬁ
EEEX124450008 T (ST F :
2,894,000 0) —HHRER - BRI AR
EEEFAZERERI  HERELE
MEEMEE - WRBBHAEEETS
EEBEZEAR -

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42. BEARIE
2021 2020
—EB-—fF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Capital expenditure in respect WHEE STAMER NGRS B S ik
of the acquisition of property, BB BBENREBEARET
plant and equipment contracted
for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements 312 -
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43. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(@) On 31 August 2021, the Group entered into a
lease agreement (“Lease Agreement”) for the office
premises for 10 years. On the lease commencement,
the Group recognised right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of approximately RMB10,022,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$12,075,000)
and approximately RMB10,022,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$12,075,000) respectively.

Pursuant to the Lease Agreement, the landlord
and the Group agreed partial of the lease liabilities
payable to the landlord to offset with the property
management fee due to the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, lease liabilities
of approximately RMB202,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$243,000) was set off against with
the trade receivables of approximately HK$243,000.

(b)  On 1 August 2021, the Group entered into a lease
agreement for the office premises for 2 years. On the
lease commencement, the Group recognised right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of approximately
HK$622,000 and approximately HK$622,000
respectively.

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material related party
transactions:

(@) Transactions with related parties

The Group had the following material transactions

re B ERARM R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=1+—HIFE

43. TEFREXH

(@ RZEBE-_—FNA=Z+—8 4%

EpiIvEERzE (HERRE] U

HERLNEYWEIOE - RHEERK

B AEERREAREEREES

F"EIJZUAE#? 10,022,000 7t (#8%&

R #)12,075,0007 7T) R # AR

10,022,000 7t (AB&E 7 4912,075,000
BIT) °

*E%Ffﬁi%ﬁf* ¥XRAKERE
B ENEEZHESR fﬁﬁwfﬁ
HENAEEZEES - HE
——F®+-A=+—H8LtFE " Tﬂ?‘?
BEHARK202,0007T (HERL
243,000/ 7T) © LA E 5 EU
BR 7049 243,000 7T °

(b)y M-ZT-_—FN\A—R AEEFIL
TREMENRAZYEEERZ °
REERIAR - AEED RIFERER
BEENEEREL622,000/8T R
#7622,000 87T °

44. ¥ 5

BRAGEMBRREMMAAEE LIRS
RAEESARIN - REBET AT EKBEEBRZ
5

l

(a) FAEXZ
RAEE  REBBEZELETIEKNH

with related parties during the year: 25

Name of company Nature of transactions 2021 2020

DNRER REME —B--F —ECTE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BzE FERT FHET

Chongging Xingling * Properties management (a) - 350

EEEIR service fee received

or receivables
B EREERREE
* For identification purpose only * (E R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-Z-—

FH-A=1t—HILFE

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Transactions with related parties
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) The related party transactions above constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. However, those transactions are exempt from the
disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as they are conducted on normal commercial
terms or better and not secured by the assets of the
Group under Rule 14A.90.

Key management personnel
compensation

The remuneration of the Directors and other

(a) LB SER ETRAIEI4AE
EBRLBERGIFHEBERS) ° A
i - ARMK LT BIEE 14A.90 1 RZ
ERGTIE— B FE BRI EIRK
T WIERASRBEMEEFRE -
?%%E?tﬁﬁ%%MA$Zﬁ§
HIE ©

(b) TEEEBASZHME

EENEMIBEREABRFAZ

members of key management personnel during the MessImT
year were as follows:

2021 2020
—EB-—fF —ECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Short-term benefits HHIRA 2,345 2,956
Bonus TE4L - 96
Post-employment benefits Bz ER 77 91
2,422 3,143

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

Other than the related party transactions disclosed
above, no other transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company or a connected entity
of the director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

TIMES UNIVERSAL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

B NFEITHAB ZF I h
ZESEREAARALTSBEME

;Eo

Br EXHE BRI SN RFERIAF
EREMER - AARMETERARRE
ERANRES HEEREEEEE
BERERIEARS  RHHEHL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HLFE

=1 =+ = =
45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. AN R X EMB L RFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the E’\ﬁﬁziﬁﬂﬂi AR EEKEERE M
Company at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BARIFBAT
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issuied and fully
establishment/ paid share capital/
operation registered capital Proportion ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries HREL/RY/ BRARERRE/ held by the Company held by the Company Principal actiities
HEARAH mEny Rl -ued HAL B ERRE LS HAL TR RZRIS IBER
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E# B E# B
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZRC-F| CRCRE| 80| CECRE| C3o-F| CRCRF| CBo-E( CECEE
Times Universal Canada Limited ~Hong Kong 1 share, HKS1 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Investment holding
BREZNEAERAR (3 1} lEn RERR
Times Universal Group Limited Hong Kong 1 share, HKS1 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
BREREEERAT Bt k- 157t RERR
Times Universal Victoria Canada 1 share, CADL - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Hotel operation
Holdings Limited JIEIN 1R 17 il
Times Universal Enterprise Hong Kong 1 share, HKS1 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Limfed 3 1R &R RERR
BRETEIZRRAR
Times Universal China Limited Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Investment holding
BREFHEERAR &k 1k Lk &R
Times Universal Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Provision of administrative
Limited support to group companies
BREFEAERAT i35 1% Uk mEBRARMAH R
Ultimate Frontier Limited BVI 1 share, US§1 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Investment holding
EERAES 1% 15710 R&mR
Times Universal Healthcare Hong Kong 1 share, HK§1 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Inactive
and Hotel Management
Service Limited
BRATERER SRR &k 1k Uk 22K
BRAA
Capital Knight Limited BYI 1 share, US$1 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Investment holding
RERUHE 1% 1571 R&nk
Easy Chase Limited Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Investment holding
EERRLA Bk 1R kR R&mR
Forebase US Holdings Limited USA 100 shares, 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
US$31 each
A 1008 8R31%T Rank
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
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45. XRAEEMBLRAFE (F)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and fully
establishment/ paid share capital/
operation registered capital Proportion ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries #MAL/HL/ BRARERRE/ held by the Company held by the Company Principal actiities
HEARAE meny HREREE HAL TR FERRELS RGP ] ITEE
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
ER B E# B
2021 2020 2021 020 2021 2020 2021 2020
TEC-E| ZRoRE | Z3C-F| CBCRE| CBC-F( CRoTE| C3o-F| CECRE
Wanwei (Chongging) Business PRC 15§400,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd #*
ER (EB)NEERERATY  9E 400,000%7C RER
Chongging Wanwei Trading PRC RMB - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Investment holding
Development Co,, Lid #* 1,000,000
EREREARRARLA HE ARE1,000,0007 RERR
Nuofute Property Management#* ~ PRC RMB5,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Properties management
ERGERNEERERLA  9E ARE50000007 hxen
Freemaster Limited BVI 1 share, US$1 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
EERAHE 1% 157 REAR
Cherish Possession Limited BVI 1 share, USS1 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Investment holding
EERAHE 1 1% REAR
Wise Profusion Enterprises Limited BV 1 share, US$1 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
BELRERAT EERAHE 1% REAR
Dragon Delight Group Limited BVI 1 share, US$1 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
EREERRAA EERAEE 1 1% REAR
Best Master Limited (Note o) Hong Kong 1 share, HKS1 - - 100% - - - 100% - Cryptocurrency business
RERRAA (Hike) Bk 1 1% e
Ultimate Well Limite BVI 1 share, USS1 100% - - - 100% - - - Investment holding
(Note a) (K32 HBRIES 1% REAR
Easy Reward Holdings Limited BVI 1 share, US$1 100% - - - 100% - - - Investment holding
(Note a) (K32 HBRIES 1% REAR
Milion Goal Limited (Note ) Hong Kong 1 share, HKS1 - - 100% - - - 100% - Inaciive
ERARAT (Wia) Bt 1 1% Tazh
(Global Winner Development Hong Kong 1 share, HKS1 - - 100% - - - 100% - Investment holding
Limited (Note a)
BEERARAA (Wita) Bk 1% 1%L RERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. XN R X EMB L EIFE (8)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and fully
establishment/ paid share capital/
operation registered capital Proportion ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries #MAL/HL/ BRARERRE/ held by the Company held by the Company Principal actiities
HEAREE feny HRERREE HAL TR FERRELS HAL R RZRIS IBER
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
ER B ER B

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
zgo-g| -5-3% | 29o-| c3ome| ceo-g| o3| ceo-g| caom

-7 -=- -7 2% 7%

Chongging Ailuojia** PRC RMB5,000,000 - - 100% - - - 100% - Investment holding
(Note b)
EERAFRERE he ARE5,0000007 D
BRAT(Hib)
Chongging Haotai** PRC RMB500,000 - - 100% - - - 100% - Properties management
(Note b)
EETRRNEER HE ARE50000070 S
BREFAF(Hitb)
Chongging Jia Duan Technology ~ PRC RMB2,000,000 - - 100% - - - 100% - Inactive
Company Limited** (Note b)
EETERNRERER il ARE20000007 g
AR (i)
Chongging Qi Chang PRC RMB5,000,000 - - 100% - - - 100% - Inactive
Technology Company
Limited* (Note b)
ERCEHBARAA (Fith)  +E ARE5,0000007 ity
Notes: MisE
2 For identification purpose only * EHER
# These entities were established in the PRC and are wholly- t ZEBRRPEKY - BINIBEEDRE -
owned foreign enterprises.
* Not audited by Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited ® WIELZER (BH78) SFTMEHAERAR]
Bz
Note a: Those subsidiaries are newly incorporated during the year Hita: ZEMBARINEE_T-_—F+=
ended 31 December 2021. A=+—BIEFEHEMEKL
Note b: Those subsidiaries are newly acquired during the year MizEb: ZEMBARIREBEE_T=_—F+=
ended 31 December 2021. A=1+—BILFEFHUEEHRSE -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at ik e G Y= RN N R R e N N R
the end of both years or during both years. FEBITRMNEBES °

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —E-_ER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN pEES L
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

46. R R ZABHMRI R

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B RE FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Right-of-use assets FREEE - 1,172
Interests in subsidiaries AN A 24 24
24 1,196
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Other receivables Hoh fE IR AR 3K 341 1,234
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSP B A RIZRIE 58,683 55,926
Bank balances and cash IRITEB KRR 14,650 35,895
73,674 93,055
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables HE AT ARRK 22,007 8,636
Loan from a controlling shareholder —%?“HXHQ%E 10,544 =
Bonds e 30,181 10,181
Lease liabilities HEBE - 1,257
Tax liabilities MIEBE 4,000 4,000
66,732 24,074
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFEE 6,942 68,981
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHREBERRBERE
LIABILITIES 6,966 70,177
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkrnBEE
Loans from controlling shareholders — #A% A% 5 & K - 20,558
Bonds &% 20,000 40,000
20,000 60,558
NET (LIABILITIES) ASSETS (BB EEZE (13,034) 9,619
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRGHE
Share capital [N 441,350 441,350
Reserves i (a) (454,384) (431,731)
TOTAL (DEFICITS) EQUITY #O(EH) (13,034) 9,619
The Company’s statement of financial position was ARABZHBERRARR T _FRHAN
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors AESEESMERBETIE  WHUTA

on 6 May 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Choi Yun Chor
9B

Director

EE
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Tai Kwok Keung Kenny
e

Director

EE
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 46. KR 2R T (88)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note (a): iz ()
Contribution Exchange Accumulated
reserve reserve Losses Total
HERE EXfE 2itER b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AT AL FAT
At 1 January 2020 RZZTZZE-f—H 8478 (12,623) (368,516) (372,661)
Loss and total comprehensive expense AEEBERZART AR
for the year - - (59,070) (59,070)
At 31 December 2020 RZZZTF+-A=1+—H 8478 (12,623) (427,586) (431,731)
Loss and total comprehensive expense AEEBERZARTER
for the year - - (22,653) (22,653)
At 31 December 2021 R-B--5+-A=1+-H 8,478 (12,623) (450,239) (454,384)
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~ Five-year Financial Summary

R FEI B E

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
T+ T-\§ CZE-NF ZTZTH | ZB--F
(Restated)
(83
Consolidated Statement SEBER
of profit or loss and other Hitr2m
comprehensive income S
(HK$'000) (FEm)
Revenue from LB
Continuing operations Yz 87,588 94,582 92,228 58,803 77,700
Loss before tax from BEgE
continuing operations EHBkAE
HpiER (17,834) (20,584) (30,816) (79,969) (28,208)
Loss after income tax and BRATEHR
attributable to owner of the VNN 2]
Company AELER (8,529) (21,820) (30,444) (78,780) (20,940)
Basic (loss)/earnings BREX (B8) /
per share/(HK cents) &M/ (L)
— From continuing operations - RELEEK (4.98) (4.11) (4.00) (8.52) (1.92)
— From discontinued operations - BAR IHE & 7% 3.11 = = = -
Diluted (loss)/earnings BhEE (58) /
per share/(HK cents) &7/ (#4L)
— From continuing operations - REREEE (4.98) 4.11)  NATER N/A G F N/A 38
— From discontinued operations - BAR IHE & ¥ 7% 3.11 = = = -
Consolidated Statement of SEPEMRRE
financial position (F&r)
(HK$'000)
Non-current assets 3Ffﬁ@’§§7 o I3isal 159371 182379 129687 | 125415
Current assets REBE 47,343 46,306 36,027 61,233 56,294
Current liabilities ELB=N (30,700) (37,756) (100,057) (88,549) (131,786)
Net current assets MEEE
- W%@Wbslgﬁ o (?¥%>ﬁ@§, - 44}&6&%7 - 8,550 - £§4934l7 44}27316) B (25492l7
~ Non-current Liabilties _ GERBRME . (1419190 (103802)  (57,229)  (66645) |  (33,649)
Net assets (liabilities) BE (BR) #E 6,245 64,119 61,120 35,726 16,274
Share Information (HK$) BHER ()
Highest share price mERE $0.49 $0.58 $0.55 $0.26 $0.14
Lowest share price RIEMRE $0.39 $0.26 $0.22 $0.12 $0.07
Year end closing share price FRMRE $0.40 $0.34 $0.26 $0.13 $0.07
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